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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

5188

THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY,

acting on its own behalf and

on behalf of the MEMBER STATES

it has power to represent, and the :
Kingdom of Belgium, Republic of Finland, =+ =7
French Republic, Hellenic Republic, ST S,
Federal Republic of Germany, LTI
Italian Republic, W by
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg,

Kingdom of the Netherlands, BRBOBRLYN %ﬁggg

Portuguese Republic, and Kingdom of
GARAUFIS, J.

Spain, individually,

Plaintiffs,
- against -
RJR NABISCO, INC., H COMPLAINT
R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO COMPANY,
R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO INTERNATIONAL, INC., : JURY TRIAL
NABISCO GROUP HOLDINGS CORP., ' DEMANDED

RJR NABISCO HOLDINGS CORP.,

R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO HOLDINGS, INC., | POHORELSKY MJ
. ) e

PHILIP MORRIS INTERNATIONAL INC.,
PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC.,
PHILIP MORRIS INCORPORATED, d/b/a
PHILIP MORRIS U.S.A,.,

PHILIP MORRIS PRODUCTS, INC., and
PHILIP MORRIS DUTY FREE, INC.

Defendants.

Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, acting on its own

behalf and on behalf of the MEMBER STATES it has power to
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represent, and the Kingdom of Belgium, Republic of.Finland,
French Republic, Hellenic Republic, Federal_ Republic of Germany,
Italian Republic, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, Kingdom of the
Netherlands, Portuguese Republic, and Kingdom of Spain,
individually, {(hereinafter referred to as the "MEMBER STATES")
collectively referred to as “PLAINTIFFS;, by and through their
undersigned attorneys, for their complaint against the
Defendants, RJR NABISCO, INC., R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO COMPANY,
R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO INTERNATIONAL, INC., NABiSCO GROUP
HOLDINGS CORP., RJR NABISCO HOLDINGS CORP., R.J. REYNOLDS
TOBACCO HOLDINGS, INC., (hereinafter collectively referred to as
"RJR DEFENDANTS" or “RJR"), PHILIP MORRIS INTERNATIONAL INC.,
PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC., PHILIP MORRIS INCORPORATED, d/b/a
PHILIP MORRIS U.S.A., PHILIP MORRIS PRCDUCTS, INC., and PHILIP
MORRIS DUTY FREE, INC. (hereinafter collectively'referred to as
"PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS" or “PHILIP MORRIS"), allege as
follows:

I. INTRODUCTION

1. This is an action by the Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES, against the Defendants. The
MEMBER STATES assért violations of the Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations Act of 1970, Title IX of the Organized

Crime Control Act of 1570, Pub. L. No. %1-452, 84 Stat. 922,
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codified ét 18 U.5.C. §8§ 1961—68.(“RICO”), arising from
Defendants’ involvement in organized crihe in pursuit of a
massive, ongoing smuggiing scheme. Defendants have engaged in a
pattern of racketeering éctivity, including but not limited to
money laundering, wire fraud, mail fraud, and acts in violation
of the Travel Act, and by such conduct, are_involved'in the very
type of organized crime that RICO was designed to eradicate. in
addition, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES assert
claime that the Defendants have committed, aﬁd continue to
commit, acts that constitute negligence, fraud, unjust
enrichment, public nuisance, negligent misrepresentation, and
conspiracy to commit such torts. The complaint seeks money
damages, as well as injunctive and equitable relief.

2. The Defendants have on a continuing basis,
directly and indirectly, facilitated the smuggling of cigarettes
illegally into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES in
violation of United States law and common law, as well as
customs agreements between the United States and THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES, for the purpose of injuring the
interests of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and ité MEMBER STATES, while
increasing their profits and market share in THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY, enhancing the value of their tobacco operations, and

expanding the worldwide market for their contraband cigarettes.
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3. .Treaties and agreements between THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES and the United States, including
the Agreement Between the United States of America and THE
EURCPEAN COMMUNITY 6n Customs Cooperation and Mutual Assistance
in Customs Matters (1997), which is binding on the Member States
as well, specifically confirm that there shall be reciprocal
cooperation between the United States and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY
regarding government efforts to combat transnational crime and
customs fraud. These treaties and agreements also confirm that
the United States and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY have a unity of
objective in insuring the accurate assessment and collection of
customs duties and other related fees and charges. The United
States and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY have determined that amuggling
operations in breach of customs agreements and existing law are
harmful to the economic, fiscal; and commercial interests of
both the United States and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and,
accordingly, it is to their mutual benefit to eliminate and
remedy the effects of such operations.

4. As a direct result of the iliegal acts and course
of conduct of the Defendants, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its
MEMBER.STATES have been injured in their business and property.
THE EURQPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES have lost, and
continue to lose, billions of.dollaré, including the deprivation

of customs duties, fees, taxes, money, and property by reason of
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the Defendants' schemes to smuggle and to assist the smuggling
of vast shipments of contraband cigarettes and other tobacco
products into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. These schemes also harm
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES by gsupplanting
sales of lawfully sold cigarettes on which duties, money, and
taxes would have been paid to THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its
MEMBER STATES.

5. Thrbugh actions undertaken in the United States
and elsewhere, the Defendants have conceived, directed,
controlled, implemented, agsisted, and.eﬁcouraged an
international conspiracy to defraud the Plaintiffe and deprive
them of money and property, and injure their interests in order
to increase their profits and market share, enhance the value of
their tobacco operations, and expand therworldwide market for
contraband cigarettes. By means of actions in thig District and
elsewhere,.Defendants created and exploited a sophisticated and
clandestine smuggling enterprise for their respective tobacco
prands that operates throughout the world and within THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. This international scheme has harmed, and
continues to harm, the interests of many governments, including

THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES.



II. PARTIES

6. (a.) The Plaintiff, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, is a
governmental body created as a result of collaboration among the
majority of the nations of Western Europe, more gpecifically,
Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Greece,
Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, The Netherlands, Portugél, Spain,
Sweden, and the United Kingdom. Pursuant to the Treaty
establishing THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY; as last amended by the
Treaty of Amsterdam (1999), Article 2, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is
vested with the responsibility "to promote throughout the
Community a harmonidus, balanced and sustainable development of
economic activities, . . . a high ievel of protection and
improvement of the quality of the environment, the raising of
the standard of living and quality of life, and economic and
social cohesion and solidarity among the Member States." THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY has certain legal rights and
responsibilities. Pursuant to Article 281 of the Tfeaty
establishing THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY,-THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY has
legal persconality. Pursuant to Article 282 of the Treaty
establishing THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY
possesses the most extensive legal capacity accorded to legal
persons under the laws of the Member States, and it may, in

particular, acquire or dispose of property and may be a party to
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legal proceedings. In such instances, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is
represented by the European Commigsion. Pursuant to Article 280
of the Treaty establishing THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY has the duty to counter fraud and any other illegal
activities affecting the financial interests of THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY through measures which shall act as a deterrent and be
such as to afford effective protection in the Member States.
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY has the duty to protect against harm to
the financial institutions and infrastructure within THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY possesses additional
duties and authorities which have either been conferred upon it
by the MEMBER STATES or which it shareé with the MEMBER STATES,
by virtue of treaty and/or law, including but not limited to the
following: (a) The duty and authority to regulate foreign
commerce; (b) The duty and authority to regulate customs
territories, free trade zones, and custome bonded warehouses;
{(¢) The duty and authority to regulate transportation into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY or within its borders; (d) The duty and
authority to ensure and regulate the free movement of goods
within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY; (e} The duty and authority to
regulate safety and security at sea; (f) The duty and authority
to regulate and take action to protect against breaches of THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY Customs Territory or THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY

Customs Border; (g) The duty and authority to regulate and
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assure that foreign goods entering THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY enter
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY with declared values that are accurate;
(h) The duty and authority to regulate and set rules to combat
money laundering; (i) The duty and authority to regulate on
seizure and confiscation of bank accounts and assets and to take
other related actionsg to combat money laundering and other
financial crimes committed against the financial interests of
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES; (j) The duty to
promote throughout the Community a hérmonious, balanced, and
sugstainable development of econqmic activities and to protect
and promote the economic well being of its citizens. THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY has the general duty and the authority to act
to abate any harm to itself or to the general public of THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY within its areas of competence ag set forth
above. Among the legal rights of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is the
right to hold a legal or beneficial interest in property and
receive ﬁoney arising from the sale of tobacco products within
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITYI. Specifically, THE EﬁROPEAN COMMUNITY
and its MEMBER STATES reqguire that the importefs of cigarettes
pay custome duties and value-added taxes (VAT) in connection
with the importation of cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.
These customs duties and the right to receive them are the
property of THE EUROCPEAN COMMUNITY. The value-added taxes, and

the right to receive them, are the property of THE EUROPEAN



COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES. Smuggling is a means of
avoiding these legally required payments and causes injury to
the property of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES.
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is represented in the United States by a
Delegation in Washingteon, D.C. The Delegation has full
diplomatic privileges and immunities, and the Head of the
Delegation is accorded full ambéssadorial gtatus.

(b.) Each of the named MEMBER STATES, Kingdom of
Belgium, Republic of Finland, French Repﬁblic, Hellenic
Republic, Federal Republic of Germany, Italian Republic, Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg, Kingdom of the Netherlands, Portuguese
Republic, and Kingdom of Spain are sovereign States. As such,
each State possesses the legal capacity to acguire, own, or
dispose of property and may be a party to legal proceedings.
Each is a “person” as defined under the applicable United States
law. FEach State has the right to hold a legal or beneficial
interest in property and receive money arising from the sale of
tobacco products within its borders, including value-added taxes
{(VAT) , excisé taxes and a portion of the customs duties which it
collects on behalf of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. Each of these
States is a party to this lawsuit and is represented herein by
and through THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the undersigned counsel.

7. RJR NABISCO, INC. was a Dglaware corporation and,

according to public records, has maintained its principal place



of business at 1301 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York
10019-6013. During relevant times, RJR NABISCO, INC. was the
parent corporation of R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO COMPANY and has
participated in the sale and manufacture of cigarettes and other
tobacco products both individually and through its agent and
instrumentality, Defendant R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO COMPANY, and
related entities and ventures. RJR NABISCO, INC. assumed an
active role in the tobacco business and has treated the tobacco
business as a department or division of RJR NABISCO, INC. At
times pertinent to this complaint, RJR NABISCO, INC.,
individually and through its agents, subsidiaries, diviesions, or
affiliated companies, or ventufeé; materially participated in
the operation and management of RJR's smuggling enterprise, and
materially participated, conspired, assisted, encouraged, and
otherwise aided and abetted one or more.of the other Defendants
in the unlawful and fraudulent conduct alleged herein, all of
which has affected foreign and interstate commerce. Upon
information and belief, based on RJR’s public filings, RJR
NABISCO, INC. , was renamed R.J. REYNQOLDS TOBACCO HOLDINGS, INC.,
a Delaware corporation, and is now a direct, wholly-owned
subsidiary of NABISCO GROUP HOLDINGS CORP. During relevant
timeg herein, RJR NABISCO, INC., has conducted continuous and
systematic business in the State of New York, maintains a

substantial financial presence in the State of New York,
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utilizes officeg of its own and of its affiliated corporations
in New York, and is otherwise subject to the jurisdiction of the
courts in the State of New York.

8. R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO COMPANY is a New Jersey
corporation whose principal place of business is located at 401
North Main Street, Winston-Salem, North Caroclina 27102. At
times pertinent to this complaint, R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO
COMPANY, individually and through its agents, subsidiaries,
divisions, or affiliated companies or ventures, materially
participated in the operation and management of RJR's smuggling
entegprise, and materially participated, conspired, assisted,
encouraged, and otherwisejaided and abetted one or more of the
other Defendants in the unlawful and fraudulent conduct alleged
herein, all of which has affected foreign and interstate
commerce. During relevant times.herein, R.J. REYNOLDS TORACCO
COMPANY conducted continuous and systematic business in the
atate of New York, maintains a substantial financial presence in
the State of New York, utilizes offices of its own and of its
affiliated.corporations in New York, and is otherwise subject to
the jurisdiction of the courts in the State of New York.

9. R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO INTERNATIONAL, INC. is a
Delaware corporation. At times pertinent to this complaint,
R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO INTERNATIONAL, INC., individually and

through its agents, subsidiaries, divisions, or affiliated
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companies or ventures, materially participated in the operation
and management of RJR's smuggling enterprise, and materially
participated, conspired, assisted, encouraged, and otherwise
aided and abetted one or more of the other Defendants in the
unlawful and fraudulent conduct alleged herein, all of which has
affected foreign and interstate commerce. During all felevant
times, R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO INTERNATIONAL, INC. conducted
continuous and systematic business in the State of New York,
maintained a substantial financial presence in the State of New
York, utilized offices of ité own and of its affiliated
corporations in New York, and is otherwise éubject to the
jurisdiction of the courts in the State of New York.

10. RJR NABISCO HOLDINGS CORP. is aHDelaware
corporation whose principal blace of business is 1301 Avenue of
the Americas, New York, New York 10019-6013. During all
relevant times, RJR NABISCO HOLDINGS CORP. was the parent
corporation of RJR NABISCO, INCL On June 14, 1999, RJR NABISCO
HOLDINGS CORP. changed its name to.NABISCO GROUP HOLDINGS CORP.
NABISCO GROUP HOLDINGS CORP. is a Delaware corporation whose
principal place of business ig 7 Campus Drive, Parsippany, New
Jersey 07054-0311.

11. ©On June 14, 1999, RJR NABISCO HOLDINGS CORP.

distributed all of the common stock of its subsidiary, R.J.

12
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REYNOLDS TOBACCO HOLDINGS, INC., to the shareholders of RJIR
NABISCO HOLDINGS CORP.

12. a. During all relevant times, these hplding
corporations participated, directly and indirectly, in the sale
and manufacture of cigarettes and other tobacco products through
their agent and instrumentality Defendant, R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO
COMPANY, and related entities and ventures. These holding
corporations assumed an active role in the tobacco business and
have treated the tobacco business as a department or division.
At times pertinent to this complaint, these holding
corporations, individually and through their agents,
asubsidiaries, divisions, or affiliated companies or ventures,
materially participatéd in the operation and management of RJR's
smuggl ing enterprise, and materially participated, conspired,
assisted, encouraged, and otherwise éided and abetted one or
more of the other Defendants in the unlawful.and fraudulent
conduct alleged herein, all of which hag affected foreign and
interstate commerce. During relevant times herein, these
holding corporations conducted continuous and systematic
business in the State of New York, maintained a substantial
financial presence of thei; own and.their affiliated
corporations in New York, and are otherwise subject to the

jurisdiction of the courts in the State of New York.
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b. The RJR DEFENDANTS are and were, during all
relevant times, involved in directing, managing, and controlling
smuggling operations within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNIT?. At all
times pertinent to this complaint, the RJR DEFENDANTS,
individually and through their employees, agents, joint
venturers, co-conspirators, subsidiaries, divisions, or
affiliated companies, actively directed, managed, and controlled
the RJR smuggling enterprise, and actively participated,
conspired, assisted, encouraged, and otherwise aided and abetted
one or more of the other Defendants in the unlawful and
fraudulent conduct alleged herein, all of which has affected and
continues to affect foreign and interstate commerce in the
United States.

13. The foregoing RJR corporations,‘as well as their
affiliated entities, ventures, and successors, are - and were,
during all relevant times, affiliated, consolidated, combined,
and unitary entities for purpecses of tobacco operations and
related activities. Tobacco operations were departments within
the RJR corporate family. The RJR DEFENDANTS maintain control
of tobacco operations worldwide through a web of affiliated
entities and joint ventures. This corporate structure was an
essential aspect of RJR’s successful efforts to surreptitiously

direct tobacco smuggling in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.
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14. The RJR DEFENDANTS are and were, during all
relevant times, responsible for the acts and omissions of their
employees, for acts undertaken within the general area of their
authority and for the benefit of the RJR DEFENDANTS. As alleged
herein, the RJR DEFENDANTS were central figures in the overall
conspiracy that actively embarked on and extensively
participated in the fraudulent scheme. By means of corporate
poiicies that put RJR DEFENDANTS' resources and strategy at the
heart of the conspiracy, the RJR DEFENDANTS were aggressor
entities that acted to harm the economic interests of the
Plaintiffs.

15. The RJR DEFENDANTS, during relevant times, have
adopted a "worldwide" policy that purports to exercise control
of the activities Qf their employeeé, as well as those of théir
direct and indirect subsidiaries. Under this policy, which is
said to be monitored and enforced by RIJR’s Audit Committee, RJR
DEFENDANTS have undertaken responsibility for the acts of the
employees of the RJR DEFENDANTS, wherever taken, including acts
related to smuggling activities within Europe

16. PHILTP MORRIS INTERNATIONAL, INC. is a Delaware
corporation whose principal place of business is located at 800
Westchester Avenue, Rye Brook, New York.10573. PHILIP MORRIS
INTERNATIONAL, INC. is a subsidiary of PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES,

INC. The Defendant, PHILIP MORRIS INTERNATIONAL, INC., ig a
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citizen of the State of New York. During relevant times, PHILIP
MORRIS INTERNATIONAL, iNC. acted with and through its affiliated
entity and instrumentality, PHILIP MORRIS DUTY FREE, INC.

PHILIP MORRIS DUTY FREE, INC. is a Delaware cotporation with its
principal place of business at 800 Westchester Avenue, Rye
Brook, New York 10573-1301.

17. PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC. is a Virginia
corporation whose principal place of business is located at 120
Park Avenue, New York, New York 10017. The Defendant, PHILIP
MORRIS COMPANIES, INC., is a citizen of.the State of New York.
PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC. is the parent corporation of
PHILIP MORRIS INC. and PHILIP MORRIS INTERNATIONAL, INC. During
all relevant times herein, PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC.
conducted continuous and systematic business in the State of New
York, maintains a substantial financial presence in the State of
New York, utilizes offices in New York, and is otherwise gsubject
to the jurisdiction of the courts in the State of New York.

18. PHILIP MORRIS INCORPORATED, d/b/a “*PHILIP MORRIS
U.S.A.”, a subsidiary of PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC., is a
Virginia corporation with its principal place of business
located at 120 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10017. As such,
the Defendant, PHILIP MORRIS INCORPORATED, is a citizen of the
State of New York. PHILIP MORRIS INCORPORATED conducts business

under the trade name “PHILIP MORRIS U.S.A.” and is engaged,

16
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along with ites subsidiaries and affiliates, in the manufacture
and sale of cigarettes. It is the largest tigarette company in
the United States, and owns seven manufacturing and processing
facilities in the United States.

19. PI—IILII..3 MORRIS PRODUCTS, INC., a subsidiary of
PHTILIP MORRIS INTERNATIONAL, INC., is a Virginia corporation
with its primary place of business at 2001 East Walmsley
Boulevard, Richmond, Virginia 23234. During all relevant times
herein, PHILIP MORRIS PRODUCTS, INC. conducted continuous and
systematic business in the State of New York, maintained a
substantial presence in the State of New York, utilizes offices
in thé State of New York, and is other&ise subject to the
jurisdiction of the courts in the State of New Yorxk.

20. a. The foregoing PHILIP MORRIS corporations, as
well as their affiliated entities, wventures, and successors, are
and were, during all relevant times, affiliated, consolidated,
combined, and unitary entities for purposes of tobacco
operations and related activities. Tobacco operations were
departments within the PHILIP MORRIS corporate family. The
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS maintain control of tobacco operations
worldwide through a web of affiliated entities and joint
ventures. This corporate structure was an essential aspect of
PHILIP MORRIS.DEFENDANTS' successful efforts to surreptitiously

direct tobacco smuggling into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. This
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consolidation was achieved through corporate directives from the
highest levels of PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC., including for
example, a facsimile directive from Geoffrey Bible, sent and
caused to be gent to several PM executives in the 1990’8,
indicating that “PM USA” and “PMI” would work together as one
group in connection with the sale of Marlboro brand cigarettes.

b. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are and were, during
all relevant times, involved in directing, managing, and
controlling smuggliﬁg operations within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.
At all times pertinent to this complaint, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS, individually and through their employees, agents,
joint venturers, co-conspirators, subsidiaries, divisions, or
affiliaﬁed companies, actively directed, managed, and controlled
the PHILIP MORRIS smuggling enterprise, and actively
participated, conspired, assisted, encouraged, and otherwise
aided and abetted one or more of the other Defendants in the
unlawful and fraudulent conduct alleged herein,'all of which has
affected and continues to affect foreign and interstéte commerce
in the United States;

c. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are and were, during
all relevant times, responsible for the acts and omigsions of
their employees, for acts undertaken within the general area of
their authority and for the benefit of the PHILIP MORRIS

DEFENDANTS. As alleged herein, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS
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were central figures in the overall conspiracy that actively
embarked on and extensively participated in the fraudulent
scheme. By means of corporate policies that put PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS' resources and strategy at the heart of the
conspiracy, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were aggressor entities
that acted to harm the economic interests of the Plaintiffs.

d. PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC.-has adopted a
nworldwide" policy that purports to exercise control of the
activities of its employees, as well as those of its direct and
indirect subsidiaries. Under this policy, which is said to be
monitored and enforced by its Audit Committee, PHILIP MORRIS
COMPANIES, INC. has undertaken responsibility for the acteg of
the employees of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, wherever taken,

including acts related to smuggling activities within Europe.
ILI. JURISDICTICN

21. As to the Plaintiffs, the MEMBER STATES,
jurisdiction is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §8§
1331, 1337 because this matter involves allegations of illegal
behavior arising under the laws of the United States, including
violations of RICO. Furthermore, jurisdiction in this Court is
proper pursuant to RICO. 18 U.S.C. §8 1964(a),(c) and 28 U.S.C.

§ 1651(a). The Defendants are “persons” within the meaning of
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18 U.S.C. B 1961(3). As to all Plaintiffs, jurisdiction is
proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332 because the
matter in controversy exceeds the sum or value éf 875,000 .and
involves parties of diverse citizenship. The Plaintiffs are
vpersons” within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961(3). Finally,
this Court may exercige jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ non-

federal claims pursuant to 28 U.S8.C. § 1367 as this Court

possesses both federal question and diversity jurisdiction.

IV. VENUE

22. Venue is propef in this Court pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 1965(a) because Defendants reside, are found, have an
agent, or transact affairs in this District. Venue is élso
proper in this Court pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1965(b) because, to
the extent any Defendant may reside outside of this district,
the ends of justice require such Defendant or Defendants to be
brought before the Court. Venue properly lies in this Court
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) (2). Alternatively, venue is

proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.5.C. § 1391 (a) (2).
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V. THE INTERNATIONAL SMUGGLING SCHEME: OVERVIEW

23. Beginning in the late 1970s and continuing
through the present day, the Defendant corporations, in
conducting one of their primary businesses of selling tobacco
products worldwide, have launched and conducted a consigtent and
concerted campaign to increase their respective market shares in
the countries in which their products are sold.

24, To accomplish this end, the RJR DEFENDANTS and
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have actively engaged in smuggling
activities and concealed such conduct through illegal acts,
including money laundering, wire fraud, mail fraud, and other
violations of United States law. Defendants have controlled,
directed, encouraged, supported, and facilitated the activities
of smugglers. Defendants have collaborated with smmigglers,
encouraged smugglers and, directly and indirectly, sold
cigarettes to persons and entities who they know,.or had reason
to know, were smugglers. By such acts, among others, the
Defendants embarked upon and pursued a scheme to smuggle
cigarettes on a worldwide basis, including into and within THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, in order to deprive the Plaintiffs of money
and property, while increasing the sales of their products,
profits, and market share, and enhancing the wvalue of their

tobacco operations. Once smuggled cigarettes have penetrated
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the border of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, the Defendants and their
co-conspirators exploit the internal free market rules of THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to transfer illicit cigarettes from one
Member State to another. The RJR DEFENDANTS and the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS have engaged and continue to engage in
smuggling schemes in which they collaborate with smugglers and
monéy launderers in Europe, Panamé, the Caribbean, Colombia, and
the United States for the purpose of smuggling cigarettes into
THE EURQPEAN COMMUNITY.

25. By directing, encouraging, supporting,
facilitating, and controlling the activities of the smugglers
engaged in the sale, marketing, and distribution of contraband
cigarettes throughout THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, the Defendants
have achieved multiple benefits for themselves, including but
not limited to the following:

a. The Defendants have increased their cigarette
sales because they have new and additional customers, namely,
the smugglers and their customers.

b. By assisting in the evagion of taxes and duties,
the Defendants have increased their cigarette sales and
otherwise obtained illicit profits.

C. The Defendants have increased their market share
by making their cigarettes available to the general public

within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY at prices below that which could
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be charged by their competitérs whose products are sold lawfully
and, therefore, are more expensive.

d. The Defendants have utilized the existence of
smuggling into North America, Europe, and South America as a
public-relations vehicle and political toel by which to lobby
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the governments of the MEMBER STATES
of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, the.United States Congress, and the
legislatures of the various states of the United States to
reduce or eliminate cigarette taxes under the pretense that high
cigérette taxes promote smuggling and other crimes. PHILIP
MORRIS and RJR took such actions individually, and in concert
under the auspices of groups formed and managed by major tobacco
manufacturers, to block tobacco-related initiatives within THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY including those involving the so-called “duty
free” market. The industry groups included, without limitation:
(a) International Committee on Smoking Issues {(“ICOS8I”) (later
renamed INFOTAR) ; (b) EEC Task Force on Consumerism; (c)
International Duty Free Confederation (“IDFC”); (d)
“Confederation of European Community Cigarette Manufacturers
Ltd.” (“CECCM”); and (e) CECCM’s “Duty Free Study Group” which
was comprised entirely of company representatives, including
PHILIP MORRIS and RJR. As a consequence of Defendants’ direct
and indirect representations to Plaintiffs, governments

worldwide, including the MEMBER STATES and THE EUROPEAN
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COMMUNITY were misled concerning the direct cause of smuggling -
- the Defendants’ conduct. The Defendants employed this
lobbying scheme while denying and concealing their complicity in
smuggling activities.

e. The Defendants have enhanced the market value of
their tobacco operations, while_decreasing the market value of
their competitors.

£. The RJR DEFENDANTS and PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS,
and other tobacco companies worldwide, share a commoﬁ interest
and goal to implement a scheme to promote the activities of
smugglers in that they coordinate their public-relations efforts
and jointly fund their public-relations vehicles as a continuing
joint campaign to achieve greater demand for their cigarettes
worldwide. PHILIP MORRIS and RJR took such actions individually
and in concert under the auspices of groups formed by tobacco
manufacturers to block tobacco-related initiatives within THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY including, for example, the “EEC Task Force
on Consumerism” and the.“Confederation of BEuropean Community
Cigarette Manufacturers Ltd.” The existence of smuggling, as
controlled, directed, encouraged, supported and facilitated by
the Defendants, has constituted the “self-fulfilling prophecyﬁ
that high cigarette taxes will only cause smﬁggling. The
Defendants, through the aforesaid public-relations vehicles,

utilize the data concerning smuggling, the hazards of smuggling,
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and the lost revenues associated with smuggling, as a method by
which to encourage or pressure governments worldwide, including
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES, to reduce or
eliminate their cigarette taxes. The Defendants conduct this
public relations and lobbying campaign without disclosing to the
public or Plaintiffs their continuing complicity in smuggling.

26. Additionally, the RJR DEFENDANTS and the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS individually and/or jointly work in concert
with various distributors whom the Defendants know, or have
reason to know, are large-scale smugglers of cigarettes to
ensure that the Defendants’ objectives as set forth above are
achieved. |

~27.' The RJR DEFENDANTS and the PHILIPF MORRIS
DEFENDANTS, jointly and as individual corporations, control,
direct, encourage, support, promote, and facilitate the
smuggling of cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY in a variety
of ways, including but not limited to the following:

a. The Defendants sell cigarettes directly to
persons or entities they know, or have .reason to know, are
smugglers, or to distributors who they know, or have reason to
know, are selling the cigarettes to smugglers.

b. The Defendants sell large quantities of
cigarettes to entities and/or destinations even though the

Pefendants know, based on their own marketing studies, that the
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legitimate demand for cigarettes from those entities and/or
destinations cannot possibly account for the orders made and the
massive quantities delivered. Under these circumstances, the
Defendants know that their cigarettes are being sold for illegal
purposes.

c. The Defendants knowingly label, mislabel, or fail
to label their cigarettesg 8o as to facilitate and expedite the
activities of the smugglers.

d.  The Defendants provide marketing information to
the distributors and to the smugglers so that the smugglers will
order, purchase, séll, and distribute the cigarettes
manufactured by the Defendants that are in greatest demand in
the area of ultimate consumption of the smuggled cigarettes.

e. The Defendants generate false or misleading
invoices, bills of lading, shipping documents, and other
documents that expedite the smuggling process.

f. The Defendants engage in a pattern of activity by
which they ship cigarettes designated for one port knowing that
in fact the cigarettes will be diverted to another port so as to
be smuggled.

g. The Defendants make arrangements by which the
cigarettes in question can be paid for in such a way as to be

virtually untraceable.
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h. The Defendants make arrangements for the.smuggled
clgarettes to be paid for into foreign accounts including Swiss
corporations and/or Swiss bank accounts in an attempt to
improperly utilize Swiss banking and privacy laws as.a shield to
protect the smugglers from government investigations concerning
their activities.

i. The Defendants have formed, financed, and
directed the activities of industry groups, in order to
disseminate false and misleading information to Plaintiffe and
the public.

j. The mails and wires were used, or were caused to
be used, in the furtherance of the above actions and the
unlawful scheme to defraud Plaintiffs.

28. The Defendants knew.or should have known that
gmugglers were purchasing cigarettes in.large guantities,
either directly or indirectly, in order to smuggle cigarettes
into THE EURQOPEAN COMMUNITY.

29. The Defendants controlled, directed, encouraged,
supported, and facilitated smuggling operations by giving
instructions to distributors, shippers, shipping companies,
retailers, and/or various other intermediaries, as well ag the
smugglers, so as to effectuate the sale of large amounts of

cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.
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30. But for the active assistance of the Defendants,
the smugglers could not have obtained, smuggled, and sold the
large quantities of contraband cigarettes they did successfully
for many years. But for the active assistance of the
Defendants, the proceeds of the smuggling scheme could not have
been laundered and delivered to the Defendants for their use in
the smuggling enterprise.

31. This vertical group, Which consisted of the
Defendants, the distributors, the shippers, the smugglers,
currency brokers, and the Defendants’ agents and subéidiaries
who received payment for the cigarettes, worked together for the
common purpose of depriving Plaintiffs .of money and property and
engaging in a course of conduct to gain massive profits from the
sale of cigarettes that were illegally scld in THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY while harming Plaintiffs’ economic interests. The
activities of this core group constitute a conspiracy in law and

in fact.

RJR’S DIRECT INVOLVEMENT IN SMUGGLING

32. The RJR DEFENDANTS have been actively involved in
cigarette smuggling for many years, and this scheme has been
carried out by means of activities conducted throughout this

District and throughout this State. Examples of the methods and
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means by which the RJR DEFENDANTS have controlled, directed, and
facilitated the smuggling of cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY, directly and through the acts of their co-
conspirators, include the following:

a. The RJR DEFENDANTS, through their emploYee,
Richard Larocca, aﬁd through various other employees, helped to
establish a smuggling network by which RJR cigarettes, and, in
particular, Winston cigarettes, were smuggled into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY, and, more particularly, into Spain. The EJR
DEFENDANTS, through their use of distributors, ship chandlers,
and smugglers, established the routes and mechanisms by which
the cigarettes were smuggled into Europe. Richard Larocca was
specifically recruited by RJR because he was well acquainted
with the market in Spain. Richard Larocca was directed to
increase the Defendants’ market share in Spain by whatever means
necessary, including smuggling. Richard Larocca provided
detailed information to RJR concerning the marketing potential
in Spain for Winston cigarettes that would be transported both
legally and illegally into Spain. Mr. Larocca also provided
marketing information and other pertinent information to the
smugglers so cigarettes could be smuggled'efficiently into
Spain. The aforesaid plan was initiated by all the named RJR
DEFENDANTS and, in particular,_R.J. REYNOLDS_TOBACCO COMPANY,

and R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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b. In 1994, the RJR DEFENDANTS initiated a process
by ﬁhich their executives could receive massive bonuses if they
met specified performance targets. These bonuses could be as
high ag two to three million dollars to an executive who met
certain targets. Motivated by this incentive, these executives
met the marketing targets and received these bonuses by
drastically increasing sales through smuggling. This process
continued for several vyears and,.upon information and belief,
still continues today. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY experienced a
massive surge in smuggling of RJR products in 1996, which on
information and belief was directly as a result of the bonus
program that RJR put into piaée. The aforesaid bonus program
wag initiated by all of the RJR DEFENDANTS and, more
particularly, by RJR NABISCO, INC., NABISCO GROUP HOLDINGS
CORP., R.J. REYNOLDS TOBACCO HOLDINGS, INC., R.J. REYNOLDS
TOBACCO COMPANY, and R.J. REYNQLDS TOBACCO INTERNATIONAL, INC.

C. The RJR DEFENDANTS, through their own personnel
and outside consultants, analyzed the routes by which large
gquantities of RJR cigarettes were Smuggied into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY. From this investigation, RJR was put on notice of
and exploited the smuggling routes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.
For example, the Kingdom of Spain has for many years been a
primary destination for smuggled Winston cigarettes. The

ultimate consumers in Spain demanded cigarettes of the highest
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guality and wanted to be sure that they were receiving authentic
American cigarettes. Additionally, various RJR executives were
paid money by smugglers to insure that these particular
cigarette smugglers would not have other smugglers infringe on
their territories. As the demand for Winstons in Spain
increased throughout the 19908, increased numbers of lesser
quality smuggled Winstons from other sources were being smuggled
into Spain, thereby interfering with the authorized smuggling
that was directed by the RJR DEFENDANTS. In order to offset and
prevent the unauthoriﬁed smugéling, the RJR DEFENDANTS undertook
certain steps. First, they developed a particular presentation
of Winston cigarettes known to the Spanish consumer as
"patanegra." Among other ways, the patanegra.presehtation could
be distinguished from regular Winston cigarettes in that it
contained certain distinctive markings and did not contain a
blue sticker that was found on most Winston cigarettes. The RJR
DEFENDANTS produced the "patanegra" presentation specifically
for their best smuggling customers so as to insure that they
could maintain their competitive advantage over other smugglers
and the RJR DEFENDANTS could increase their market share. The
“patanegra” presentation was developed specifically for the
Spanish market and sold only in Spain.

d. One of the ways by which the “patanegra”

presentation cigarette has been smuggled into Spain is as
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follows: 1large volumes of the “patanegra” presentation were
gold by the RJR office located in Miami, Fiorida. One major
customer for the patanegra Winston cigarettes was a company
known as Copaco located in Panama. Copaco would order the
cigarettes from the office in Miami b& the use of the United
States wires and/or mail. Copaco would pay RJR for the
clgarettes by way of wire transfers and other communications
that involved the use of U.S8. wires and mail. RJR would then
ship the cigarettes from its pioduction facilities in North
Carolina to Capaco. Once the cigarettes were received by
Copaco, the cigarettes would then be reshipped to Rotterdam in
The Netherlands{ In order for the cigarettes to be legélly
shipped from Rotterdam within THE EUROPEAN_COMMUNITY,_it was
necessary for a transgit document to be issued. This document
was known as a "T1l." Several different shippers in Rotterdam
would, for an appropriate price, obtain the necessary transit
documents and would physically ship the cigarettes. In the
early yvears of this practice, large bonds were not required to
insure the delivery of the product to the proper destination.
In those days, the Tl transit document would indicate that the
ultimate destination of these cigarettes was the Canary Islands.
The Winston cigarettes would be delivered by truck from
Rotterdam to Barcelcna and were ﬁhereby smuggled into Spain.

The cigarettes would not go on to the Canary Islands as the
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shipping documents indicated. 1In later years, larger bonds were
required to insure delivery of the product. When this became a
requirement, the shipping procedure was changed. Rather than.
being designated as having a destination of the Canary Islands,
the documents would indicate an ultimate destination of
Yugoslavia or another Eastern European country. The cigarettes
would then be delivered from Rotterdam to Barcelona by truck
where they would be offloaded and sold. The-containefs that had
previously contained the cigarettes were thenlloaded with
another product and the trucks went fromlBarcelona Eo Eastern
Europe carrying the other product. Once the cargo axrived in
Eastern Europe, the transport documents were signed as if the
product had been received in Yugoslavia or another Eastern
European-country. In fact, however, the cigarettes had been
smuggled into Spain.

The aforesaid procedure was well known to and was
encouraged by the RJR DEFENDANTS. Individual RJR executives
charged a kickback of five to fifteen dollars per case in
exchange for their selling these very valuable Winston
cigarettes into the smuggling network. These executives would
further encourage the smugglers and/or their assdciates to buy
more cigarettes and would give them a "discount" on the kickback
if they purchased larger volumes of cigarettes. Through these

procedures, individual distributors such as Copaco would
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purchase and sell up to ten thousand cases of cigarettes per
month. The aforesaid procedure occurred throughout the 1990s
until at least 1999. In the late 1990s, variations on this
smuggling scheme were implemented, including shipments to
Madeira or the Canary Islands. The aforesaid smuggling scheme
could not have occurred without the complicity of the RJR
DEFENDANTS. But for the creation of the “patanegra”
presentation for Spain, this lucrative smuggling could not have
occurred. Similarly, unless the RJR DEFENDANTS provided large
gquantities of cigarettes to their Miami office for sale, the
smugglers in Panama and other parts of the Caribbean would not
have these cigarettes available for purchase and distribution
within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.

e. The RJR DEFENDANTS carefully.controlled and
monitored all the sales of their cigarettes in Spain, both
smuggled and legally sold. Because of the way the RJR
DEFENDANTS mark and label their cigarettes, the RJR DEFENDANTS
identified RJR cigarettes that were in the marketplace and which
were smuggled into the country by persons without the
authorization of the RJR DEFENDANTS. The RJR DEFENDANTS also
identified the distributor from whom those cigarettes were
purchased. The RJR DEFENDANTS control the distribution of
smuggled cigarettes in the marketplace, and require their

distributors to insure that the smuggled cigarettes are
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distributed only in RJR-designated markets. For example, when
the RJR DEFENDANTS detected a large volume of "unauthorized"
smuggled cigarettes on the streets in Spain, the RJR DEFENDANTS
would purchase the entire load of unauthorized RJR cigarettes.
They would then return the cigarettes to the distributor who
gold them, and require the distributor to reimburse the RJIR
DEFENDANTS for the amount that they had paid on the street for
the cigarettes. The distributors would then resell the
cigarettes to a purchaser who would be counted on to smuggle the
cigarettes to an authorized destination. In some instances,
smuggled cigarettes were geized by Spanish authorities. If
these "unauthorized" smuggled cigarettes were seized by
authorities and sold at auction, the RJR DEFENDANTS would
purchase those cigarettes at auction. The RJR DEFENDANTS would
then require the smugglers to reimburse the RJIJR DEFENDANTS for
fifty percent of the price that the RJR DEFENDANTS had paid for
the cigarettes at the auction. This was one of the ways in
which the RJR DEFENDANTS would punish smugglers for smuggling
unauthorized cigarettes into Spain and thereby control the
emuggling market. The RJR DEFENDANTS would then keep those
cligarettes that had been legitimized by their purchase in
auction and sell them in Spain through legitimate vendors. The
markings on the containers allowed the RJR DEFENDANTS to

identify from which smugglers the product had been seized. If a
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gmuggler refused to reimburse the RJR DEFENDANTS the fifty
percent regquired in that situation, the RJR DEFENDANTS cut off
thé supply of cigarettes to that smuggler. Communications
concerning these matters were effectuated through the use of
United States and international wires.

£. The RJR DEFENDANTS solicited contacts with
companies and individuals in Central_America and the Caribbean
that the Defendants knew, or had reason to know, were money
launderers. Upon information and belief, Richard Larocca, in
particular,.established direct relatioﬁships with individuals in
Central America and the Caribbean who he knew, or should have
known, were actively involved in laundering the_prdcéeds of
illicit narcotics sales. Executives and employees of the RJR
DEFENDANTS traveled to the Caribbean and to Central America on
multiple occasions for the purpose of meeting and negotiating
business agreements with individuals who the RJR DEFENDANTS
knew, or should have known, were involved in the laundering of
narcotics proceeds. Additionally, in their attempts to build up
and establish a market for their cigarette products, the RJIR
DEFENDANTS, through their agents and employees, developed
business relationships with individuals in Colombia that the RJR
DEFENDANTS knew or should have known were directly involved in
narcotice trafficking. In or about the early 1990s, bank

accounts in Miami, Florida, owned by wvarious RJR cigarette
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distributors, were frozen by United States law-enforcement
officials because funds credited to those accounts represented
laundered drug money. -The freezing of these accounts was well
known to the RJR DEFENDANTS. By virtue of this event, the RJR
DEFENDANTS were aware or should have been aware that their
distributors had been involved in handling laundered narcotics
proceeds. In spite of the fact that the conduct of these
individuals was known to Richard Larocca and RJR, the RJR
DEFENDANTS actively developed these relationships so as to sell
large volumes of cigarettes to these money launderers. A
substantial portion of the cigarettes purchased by the money
launderexrs was smuggled iﬁto THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. The RJR
DEFENDANTS have long been on notice that cigaiette smuggling
activities are linked to the Black Market Pego Exchange and the
Colombian cocaine smugglers. In or abouﬁ 1994, the National
Coalition Against Crime and Tobacco Contraband, which was funded
by RJR and other tobacco companies, retained Lindquist Avey
Macdonald Baskerville, Inc. ("Lindguist") to, among other things
investigate and analyze cigarette smuggling in the United
States. In its August 15, 1994, report, Linguist bbserved that:
"There are indications that some Colombian cocaine barons still
handle [contraband] cigarettes, but for a different purpose. It
" ig believed, in some cases, they patriate cocaine profits earned

'in the United States through cigarette purchases. These
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cigarettes are imported into Colombia and sold there, providing
cocaine traffickers with a seemingly legai alibi for the source
of their wealth.™"

g. From at least 1991 through 1997, a large
percentage of the cigarettes that were ultimately to be smuggled
was shipped from New York to the Caribbean for distribution into
Europe and South America. In approximately 1991, distributors
for RJR informed RJR that they had received complaints from the
smugglers that the cardboard cases in which the cigarettes were
being packaged were too weak and, as such, the cigarettes were
being damaged. The smuggling of cigarettes is performed in such
a fashion that there is a greater risk of damage to the product
and accordingly the containers for the cigarettes must be made
stronger. In response to this information, RJR_increased the
strength of the cardboard master cases for cigarettes that were
to be directed into the smuggling channels. The strengthened
master cases were shipped by RJR from ports in New York to the
Caribbean at least from 1991 through 1997. Confirmation that
the casesg would be strengthened was made by use of the U.S.
wireg in letters faxed from the RJR offices in Miami to RJR
executives and customers in 1991 and 1992,

h. The RJR DEFENDANTS knowingly and intentionally
shipped large volumes of cigarettes to 1nd1v1duals and

corporations in certain free trade zones such as the Colon Free
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Trade Zone in Panama. These sales were made to companies that
were known smugglers énd/or known money launderers. Although
the ultimate destination of these cigarettes was nowhere near
Panama, RJR shipped these cigarettes directly to Panama so that
the money laﬁnderers could use the secrecy laws of the Republic
of Panama as8 a shield by which to divert the cigafettes to their
ultimate destinations without being scrutinized by the agencies
and governments to which customs duties would be owed on these
cigarettes. A substantial percentage of these cigarettes were
ultimately smuggled into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. The RJR
DEFENDANTS endeavored to conceél the sale of their productsg into
smuggling channels by transferring the cigarettes to several
destinations prior to the ultimate delivery to the final
custemer,

i. From at least October 1995 through April 1997,
the RJR DEFENDANTS knowingly supplied large volumes of
cigarettes to a smuggling group in the United Kingdom that was
in turn smuggling those cigarettes into Spain. One of the
companies involved in the smuggling 6peration was Entire-
Warehousing. Additionally, there were at least six other
related companies that were engaged in a massive cigarette-
smuggling, money-laundering scheme. Through the period from
1995 through 1997, the aforesaid companies smuggled thousands of

cases of cigarettes manufactured by the RJR DEFENDANTS into
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Spain. The RJR DE#ENDANTS sold cigarettes to "distributors" in
Panama and elsewhere with the full knowledge that the true
purchaser of the cigarettes was this smuggling group. The
cigarettes were sold to intermediary "distributors" in Panama
and elsewhere so as to conceal from law-enforcement authorities
the fact that the RJR DEFENDANTS were selling cigarettes to this
smuggling group. The smugglers created false documents so as to
defraud Eurcpean customs officials and create the appearance
that the cigarettes were being exporﬁed to destinations outside
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY such as Morocco. The smugglers, in order
to purchase cigarettes of this large quantity, were required by
RJR to notify the RJR DEFENDANTS of the location to which they
intended to export the cigarettes. The RJR DEFENDANTS, by
virtue of their network of personnel in both Spain and Morocco
knew that the cigarettes were not arriving in or being sold in
Morocco, but rather were being smuggled into Spain for sale in
Spain. In spite of the knowledge of the RJR DEFENDANTS that
these cigarettes were being smuggled into Spain, the RJR
DEFENDANTS continued to sell the cigarettes to the smugglers
and, in fact, encouraged the smugglers to purchase more
cigarettes. The cigarettes in question were manufactured in the
United States, and orders for the cigarettés were placed to the
RJR DEFENDANTS in the United States through the United States

mail and/or wires. Payment for the cigarettes in question was
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made to the RJR DEFENDANTS through the use of the wires and/or
mail.

Shipments that were smuggled into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY through ﬁhe aforesaid scheme include, by way of

example, the following:

Date" Description Purported Actual
Degtination Degtination

1. 11/23/95 1,136 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

2. 11/27/95 1,136 master cases Morocco Spain

' Winston cigarettes '

3. 11/28/95 1,056 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

4. 11/30/95 1,056 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

5. 12/01/95 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

6. 12/04/95 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

7. 12/05/95 1,136 master cases Morocco Spain-
Winston cigarettes

8, 12/06/95 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

9. 1/05/96 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

10. 1/11/96 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

11. 1/19/96 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain

Winston cigarettes
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12. 1/26/96 1,100 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

13. 2/02/96 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

14. 2/12/96 1,150 master cases Morocco . Spain
Winston cigarettes

15. 2/22/96 1,100 master casges Morocco Spain
Wington cigarettes

16. 3/20/96 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

17. 4/30/96 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

18. 5/16/96 1,200 master cases Morocco Spain
Winston cigarettes

J. In order for cigarette smuggling to be conducted
efficiently, certain labeling and stamping must be conducted at
the factory where the cigarettes are produced. Certain
labeling, health warnings, and the language in which the package
is printed have a significant effect on the value of the
cigarettes at their ultimate destination. Also, in order to
smuggle cigarettes into certain nations, tax stamps often are
affixed to the cigarettes at the factory at the time of
packaéing. The RJR DEFENDANTS, on a regular basis, packaged
their products specifically to meet the needs of their smuggling
customers. Additionally, it is a routine practice to attach tax
stamps or, on many occasions, counterfeit tax stamps on the

product at the factory. Had the RJR DEFENDANTS and its agents
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conducted a reasonable inquiry concerning the source and/or
validity of the tax stamps, or had they not chosen to turn a
blind eye to the source and/or validity of the tax stamps, they
would have known that the improper use of tax stamps facilitated
smuggling to the.detrimént of Plaintiffs.

k. Throughout the 19908, the RJR DEFEﬁDANTS were on
notice that their cigarettes were being smuggled into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. One of the RJR DEFENDANTS’ primary agents
for the storage and handling of cigarettes in THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY was a company known as Belgium Pakhoed N.V. On May
26, 1997, Belgium Pakhoed N.V. sent a letter to the RJIR
DEFENDANTS notifying the RJR DEFENDANTS that a substantial
number of the RJR DEFENDANTS' customers were smuggling
clgarettes and were "involved.in major EC-fraud." .Belgium
Pakhoed N.V. went on to tell the RJR DEFENDANTS that in light of
this fraud being conducted by RJR customers, Belgium Pakhoed
N.V. would no longer load cigarettes on to ships operated by
these customers. The response of the RJR DEFENDANTS was not to
cut off its supply of cigarettes to these customers, but rathér
to redirect their supply of cigareﬁtes.to these customers
through the country of Cyprus, which 1s not a member of THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. The RJR DEFENDANTS continue to supply
cigarettes to these customers three years after RJR had been

notified that these customers were involved in EC fraud.
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1. In approximately November 1997, the RJR
DEFENDANTS manufactured, packaged, and sold a shipment of eighty
million cigarettes that were shipped from the RJR facilities in
the United States to Europe by being loading on to ships in
Charleston, South Carolina, and Savannah, Georgia. The RJR
DEFENDANTS had prepared shipping documents indicating that the
cigarettes were destined for a customer in Greece. In fact,
however, the purported customer in.Greece was nothing more than
a store front that the RJR DEFENDANTS knew or should have known
had neither the intention nor the capability of selling the
aforesaid cigarettes.in Greece.. Rather than being delivered to
Greece, the cigarettes were illegally ;ntroduced_into Spain.

The orders for the cigarettes in question were placed to the RJR
DEFENDANTS in their offices in the United States by the way of
the U.S8. wires and/or mail. Shipping documents and other
documentation necessary to consummate the transaction were
transmitted. by the RJR DEFENDANTS by use of the U.S. wires
and/or mail. Bills of lading generated by the RJR DEFENDANTS or
by their agents on their behalf specifically ordered that thefe
be no reference to marks or numbers of the cigareﬁtes.nor any
mention of the brand name of the cigarettes shipped. Documents
‘prepared by the RJR DEFENDANTS or by their agents on their
behalf that were filed with the United States Bureau of Alcohol,

Tobacco and Firearms intentionally misstated the intended
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destination of the cigarettes so as to mislead the Bureau of
Alcochel, Tobaccc and Firearmé.

m. In another incident in April 1997, the RJR
DEFENDANTS manufactured, packaged, sold, and shipped one hundred
twenty million Winston cigarettes. These cigarettes were
packaged and shipped ostensibly to locations outside THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. In fact, however, the clgarettes were
intended to be smuggled into Spain. Approximately twenty-two
million cigarettes were seized by Spanish customs authorities.
Approximately ninety—eight millioh cigarettes were smuggled into
Spain. The RJR DEFENDANTS, by virtue of the method by which
they account for the sales of their cigarettes, knew or had
every reason to suspect that the cigarettes in question were, in
fact, being sold to smugglers. The orders for the cigarettes in
question were placed with the RJR DEFENDANTS in their offices in
the United States by U.S. wires and/or mail. The shipping
documents, billing documents, and other documentation necessary
to consummate the transaction were sent by the RJR DEFENDANTS to
the recipients by way of U.S. wirés and/or mail. When officials
of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY attempted to obtain information from
the RJR DEFENDANTS concerning this shipment of cigarettes, the
RJR DEFENDANTS sent a letter 'to. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and

refused to comply with the request based on an argument that to
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cooperate with THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY would be a violation of
Swiss law.

n. In order to maintain and exercise control of the
smuggling enterprise, the RJR DEFENDANTS, as well as Richard
Larocca and others, required the smugglers to keep logs of their
loads, to keep track of where the loads were delivered, and to
record the price for which the cigarettes were sold. This
allowed the RJR DEFENDANTS to keep direct, hands-on control of
the entire smuggling process. The RJR DEFENDANTS even
threatened smugglers that, if they did not keep préper records
of their smuggling activities, the RJR DEFENDANTS would deal
with.other smuggling customeré.

0. In the mid to late 18908, Vthe RJR DEFENDANTS
iﬁplemented a policy by which they would not sell cigarettes to
any distributor unless the distributor verified to the RJIR
DEFENDANTS exactly who the final customer was. If the
distributor failed to accurately inform the RJR DEFENDANTS who
was to be the ultimate purchaser of the cigarettes, the RJR
DEFENDANTS would either supply no cigarettes at all to the
distributor or would only supply a fraction of the volume
requested by the distributor. The final destination of all RJR
cigarettes sold worldwide was known to the RJR DEFENDANTS.

p- For many years, RJR and other tobacco

manufacturers have conspired, through concert of action, to
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mislead and obstruct efforts within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to
address smuggling and other tobacco-related problems. (i) Upon
information and belief, on January 19 and 20, 1978, PHILIP
MORRIS, RJR, and other manufacturers formed the “EEC Task Force
on Congumerism.” The purpose of the Organizatioﬁ was, in the
worda of its “confidential” minutes, “[t]lo inhibit totally or
partially the activities of the Brussels’ bureaucracy in all
matters concerning tobacco advertising, tobacco distribution and
smoking and health questions.” The organization agreed to
consider the proposal for ™' throwing sand’ in the gears of
Brussels by making use of the differences of opinion and
competences in the different services.” (ii) PHILIP MORRIS, RJR
and others formed and funded the Confederation of European
Community Cigarette Manufacturers Ltd. (CECCM) for the purﬁose,
among others, of representing its members’ public affairs
interests within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. In the March 1995
isgue of its publication.“Equilibrium,” CECCM, acting on behalf
of its members including PHILIP MORRIS and RJR, asserted that
high taxes create an enormous “black market” but failed to
disclose the responsibility of the tobacco companies for the
smuggling problem within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. (iii) The RJR
DEFENDANTS, through the worde and actions of their agents and
employees, falsely represented to the law-enforcement agencies

of various governments, including THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
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MEMBER STATES, that they were attempting to'combét smuggling
when, in fact, they were controlling, directing, encouraging,
supporting and facilitating the smuggling. While concealing
their complicity in smuggling, the RJR DEFENDANTS engaged in a
widespread public-relations campaign condemning *high taxes” as
the cause of smuggling.

qd. In order to direct, control, and facilitate
smuggling, agents and employees of the RJR DEFENDANTS provided
gspecific marketing information to the smugglers, including
specification of which products were in demand and the volume of
cigarettes that was needed to meet the specific demands of the
smugglers’ clients. The smugglers weré also provided by RJR
with pricing information so that they could have a reliable
basis upon which to price their smuggled cigarettes.

r. The RJR DEFENDANTS specifically design and/or
redesign the packaging of their cigarettes so as to make it
difficult for customs officials in various countries to identify
cigarettes that have been smuggled.

8. The RJR DEFENDANTS arranged a process by which
cigarettes purchased by smugglers éould be paid for by payments
into Swiss corporations and/or Swiss bank accounts so as to make
it difficult or impossible for THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to track
the smuggled cigarettes or to track the payment thefefor. The

decision to provide for payment by the smugglers into the Swiss
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accounts was a decision made at an executive level by the RJR
Defendants. In fact, RJR moved the records concerning almost
all their illegal activities worldwide.to Geneva, Switzerland,
so as to escape the surveillance of the governments that are
victimized by RJR’s illegal activities.

t. The RJR DEFENDANTS have, for the past fifteen
vears, had a customer by the name of Michael Haenggi. Mr.
Haenggi publicly admitted in the press that he has frequently
supplied Winston cigarettes to smugglers who would then smuggle
those cigarettes into Spain. Mr. Haenggi has publicly admitted
that in one instance he sold one hundred sixty million
cigarettes to a company in Panama which in turn smuggled those
cigarettes into Spain. He has further admitted that on another
occasion he supplied two hundred twenty million cigarettes to a
company registered in the Caribbean that also smuggled those
cigarettes into Spain. The vast majority of the cigarettes in
both such instances waé manufactured by the RJR DEFENDANTS. The
RJR DEFENDANTS, to this date, continually supply cigarettes to
Mr. Haenggi, even though he has openly admitted that at least
part of his purchases from the RJR DEFENDANTS is for the purpose
of sale to smugglers. In the transactions between the RJR
DEFENDANTS and Mr. Haenggi, the RJR DEFENDANTS utilized the mail
and methods of wire communication on a regulér basis for the

purpose of expediting the ordering of cigarettes, shipment and
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delivery of cigarettes, verification of delivery, payment, and
verification of payment for the cigarettes sold as a part of the
enterxprise.

u. The RJR DEFENDANTS have had dealings with
individuals in Spain who they knew or shouid have known were
identified by Spanish legal authorities as being involved in
narcotics trafficking. For several yéars, one particular
individual was a major customer of the RJR DEFENDANTS in that he
purchased large quantities of RJR clgarettes and smuggled them
throughout Spain. During all or part of the tihe.the individual
was smuggling cigarettes, he was also suspected of narcotics
trafficking by Spanish law enforcement- officials. The alleéed
involvement of this individual in narcotice trafficking was
known to the RJR DEFENDANTS or would have been known to them but
for their blind indifference in that this individual had had
several publicized bouts with the law-enforcemeht agencies in
Spain in regard to his alleged narcotics trafficking. In the
most recent incident in October 1999, he escaped from law-
enforcement authorities just as they were preparing to arrest
him on a hashish-smuggling charge.

v. The RJR DEFENDANTS entered into an understanding
or agreement, express or tacit, with their distributors,
customers, agents, consultants, and other co-conspirators, to

participate in a common scheme, plan or design to commit
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tortious acts and thereby smuggle contraband cigarettes into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. In pursuance of the agreement, RJR and
PHILIP MORRIS formed, managed, and directed the affairs of
several groups including, without limitation: (a) International
Committee on Smoking Issues (“ICOSI”); (b) EEC Task Force on
Consumerism; (c¢) International Duty Free Confederation (“IDFC”);
(d) “Confederation of European Community Cigarette Manufacturers
Ltd.” (“CECCM”); and (e) CECCM’'s “Duty Free Study Groupﬁ which
was comprised entirely of company representatives, including
those of PHILIP MORRIS and RJR. RJR and PHILIP MORRIS, acting
through the aforesaid groups, obstructed government oversight
and represented to Plaintiffs and the public that the cause of
the “black market” was high taxes when, in féct, it was the
conduct of the tobacco companies, inciuding PHILIP MORRIS and
RJR, that was the direct cause of the “black market” and
Plaintiffe’ injuries. PHILIP MORRIS’ and RJR’s joint, false
representations in the furtherancé of the congpiracy concealed
their involvement in smuggling operations and misled Plaintiffs,
and such conduct constituted, among other things, fraud,
negligent misrepresentation, unjust enrichment, public nuisance,
and negligence, thereby causing harm to Pléintiffs, all as
alleged above. Also in pursuance of the agreement, the RJR
DEFENDANTS and their distributors, customers, agents,

consultants, and other co-conspirators acted tortiously by,
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among other things, committing the aforesaid acts constituting
fraud, negligent miérepresentation, unjust enrichment, public
nuisance, and negligence, thereby causing harm to Plaintiffs.
The RJR DEFENDANTS, through joint action with their co-
congpirators, acted tortiously, recklessly, unlawfully, and
negligently, to the detriment of Plaintiffs. By means of the
aforesaid concerted action, the RJR DEFENDANTS and their co-
conspirators are jointly and severally liable for the torts and
other wrongful conduct alleged herein. The RJR DEFENDANTS were
conspirators and direct participants in the affairs of the
smuggling enterprise, and each participant in the conspiracy is
responsible for the actions of the others in pursuit of the
smuggling scheme. Acting for the benefit of the RJR DEFENDANTS
and with the knowledge and authorization of high-ranking
corporate executives of the RJR DEFENDANTS, the RJR DEFENDANTS,
acting in concert with and through their conspirators, agents,
and employees, carried out.the foregoing activities to
facilitate the smuggling scheme.

w. .The acts and omigsions of the individuals
employed by the RJR DEFENDANTS are imputed to the RJR DEFENDANTS
under the doctrines of wvicarious liability and respondeat
superior. The.RJR DEFENDANTS actually benefited from the
performance of predicate acts through increased sales, profits,

name-brand recognition, and market share.
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X. The RJR DEFENDANTS and their employees were
central figures and aggressors in the fraudulent scheme, and RJR
personnel, including Richard Larocca and other RJR executives,
performed their fraudulent acts on behalf of the RJR DEFENDANTS
within the scope and course of their employment with RJR. The
officers and directors of the RJR DEFENDANTS, including.RJR
Chairman Steven F. Goldstone, had knowledge of, or were
recklessly indifferent toward, the unlawful activity. For
example, in 1998 and 1999, RJR’s shareholders proposed
regolutions for consideration at the RJR annual meeting that put
the RJR board of directors on-actual notice that RJR was
facilitating cigarette smuggling and was doing business with
notorioué smugglers;'however, the RJR DEFENDANTS did nothing to
end RJR’s involvement with smuggling.

V. The RJR DEFENDANTS are liable under principles of
agency. Each of the RJR DEFENDANTS is responsible for the
conduct of its supervisory employees, including Richard Larocca,
who had either intentionally disregarded the law or had acted
with plain indifference or willful blindness to its
requirements.

Z. During all relevant times, the RJR DEFENDANTS
communicated with each other and with their co-conspirators on
virtually a daily basis, by means of interstate and

international wires, as a means of obtaining orders for
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cigarettes, arranging for sale and shipment of contraband
cigarettes, and arranging for and receiving payment for the
cigarettes in question. Under principles of congpiracy and
concert of action, the RJR DEFENDANTS are jointly and geverally
liable for the actions of their co—coﬁspirators in the
furtherance of the smuggling scheme.

aa. The RJR DEFENDANTS and their co-conspirators
utilized the interstate and international mail and wires, and
other means of communications, to prepare and transmit documents
that intentionally misstated the ultimate destination of the
cigarettés in question so as to mislead the authorities within
the United States and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY in regard to the
actual destination of cigarettes that are transported into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY., THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and. its MEMEBER
STATES, including the Kingdom of Belgium, Republic of Finland,
French Republic, Hellenic Republic, Federal Republic of Germany,
Italian Republic, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, Kingdom of the
Netherlands, Portuguese Republic, and Kingdom of Spain,
reasonably relied on said misrepresentations of fact in
accounting for the cigarettes in question and asseésing customg
duties and taxes on cigarettes entering THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY,
and were and continue to be damaded by such reliance.

bb. The Defendants, their subsidiary corporations,

and their co-congpirators use the mail and telephonic and other
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wire forms of communication on a daily basis to bill and pay for
the smuggled cigarettes, confirm billing and payment for the
smuggled cigarettes, to account for the payment of the smuggled
cigarettes to the Defendants and their subsidiaries, and to
maintain an accounting of the proceéds received by the
Defendants from the sale of the illegal cigarettes, with said
proceeds ultimately being returned to the Defendants in the
United States.

ce. The Defendants’ co—conspirators, the distributors
and smugglers, utilize the wmail and wire communications on a
continuing basis in order to determine marketing strategies,
order cigarettes, arrange for sale of the cigarettes, arrange
for distribution of cigarettes, arrange for payment of
cigarettes, and to support other aspects of the smuggling
gcheme.

dd. In that the illegal sale of cigarettes into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is a multi-million dollar per year operation
and is ongoing on a daily basis, it is impractical and
impossible, in advance of discovery, to delineate each and every
fraudulent communication in what i1s a pervasive and ongoing use
of the mails and wires in furﬁherance of the smuggling
activities. By conducting some of their activities in countries
known for bank secrecy, the RJR DEFENDANTS have taken

affirmative steps to prevent the victims of their fraud and
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illicit conduct from discovering the exact detalls of the vast
number of wire and mail communications that were incidental to
central aspects of the scheme, including orders for contraband
tobacco products, and repatriation of the proceeds of the
smuggling scheme to the United States.

ee. The RJR DEFENDANTS, in addition to using the mail
and wire communications themselves, caused the mailing and use
of wire communications in that they acted with knowledge that
the ugse of the mail and/or wire communications would follow in
the ordinary course of business and/or could be reasonably
foreseen as a result of their activities; and the mailing or use
of wire communications was for the purpose of ekecﬁting the
agcheme, té wit, the smuggling activities. Thé aforesaid mail
aﬁd wire transmissions furthered the scheme and were essential
to the scheme in that the aforesaid communications were
necessary for the co-conspirators, who were separated by great
distances and national borders, to effectuate their common goals
within the smuggling enterprise.

ff. The Defendants routinely shipped c¢igarettes to
customs bonded warehouses and/or free trade zones in THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and filed or caused the filing of false and
fraudulent documents which represented to THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY
and the MEMBER STATES that the cigarettes would be shipped out

of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY so that no duties or taxes would be
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paid. In fact, pursuant to the Defendants’ smuggling scheme,
the cigarettes remained in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY illegally or
were temporarily removed from THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY for the
purpose of subsequent re-introduction into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY without the proper payment of customs duties and
taxes. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES reasonably
relied upon said false documents to their detriment.

gg. The Defendants filed or caused the filing of
falge and fraudulent documents which misstated the value of
cigarettes in order to expedite the ultimate smuggling of the
aforesaid cigarettes-into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. THE EURCPEAN
COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES reasonably felied upont said
false documents to theilr detriment.

hh. Once smuggled cigarettes have penetrated the
border of THE EURCOPEAN COMMUNITY, the Defendants and their co-
conspirators exploit the internal free market rﬁles of THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to transfer illicit cigarettes from one
Member State to another without detection and without the

payment of proper taxes.

PHILIP MORRIS’ DIRECT INVOLVEMENT IN SMUGGLING

33. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have been actively

involved in cigarette smuggling for many years, and this scheme
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has been carried out by means of activities conducted throughout
this District and throughout this State. Examples of the
methods and means by which the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have
facilitated the smuggling of cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY include the following:

a. The PHILIF MORRIS DEFENDANTS have, for several
years, sold Marlboro cigarettes to an individual known asg Corado
Baianchi. Mr. Baianchi has openly admitted to the press that hé
has sold PHILIP MORRIS cigarettes to smugglers so that those
cigarettes could be smuggled into Italy. In spite of Mr.
Baianchi’s public admission that he has been a conduit between
the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and smugglers for the distribution
and sale of contraband cigarettes in Western Europe, upon
information and belief, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS continue to
sell cigarettes to him, even though he has admitted that at
least part of his purchases from the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS is
for the purpose of sales to smugglers. Andrew Reitman, the
gsenior vice-president for PHILIP MORRIS’ subsidiary in Europe,
has acknowledged that PHILIP MORRIS does, in fact, know that its
cigarettes are being sold as contraband by smugglers into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. In their transactions between the
Defendants and Mr. Baianchi, the Defen&ants utilized the mail
and methods of wire communication on a regular basis for the

purpose of expediting the ordering of cigarettes, shipment and
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delivery of cigarettes, verification of delivery, payment, and
verification of payment for the cigarettes sold as a part of the
enterprise.

b. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS created a circuitous
and clandestine distribution chain for the sale of cigarettes in
order to facilitate smuggling within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.

The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS own, either wholly or partially,
and/or operate and/or license facilities in the United States
that produce Marlboro cigarettes and other brands ownéd by
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS. These cigarettes are produced both
for domestic consumption and for export. The cigarettes
produced for export bear distinctive markings as being United
States tax exempt and specifically produced for export. These
Marlboro cigarettes are then sold to affiliated or wholly owned
distributors in Belgium and in other countries which, in turn,
sell the cigarettes to distributors in Europe and also to
distributors in the Caribbean and Central America who then
return the cigarettes to Europe. The purpose of this
labyrinthian distribution structure is to sell, or cause the
sale, to distributors that are known smugglers or business
associates of smugglers within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, while
concealing such sales from government authorities. The decision
to establish and maintain this distribution chain was made at

the highest executive levels of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS.
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c. In approximately 1997, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS restructured international gsales operations such that
the vast majority of all cigarettes, both legal and smuggledf
sold into Europe, Central and South America were routed through
Belgium. Ports and warehouse districts of Belgium were selected
because they were difficult for customs officials to monitor.

By routing billions of dollars of cigarettes through p¢rts in
Belgium, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS éncouragéd the development
of a system by which those ports became a center for smuggling
activity. Employees of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS visited the
docks and warehouses in Belgium on a regular basis for the
purpose of meeting customers, maintaining customer'relations,
and promoting the sale of new products. By virtue of their
presence at these facilities and by virtue of the discussions
that they had on a routine basis, the employees and management
of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were well aware of the high
level of smuggling activity surrounding the distribution and
sale of their product.

d. The illegal sale of cigarettes has become one of
the primary vehicles by which drug smugglers launder their
illicit profits. PHILIP MORRIS has become a_prime recipient of
this business. Money brokers routinely purchase large volumes
of PHILIP MORRIS cigarettes with money that represents the

proceeds of illicit drug sales. Representatives of PHILIP
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MORRIS know or should know the source of these funds and yet
continue to receive these funds and to sell cigarettes to these
persons.

e. The smuggling activities of the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS have enabled drug lords to launder their illicit.
profits. Narcotics-generated proceeds supply funds for the
movement of billions of dollars worth of smuggled U.S. and
foreign goods, including cigarettes, throughout the world,
including THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. In short, what starts out as
drug currency on the streets of U.S. cities ends up as smuggled
goods, including cigarettes, on the streets of Western Europe.
Representatives of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are on actual
notice thét the source of funds used to purchase their
cigarettes is drug traffickiné, yet they continue to receive
these funds and to sell cigarettes to these persons. By reason
of thig conduct, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS aid, abet and act
in concert with drug lords to launder their ill-gotten gains.
The Defendants have long been on notice that cigarette smuggling
activities are linked to money laundering. In or about 1994,
the National Coalition Against Crime and Tobacco Contraband,
which was funded by RJR and other tobacco companies, retained.
Lindquist Avey Macdonald Baskerville Inc. (“Lindguist”) to,
among other things, investigate and analyze cigarette smuggling

in the United States. 1In its August 15, 1994, report, Lindquist
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observed that: “There are indications that some Colombian
cocaine barons still handle [contraband] cigarettes, but for a
different purpose. ‘It is believed that, in some cases, they
patriate cocaine profits earnea in the United States through
cigarette purchases. These cigarettes are imported into
Colombia and sold there, providing cocaine traffickers with a
gseemingly legal alibi for the source of their wealth."

£. In or about the early 1990s, Miami bank accounts
of various PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS’ cigarette distributors were
frozen by United States law-enforcement officials because funds
credited to those accounts were laundered drug money. The
freezing of these accounts was well known to PHILIP MORRIS. By
virtue of this event, among others, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS
were aware or should have been aware that their distributors
were handling proceeds of unlawful acti&ity.

g. Since at least 1991, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS
were selling cigarettes to individuals whom they knew were
reputed drug smugglers. As of'1994, court records that were
available to the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS demonstrate that one
of those individuals had actually told U.S. government
informants that hé was involved in drug trafficking.
Specifically, he had told U.S. law-enforcement agents that he
was involved in the "pool system" of drug trafficking whereby he

would combine his load of drugs with those of other drug dealers
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into a single large shipment destined.for the United States. He
went on to explain that individual traffickers in the United
States received the drugs and sold them for U.S. currency. The
traffickers would then deliver the cash to couriers approved by
the drug lords who would convert the cash into cashier's checks
made payable to specific businesses owned by this individual.
The businesses to which these drug funds were delivered are
identified by name in the court documents. Accordingly, the
fact that this individual was a drug trafficker and the identity
of the companies that he used to launder money were known or
should have been known to the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS. In
gpite of this fact, the PHILIP MORRIS'DEFENDANTS continued to
sell large volumes of cigarettes to this individual so that he
could smuggle them.and use those sales to launder drug money .

h. Employees of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were
personally involved in international travel to receive proceeds
of the smuggling scheme, which aided in the'laundering of the
proceeds of illicit narcotics sales.

i. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have had long-term
relationships with various agents and distributors in Central
America and the Caribbean. It is publicly known that some of
these agents and distributors héve'been invesgtigated and/or
indicted by the United States for money laundering. When the

PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS became aware that their agents or
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distributors were accused of illegal activities, the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS did not sever their relationships with the
agents or distributors. Instead, they established a secretive
and circuitous route by which they could sell cigarettes to
thogse entities without detection by law enforcement. For the
past several years and, upon information and belief, continuing
to the present time, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have
implemented a policy and procedure by which certain customers
were required to purchase cigarettes only by ordering them
through remote offices such as one in Uruguay. Usually, orders
may be placed to such an office only verbally over the
telephone. Often, any form of written communication with such
an office is prohibited. When cigarette orders are placed
through such an.offiée, they are passed on to Maraval, a compaﬁy
based in Basel, Switzerland. The agents and distributors must
pay Maraval for the cigarettes. Delivery of the cigarettes is
arranged by another company called Weitnauer, also based in
awitzerland. = The sole purpose of this convoluted procedure for
secret orders, secret payments, and secret delivery of
cigarettes was and is to conceal from law enforcement the fact
that the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were knowingly selling their
cigaréttes to distributors who were selling cigarettes into
smuggling channels which reachéd; among other places, THE

BEUROPEAN COMMUNITY. However, in spite of this ostensibly arms’-
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length transaction, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS actually
controlled the sale of all cigarettes sold by these agents and
distributors, including those that were sold for smuggling.
Even as to smuggled cigarettes, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS set
a price for which cigarettes must be sold. If the agents,
distributors, or smugglers did not sell the cigarettes for the
prices set by the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, then these
Defendants took punitive action against the agents,
distributors, and/or smugglers. The requirement by the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS that orders to the remote offices not be in
writing is a further attempt by PHILIP MORRIS to conceal its
involvement in illegal activities. A.substantial portion of the
cigarettes purchased through the aﬁoresaid procedure were
smuggled into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. |

J. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS had long-standing
relationships with several of their distributors. The PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS expedited the smuggling of cigarettes through
these distributors in two ways. First, when a price increase
for product was imminent, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS would
advance order huge volumes of cigarettes at the old, lower price
such that the favored distributors would receive the benefit of
the old pricing, thereby increasing their profits.
Additionally, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS would grant

exceptionally favorable financing terms to these distributors.
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For example, whereas most purchasers would be required to pay
for their cigarettes in cash upon delivery, certain distributors
were allowed financing plansg that allowed thgm sikty to seventy-
five days to pay for the cigarettes. When one takes into
account the total delivery time for cigarettes, this sixty to
seventy-five day grace period allowed these distributors to keep
two to three times more cigarettes in the "pipeline" than would
be possible if payments were in cash upon delivery of the
cigarettes. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS granted these
favorable financing arrangements to these distributors so as to
maximize the amount of cigarettes that was available for sale
into and through smuggling chénnels.

k. PHILIP MORRIS has met with,_difected, and
entertained their so-called “tax free customers” in the United
States. For example, in October 1990, PHILIP MORRIS invited
their major customers, including those involved in smuggling, to
a conference in Scottsdale, Arizona called “Arizona 20.” Senior
members of PHILIP MORRIS management coordinated and attended the
conference, including: Marc S. Goldberg, Senior Vice President
of PHILIP MORRIS COMPANIES, INC. and Hal Quick, Director, Duty
Free Sales, PHILIP MORRIS INTERNATIONAL. The meeting was
coordinated through the use of interstate and foreign wires
and/or mails. At the conference, and at other times, PHILIP

MORRIS aided and actively promoted the actions of smugglers by
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providing detailed information concerning PHILIP MORRIS’ Latin
America Marketing Task Force; PM USA New Product Initiatives;
Regional Strategic Objectives; and PM INTERNATIONAL Marketing
Overview.

1. The executives of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS
intentionally created a circuitous route by which the majority
of cigarettes which are purchased for sale in Eurdpe or South
America must be paid for in Switzerland and are shipped from
large warehouses used by PHILIP MORRIS in Belgium or other
European countries. PHILIP MORRIS’ primary purpose for this
circuitous distribution system was to make it more difficult for
investigators to‘distinguish between legitimately and
jllegitimately sold cigarettes and to make it difficult or
impossible for legal authorities to track the payment for the
cigarettes and the ultimate destination of the cigarettes. The
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS knowingly engage in this practice
because they derive enormous financial benefit from their sales
of cigarettes to smugglers. Also, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS
achieve maximum market penetration and maximum market share by
dumping billions of contraband cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and other markets at prices substantially below the
price at which legitimately sold cigarettes can be sold. 1In the
early 1990s, distributors who wished to sell Marlboro cigarettes

to smugglers could order the cigarettes and have them shipped
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directly from Richmond, Virginia, to the offshore distributor.
However, beginning in approximately 1997, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS, in an attempt to conceal their relationships with
the digtributors and the smugglers, established a more
circuitous route by which the cigarettes would be shipped to
Antwerp and delivered to Weitnauer. The cigarettes would then
be trucked from Antwerp to Rotterdam. The cigarettes would then
be shipped from Rotterdam to the distributor where they would
often be shipped back to THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, Payment for
the cigarettes would then be made to Mataval. In spite of the
fact that the routing of the cigarettes now included the
involvamenﬁ of two additional companies and in spite of the fact
that the'distange over which the cigarettes must be transported
wag drastically increaséd, the distributors were subjected to no
price increase. The markups, handling charges, and additional
shipping expenses were absorbed by the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS
so that they could insure that the flow of their cigafettes into
the target countries would continue as intended and that there
would be no reduction of market sharé associated with a price
increase. The strategic plan for the scheme set forth above was
developed by all the named PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and, in
particular, by the Defendants PHILIP MORRIS INTERNATIONAL, INC.,
PHILIP MORRIS PRODUCTS, INC., and PHILiP MORRIS INCORPORATED,

d/b/a PHILIP MORRIS U.S.A.
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m. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS knowingly and
intentionally shipped large volumes of cigarettes to individuals
and corporations in certain free trade zones such as the Colon
Free Trade Zone in Panama. These sales were made to companies
that were known smugglers and/or known money launderers.
Although the ultimate destination of these cigarettes was not
Panama, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS shipped these cigarettes to
Panama so that the money launderers could use the secrecy laws
of the Republic of Panama as a shield by which to divert the
cigarettes to their ultimate destinations without being
scrutinized by the agencies and governments to whom customs
duties would be owed on these cigarettes. A substantial
percentage of these cigarettes was ultimately sﬁuggled into THE:
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. Shipments of this type occurred throughout
the 1990s. Shipments of this type continue until the present
day. 1In order for the smuggling scheme to operate, the
cigarettes must be packaged and labeled appropriately and
shipping documents must be prepared for presentation to the
various governmentsg of the countries where the cigarettes are
sent. The packaging and labeling of the products in question
and the preparation of the aforesaid documents are arranged by
the Defendant, PHILIP MORRIS PRODUCTS, INC., from its offices in

Richmond, Virginia.
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n. Throughout the 19%0s and continuing into the year
2000, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS continued to knowingly sell
cigarettes to smugglers, or distributors who sell to smugglers,
and have gone to great lengths to conceal this fact from the
various law enforcement agencies and customs agencies around the
world charged with the monitoring of cigarettes sales. For
example, throughout 1999 and into the year 2000, the PHILIP
MORRTS DEFENDANTS on numerous occasions notified prosecutors and
customs officials within the governmeﬁt of Panama that there is
currently no authorized dealer in the Colon Free Trade Zone in
Panama for the tobacco products of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS.
However, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS continue to sell their
products to persons in the Colon Free Trade.Zone and conceal
these éctivities. For example, on January 17, 2000, Philip
Morris World Trade S.A., an instrumentality of the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS, s=old 440 cases of Marlboro and Marlboro Lights
cigarettes to Weitnauer Services Ltd. of Basel, Switzerland.
The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS claim to have no knowledge of where
the cigarettes went after they were sold to Weitnauer. However,
in fact, the delivery note reflecting the delivery of those
cigarettes was faxed by way of U.S. wire to one Marco Shrem, in
the Colon Free Zone. Marco Shrem is the owner of a company in
the Free Zone calledrMarksman Latin America S.A. In spite of

the fact that the confirmation of the sale was sent to Mr.
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Shrem, Weitnauer ostensibly did not sell the cigarettes to Mr.
Shrem or to any company of which he is an officer. Rather,
Weitnauer ostensibly sold the cigarettes to a company called
Interduty Free Tulcan for delivery to a warehouse in Antwerp,
Belgium. Interduty Free Tulcan ostensibly shipbed the
cigarettes to Interduty Free Panama Inc., located in Panama.
However, that notice of shipment included notification to a
company known as J. F. Hillebrand, U.S.A., Inc., located in
Hollywood, Florida. The bills of lading and other pertinent
documents relative to this shipment were delivered to Hillebrand
U.S.A., Inc. by way of the U.S. wires énd/or mails on or about
February 17, 2000. The cigaréttes in question were ostensibly
destined for Ecuador and the declarations of commercial movement
indicate that the cigareﬁtes should have been shipped through
the Panama Canal without being offloaded and delivered straight
to Ecuador. However, when the cigarettes arrived in Panama,
they were offlcaded and placed in a warehouse without the proper
declarations being prepared. As a result of the illegal
unloading of the cigarettes, the cigarettes were seized by
Panamanian customs authorities. At the time Panémanian customs
authorities seized the cigarettes, they discovered_Marco Shrem's
employees removing the numbers and markingé from the cases of
Marlboro cigarettes. Even though all documents indicate that

the cigarettes are the property of Interduty Free Panama Inc.,
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Marco Shrem has appeared before the Panamanian customs authority
with documentary proof from the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS that
the cigarettes belong to him and to Marksman Latin America S.A.
Because the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS provided proof that the
cigarettes belonged to Marksman Latin America S.A., tha
cigarettes were eventually released to that company. They were
then, under the watchful eye of Panamanian customs authorities,
soid to individuals who it is believed took them to Colombia.
Because the cigarettes in question were seized, it is not
possible to know the intended destination of these cigarettes
had they not been seized. However, shipping regords relative to
Marksman Latin America S.A. demonstrate that a large portion of
the products purchased and sold by this company are smuggled
illegally into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. The PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS indisputably have knowledge as to the true buyer of
the cigarettes by virtue of the fact that the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS sent the pertinent delivery documents to Marco Shrem.
The knowledge that the cigarettes were being sold into smuggling
channels is demonstrated by the aonvoluted prodess by which the
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS sold the cigarettes so as to conceal
the identity of the ultimate purchaser from law-enforcement
agencies.

o, The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS made arrangements by

which smugglers and those who distributed to smugglers could pay
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for their cigarettes in Switzerland so as to avoid detection of
these payments. In fact, PHILIP MORRIS has moved the records
concerning many of its illegal activities worldwide to
gwitzerland so as to escape the surveillance of the governments .
which are victimized by PHILIP MORRIS' illegal_activities.

p. For many years, PHILIP MORRIS and other tobacco
manufacturers have conspired, through concert of action, to
miglead and obstruct efforts within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to
address smuggling and other tobacco-related problems. (i) Upon
information and belief, on January 19 and 20, 1978, PHILIP
MORRIS, RJR, and other manufacturers formed the “EEC Task Force
on Consumerism.? The purpose of the organization was, in the
words of its “confidential” minutes, “[t]o inhibit tqta11y or
partially the activities of the Brﬁssels‘ bureaucracy in all
matters concerning tobacco advertising, tobacco distribution and
smoking and health questions.” On that date, the organization
agreed to consider the proposal for ' throwing sand’ in the
gears of Brussels by making use of the diffefences of opinion
and competences in the different services.” (ii) PHILIP MORRIS,
RJR and others formed and funded the Confederation of European
Community Cigarette Manufacturers Ltd. (CECCM) for the purpose,
among others, of representing its members'.public affairs
interests within TﬁE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. In the March 1995

issue of its publication “Equilibrium,” CECCM, acting on behalf
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of its members including PHILIP MORRIS and RJR, asserted that
high taxes create an enormous “black market" but failed to
disclose the responsibility of the tobacco compahies for the
smuggling problem within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. (iii) In
addition, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, through the words and
actions of their agents and employees, falsely represented to
the law-enforcement agencies of various governments, including
the United States and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, that they were
attempting to combat smuggling when, in fact, they were actively
supporting smuggling. While concealing their complicity in
smuggling, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS engaged in a widespread
public-relations campaign, carried out through use of the mails
and the wires, condemning “high taxes” as the cauée of
smuggling. This campaign was and continues to be part of a
long-term corporate policy carried out by, among others, PHILIP
MORRIS’ External Affairs Group, which sought to “minimize excise
taxes and governmental interference in the production and
marketing of cigarettes.” In or about 1522, PHILIP MORRIS used
the interstate and intefnational wires to circulate a corporate
policy entitled: “External Affairs, Protecting Trademark
Equities, 1993-1997." in order to;minimize taxes and obstruct
government oversight, PHILIP MORRIS implemented its plan to
wupdate and develop studies that illustrate the problems of

cross-border sales/bootlegging.” (iv) In approximately 1999, the
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PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS entered into written agreements with
one or mdre MEMQER STATES of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY wherein the
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS promised that they would take a variety
of steps to combat smuggling into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. The
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS executed these agreements so as to
deceive THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES into
believing that the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were not involved in
the smuggling and that the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS would, in
fact, help combat the smuggling. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its
MEMBER STATES justifiably relied upon the written
representations by the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS that they would
help combat smuggling, and thereby incurred economic harm.

d. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS specifically design
and/or redesign the packaging of their cigarettes so as to make
it difficult for customs officials in various countries to
identify cigarettes that have been smuggled.

r. In order for cigarette smuggling to be conducted
efficiently, certain labeling and stamping must be conducted at
the factory wheré the cigarettes are produced. Certain
labeling, health warnings, and the language in which the package
is printed have a significant effect on the value of the |
cigarettes at their ultimate destination. Also, in order to
smuggle cigarettes into certain countrieg, tax stamps often are

affixed to the cigarettes at the factory at the time .of
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packaging. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, on a regular basis,
packaged their products specifically to meet the needs of their
smuggling customers. Additionally, it is a routine practice to
attach tax stamps or, on many occasions, counterfeit tax stamps
on the product at the factory. A reasconable inquiry as to the
gsource of the tax stamps, by the'PHILIP MORRIS Defendants and/or
their licensees, or a reasonable examination of counterfeit tax
stamps would easily reveal that the cigarettes in question are
being purchased for smuggling purposes. However, the Defendants
and/or their licensees knowingly affix improper stamps to their
cigarettes or willfully turn a blind eye to the issue of
counterfeit stamps so as to maximize the illicit sale of ﬁheir
products.

g. Throughout the 195%0s, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS have facilitated and controlled smuggling activities
by means of the fixing of prices on smuggled cigarettes
throughout the worid. The fixing of prices is essential to
maintaining the Defendants' control over the smuggling operation
inaschh ag unrestrained distribution of low-cost contraband
could undercut PHILIP MORRIS’ sales of the relatively small
amounts of legally imported tobacco products. A conspiracy
between the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and another tobacco
manufacturer to fix prices on smuggled cigarettes began at a

meeting at the John F. Kennedy International Airport in Queens,
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New York, on February 14, 1992. That meeting was attended by
Peter Schreer and Fred Hauser, representing the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS. At that meeting, to the best knowledge of the
Plaintiffs, PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and the other manufacturer
met for the first time to set forth a strategy to coordinate
their price fixing and coordinate smuggling of their respective
brands. At that meeting} it was agreed that Ehere would be
future meetings. This meeting, as well as others among these
parties, was arranged and conducted through the Defendants' use
of the interstate and/or foreign wires and mails inasmuch as it
wae the custom and practice of Defendants to coordinate
schedulihg of, and make arrangements and_reservations for, such
meetings through use of the wires and mails shortly before the
time of the meeting, and to circulate the minutes of the
meetings through the mails and/or facsimile wire transmissions
shortly after the time of the meeting.

t. As a consequence of the meeting at John F.
Kennedy Internatienal Airport in February 1992, a follow-up
meeting was held on August 5, 1992, between representatives of
the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and representatives of another
cigarette manufacturer. At that meeting, the PHILIP MORRIS
representatives discussed not only a pricenfixing scheme for
legally sold cigarettes, but also a price-fixing scheme for

smuggled cigarettes. The minutes of that meeting specifically
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refer to the setting of a price on “DNP” cigarettes. “DNP”
stands for “duty not paid” and is the industry euphemism for
smuggled cigarettes. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS'
representatives who attended and directed this meeting were
Peter Schreer, Pregident of the Laﬁin—American Region foxr PHILIP
MORRIS, Rafael Arguelles, Vice-President for thé Latin-American
Region for PHILIP MORRIS, and ﬁred Hauser, Vice-President fbr
Central America, Puerto Rico, and Domiﬁican Republic for PHILIP
MORRIS. This meeting was arranged by the participants through
the use of the U.S. wires and/or mails including communications
between Peter Schreer in New York and other individuals on June
18, 1992. In fact, agreements between the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS and other manufacturersg on price-fiking_of cigarettes
continued throughout the 1990s in spite of the féct that it was
known by these Defendants that price fixing was illegal.' In
that a substantial percentage of the cigarettes sbld to
distributors and smugglers in Central and South America are
ultimately smuggled into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, the aforesaid
pricing-fixing agreement had the effect of fixing prices for
cigarettes that were ultimately smuggled into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY. Similar coordination and agreements.between the.
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and other cigarette companies exist to
control the prices of smuggled cigarettes throughout the world,

including into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.
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u. From at least October 1995 through April 1997,
the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS knowingly supplied large volumes of
cigarettes to a smuggling group in the United Kingdom that was
in turn smuggling cigarettes into the MEMBER STATES of THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, including Portugal. One of the companies
involved in the smuggling operation was Entire Warehousing.
Additionally, there were at least six other related companies
that were engaged in a massive cigarette—smuggling, money-
1aundering'scheme. Through the period 1995 through 1997; the
aforesaid companies smuggled thousands of cases of clgarettes
manufactured by the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY . The_PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS sold cigarettes to
distributors with the full knowledge that the true purchaser of
the cigarettes was this smuggling group. The smugglers created
false documents so as to defraud customs officials and create
the appearance that the cigarettes were being exported to
destinations outside THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, such ag Morocco,
Mozambique, and Angola. In fact, however, the cigarettes were
smuggled into MEMBER STATES of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, including
Portugal. The smugglers, in order to purchase cigarettes of
this large guantity were réquired to notify the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS as to the location into which they intended to
distribute the cigarettes. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, by

virtue of their network of personnel in Europe and Africa knew
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that the cigarettes were not arriving in Africa, but rather were
being smuggled into the MEMBER STATES of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.
In spite of the knowledge by the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS that
these cigarettes were being smuggled into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS continued to sell the
cigarettes to the smugglers and, in fact, encourage the
smugglers to purchase more cigarettes. A substantial percentage
of the cigarettes in qﬁestion was manufactured in the United
States, and orders for the cigarettes were placed with the
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS in the United States through the United
States wire and/or mails.

Shipments smuggled into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY

through the aforesaid scheme include, by way of example, the

following:
Date Degcription Purported Actual
Destination Destination
1. 1/10/96 300 master cases Morocco Spain
Marlboro cigarettes
2. 1/12/96 200 master cases Morocco 'Spain
Marlboro cigarettes
3. 1/17/96 50 master cases Morocco Spain
Marlboro cigarettes
4. 2/16/96 300 master cases Morocco 4 Spain
Marlboro cigarettes

5. 4/18/96 600 master cases Morocco Spain
Marlboro cigarettes -
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6. 4/25/96 500 master cases Morocco Spain
Marlboro cigarettes

7. 5/29/96 425 master cases Morocco Spain
Marlboroc cigarettes

225 master cases Morocco Spain
Merit cigarettes

8. 5/30/96 425 master cases Morocco Spain
Marlboro cigarettes

225 master cases Morocco Spain
Merit cigarettes

9. 7/15/96 425 master cases Morocco Spain
Marlboro cigarettes

200 master cases Morocco Spain
Merit cigarettes '

100 master cases Morocco Spain
Philip Morris cigarettes.

V. The Defendants routinely shipped cigarettes to
customs bonded wareheuses and/or free trade zenes in THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and filed or caused the filing of false and
fraudulent documents which represented to THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY
and the MEMBER STATES that the cigarettes would be shipped out
of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY so that no duties or taxes would be
paid. In fact, pursuant to the Defendants’ smuggling scheme,
the cigarettes remained in TﬂE-EUROPEAN COMMUNITY illegally or
were temporarily removed from THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY for the
purpose of subsequent re-introduction into THE EUROPEAN

COMMUNITY without the proper payment of customs duties and
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taxes. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES reasonably
relied upon said false documents to their detriment.

w. The Defendants filed or caused the filing of
false and fraudulent documenté which misstated the value of
cigarettes in order to expedite the ultimate smuggling of the
aforesaid cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. THE. EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and the Member States reasonably relied upon said
false documents to their detriment.:

X. Once smuggled cigarettes héve penetrated the
border of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, the Defendants and their co-
conspirators exploit the internal free market rules of THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to transfer illicit cigarettes from one
Member State to another withéut detection and without the
payment of proper taxes. 7

34. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS entered into an
understanding or agréement, express or tacit, with its
distributors, customers, agents, consultants, and other co-
conspirators, to participate in a common scheme, plan or design
to commit tortious acts and thereby smuggle contraband
cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY..In pursuance of the
agreement, PHILIP MORRIS and RJR formed, managed, and directed
the affairs of several groups including, without limitation: (a)
International Committee on Smoking Issues (“ICOSI”); (b) EEC

Task Force on Consumerism; {c) International Duty Free
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Confederation (“IDFC”); (d) “Confederation of European Community
Cigarette Manufacturers Ltd.”-(“CECCM”); and {e) CECCM’'g “Duty
Free Study Group” which was comprised entirely of company
represéntatives, including those of PHILIP MORRIS and RJR.

PHILIP MORRIS and RJR, acting through the aforesaid groups,

obstructed government oversight and represented to Plaintiffs

and the public that the cause éf the “black market” was high
taxes when, in fact, it was the conduct of the tobacco
companies, including PHILIP MORRIS and RJR, that was the direct
cause of the “black market” and Plaintiffs’ injufies. PHILIP
MORRIS’ and RJR’s joint, false representations in the
furtherance of the conspiracy concealed their involvement in
smuggling operations and misled Plaintiffs, and such conduct
constituted, among other things, fraud, negligent
misrepreséntation, unjust enrichment, public nuisance, and
negligence, thereby causing harm to Plaintiffs, all as alleged
above. Also in pursuance of the agreement, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS and their distributors, customers, aéents,
consultants, and other co-conspirators acted tortiously by,
among other things, committing the aforesaid acts constituting
fraud, negligent misrepresentation, unjust enrichment, public
nuisance, and negligence, thereby causing harm to Plaintiffs.
The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, through joint action with their

co-conspirators, acted tortiously, recklessly, unlawfully, and
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negligently, to the detriment of Plaintiffs. By means of the
aforesaid concerted action, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and
their co-cénspirators are jointly and severally liable for the
torts and other wrongful conduct alleged herein.

a. PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were conspiraﬁdrs and
direct participants in the affairs of the smuggling enterprise,
and each participant in the conspiracy is responsible for the
actions of the others in pursuit of Ehe smuggling scheme.
Acting for the benefit of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and with
the knowledge and authorization of corporate executives of the
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, acting
with and through their'conspirators, agents, and employees,
carried out the foregoing activities to facilitate the smuggling
gcheme.

b. The acts and omissions of the individuals
employed by the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are imputed to the
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS under the doctrines of vicarioué
liability and respondeat superior. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS
actually benefited from the performance of predicate acts
through increased sales, profits, name-brand reéognition, and
market share. The PHILIP MORRIS:DEFENDANTS and their employees
were central figures and aggressors in the fraudulent scheme,
and PHILIP MORRIS personnel and executives performed their

fraudulent and other illegal acts on behalf of the PHILIP MORRIS
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DEFENDANTS within the scope and course of their employment with
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS.

C. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are liable under
principles of agency. Each of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS is
responsible for the conduct of its supervisory employees who had
either intentionally disregarded the law or had acted with plain
indifference or willful blindness to its requirements.

d. During all relevant times, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS communicated with each other and with their co-
congpirators on virtually a daily basis, by means of interstate
and international mails and wifes, as a means of obtaining
orders for cigarettes, arranging for sg}e and shipment of
contraband cigarettes, and arranging for and receiving payment
for the cigafettes in question. Under principles of conspiracy
and concert of action, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are jointly
and severally liable for the actions of their co-conspirators in
the furtherance of the smuggling scheme.

e. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and/or their co-
conspirators utilized the United States and international mails
and wires, and other means of communications, to prepare and
transmit documents that misstated the ultimate destination of
the cigarettes in guestion so as to mislead the authorities
within the United States and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY in regard to

the actual destination of cigarettes that are transported into
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Europe. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES, including
the Kingdom of Belgium, Republic of Finland, French Republic,
Hellenic Republic, Federal Republic of Germany, Italian
Republic, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, Kingdom of the Netherlands,
Portuguese Republic, and.Kingdom of Spain, reasonably relied on
said misrepresentations of fact iﬁ accounting for the cigarettes
in question and assessing customs duties and taxes on cigarettes
entering THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and
the MEMBER STATES were damaged as a reéult of such reliance.

f. The Defendants, their subsidiary corporations,
and their co-conspirators use the United States mail and
telephonic and other wire forms of communication on a continual
basis to bill and pay for the smuggled cigarettes, confirm
billing and payment for the smuggled cigarettes, to account for
the payment of the smuggled cigarettes to the Defendants and
their gubsidiaries, and to maintain an accounting of the
proceeds received by the Defendants from the sale of the illegal
cigarettes, with said proceeds ultimately being returned to the
Defendants in the United States.

g. The Defendants’_co—conspirators} the distributors
and smugglers, utilize the United States mail and wire
communicationg on a continuing basis in order to determine
marketing strategies, order cigarettes, arrange fof gale of the

cigarettes, arrange for distribution of cigarettes, arrange for
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payment for cigarettes, and to support 6ther aspects of the
smuggling scheme.

h. In that the illegal sale of cigarettes into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is a multi-million dollar per year operation
and is ongoing on a daily basis, it 1s impractical and
impossible to delineate each fraudulent communication in what is
a pervasive and ongoing use of the mails and wires in
furtherance of the smuggling activities.

i. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, in addition to
using the mail and wire communications themselves, caused the
mailing and use of wire communications in that they acted with
knowledge that the use of the mail and/or wire communications
would follow in the ordinary course of business and/or could be
reasonably foreseen as a result of their.activities; and the
mailing or use of wire communications was for the purpose of
executing the scheme, to wit, the smuggling activities. The
aforesaid mail and wire transmissiong furthered the scheme and
were incidental to an essential part of the scheme in that the
aforesaid communications wére necessary for the co-conspirators,
who were separated by great distances, to effectuate their_
common goals within the smuggiing enterprise.

j. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have used, and
continue to use, the wires, mails, and the Internet to further

their scheme to defraud Plaintiffs and deprive them of money and
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property, while attempting to conceal their complicity in the
smuggling scheme.

The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have falsely denied their
complicity in smuggling activities. (i) The PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS falsely denied involvement in smuggling, and claimed
that.the smuggling was "unfairly" conducted by "someone who
carries [Phiiip Morris] products." Létter from Elizabeth Cho,
gpokesperson for PHILIP MORRIS INTERNATIONAIL, INC., to the
Center for Public Integrity, Washington, D.C., sent by facsimile
transmission in late January or February 2000; (ii) The PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS falsely anncunced: "We will not condone,
facilitate or support contraband or money laundering," but
failed to digclose that the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS controlled,
directed, and profited from smuggling activitiés for many years.
Letter from Elizabeth Cho, spokesperéon for PHILIP MORRIS
INTERNATIONAL, INC., to the Center for Public Integrity in
washington, D.C., sent by facgimile transmission in January or
February 2000.

k. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have falsely stated
that smuggling was and is outside of their control.
Specifically, in or about January or February 2000, the PHILIP
MORRTS DEFENDANTS asserted that "anti-contraband" efforts were
‘the responsibility of "customs administration, border security

forces or the law enforcement departments" of other countries,

88



@ @
but failed to disclose that the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are and
have been engaged in distribution to the “black market,” and
that the Defendants have control over such-distribution. Letter
from Elizabeth Cho, spokesperson for PHILIP MORRIS
INTERNATIONAL, INC., to the Center for Public Integrity in
Washington, D.C., sent by facsimile transmission in January or
February 2000.

The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have falsely asserted
that they have cooperated with governmental efforts to en&
smuggling. In or about January 2000, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS falsely asserted that they "have been actively
involved in supporting governments' anti-contraband programs in
many countries around the world."'The Defendants failed to
disclose that the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are and have been
engaged in distribution to the *black market” iﬁ THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and elsewhere, and that thé Defendants have done all
they can to undermine governmental efforts to end smuggling.
Letter from Elizabeth Cho, spokesperson for PHILIP MORRIS
INTERNATIONAL, INC., to Center for Public Integrity in
Washington, D.C., sent by facsimile transmission in January or
February 2000.

1. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have falsely stated
that smuggling is éaﬁsed by high taxes. In or about January or

February 2000, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS falsely asserted
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that smuggling results from "extremely high.levels of taxation"
and "in some cases, trade restrictione." The Defendants failed
to disclose that smuggling was caused by the practices and
policies of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS. The Defendants
further failed to disclose that the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are
and have been engaged in distribution to the “black market.”
Letter from Elizabeth Cho, spokespexrson for PHILIP MORRIS
INTERNATIONAL, INC., to the Center for Public Integrity in
Washington, D.C., sent by facsimile transﬁission in January or
February 2000,

m. PHILIP MORRIS adoéted a corporate plan to use the
“problem of éontraband” as a tool to reduce or neutralize taxes
and thereby enhance income. On June 8, 1994, PHILIP MORRIS
announced that its principal, core strategy for its so-called
“EEC Region” for the periéd 1995 through 1997 was to
“Reduce/neutralize excise tax threats to gréwth/IFO.” “"IFQY is
believed to be an acronym for.“income from operations.”
Moreover, PHILIP MORRIS adopted, as part of its Five Year Plan
(1994-1998) for its EEC Region, the goal of minimizing the
“incidence” of taxation. In that Plan, PHILIP MORRIS stéted
that “[o]ver the long-term, our efforts will focus on lobbying
to obtain specific tax restructuring by highlighting the social
and fiscal problems with contraband.” Through “lobbying” within

THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, PHILIP MORRIS uSed a “problem” of its
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own creation -- contraband -- to enhance income, while
concealing that it was the root causé of the “problem” and
falsely representing that the “problem” was not its
responsibility.

n. In the 19%0’sg, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS
destroyed documents related to its so-called "tax-free
cusﬁomers" and thereby concealed PM’s direct involvement in and
promotion of smuggling activitieé. -Frdm November 29, 1988, to
December 3, 1988, Geoffrey Bible of PHILIP MORRIS convened a
geries of meetings.in Boca Raton, Florida, in order to take
aggressive action against perceived'threats_to PHILIP MORRIS
tobacco business worldwide. The meetings culminated in the
creation of the so-called “Boca Raton Action Plan.” A key
component of the plan was the “Documeﬁt Retention Plan” which,
as PHILIP MORRIS’ own documents show, was a plan to “retire”
documents with dispatch. The program was implemented through
actions of PHILIP MORRIS INTERNATIONAL taken at its offices at
120 pPark Avenue in New York City. PHILIP MORRIS’ international
legal staff, including Bradley Brooks in New York and Steve
Parrish in Switzerland, was responsible for. the implementation
of the program, which included regional education programs
conducted by PM International, as well as the creation of a task
force, led by PHILIP MORRIS’ top lawyer, Murray Bring, to

develop a policy for all operating companies. In the aftermath
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of the program’s implementation and pursuant to company-wide
policy, PHILIP MORRIS destroyed many boxes of documents relevant
to thig action. PHILIP MORRIS’ own records show that in the
1990’g, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS destroyed recdrds,
including correspondence and order files, related to “Zeinal,”
“Mansur Trading” and others - all entities that PHILIP MORRIS
has openly described as its “tax-free” customers. By further
example, on one day alone (January 8, 19%91), PHILIP MORRIS,
pursuant to an order telecopied to PM's Supervisor of Records
Management, destroyed at least 43 cartons of documents related
to export sales, including documents described as: (a) “Duty
Free Sales,” (b)“Mansur Trading Freezone Shipments/Corr, Misc,”
(¢) “Mansur Trading Freezone Shippments (sic) & Misc.,” and (d)
Salas Int’l.” PHILIP MORRIS’ destruction was directly authorized
at the highest corporate levels, including through multiple
orders from Fred Hauser at PM’s headquarters in New York to PM’'s
document storage facility in Carlstadt, New Jersey. In addition
to such destruction, according to PHILIP MORRIS’ employee’s
handwritten notes, PHILIFP MORRIS files were also “gent to
Ecuador,” such as the delivery of 11 files to Ecuador pursuant
+o the authorization of Fred Hauser, which order was confirmed
by facsimile transmission from Carlstadt, New Jersey to PHILI?

MORRIS-New York on March 27, 1991. The document “retirement”

program has continued in the 1990’s inasmuch as PHILIP MORRIS
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informed *“records coordinators” and “information systems
departments” throughout the company that there was no duty to
gsuspend disgposal of documents relating to the sale of tobacco
products intended for sale outside the United States. Upon
information and belief, based on published reports concerning
PHILIP MORRIS, the company has acted to “destroy” and “bury” PM
documents since the 1970’'s. The document purges at PHILIP
MORRIS, including removal of documents to Ecuador; were
effectuated through the use of interstate and international
wires, and are evidence of PHILIP MORRIS’ direct involvement
with smugglers and its attempts to conceal such involvement.
PHILIP MORRIS’ actions and policies have impeded-Plaintiffs’
ability‘to plead the full extent of the fraudulent scheme.

35, a. RJR's gsmuggling enterprise, which is an
association-in~fact, has generated hundreds of millions of
dollars in illegal profits for the RJR DEFENDANTS., A large
portion of these illegal profits is returned to the Defendants
in their offices and facilities in the United States. The RJR
DEFENDANTS received the income and proceeds of the smuggling
scheme, and used and invested such income and proceeds, or a
portion thereof, to acquire an interest in, establish, and -

- operate the smuggling operation.
b. PHILIP MORRIS’ smuégling enterprise, which is an

association-in-fact, has generated hundreds of millions of
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dollars in illegal profits for the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS. A
large portion of these illegal profits is returned to the
Defendants in their offices and facilities in the United States.
The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS received the income and proceeds of
the smuggling scheme, and used and invested such income and
proceeds, or a portion thereof, to acquire an interest in,
establish, and operate the smuggling operation.

36. The smuggling of cigarettes has become such a
major activity that criminals in both the United States and in
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY have become actively involved in these
activities. The Defendants knew or consciously avoided
knowledge and/or should have known that the illegal smuggling
activitieé that the Defendants are supporting are being
conducted by and/or are of benefit to said criminals. For
example, (a) RJR’'s chairman, Steven Goldstone, has acknowledged
that “organized crime is already deeply into the cigarette
smuggling business, and that Russian, Middle Eastern and Asian
organized crime groups are also involved” and “‘are involved in
firearms and narcotics trafficking{ alien smuggling, aﬁd other
illegal activities.’” (b) Mr. Goldstone has also acknowledged
the'dangerous methods by which the “black market” for tobacco
operates: “Organized criminal enterprises immediately invest in
a comprehensive, sophisticated infrastfucture for illegal

distribution. Ships are chartered; tractor-trailers are leased;
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warehouses are procured in and around the major retail markets.
* % * For retail distribution, the organizations turn first to
street gangs that already exist here, just like they did in
Europe. The gang members who sell marijuana find the cigarette
business more profitable and less risky. The gangs begin by
selling it on street corners, subway exits and around school
yards. * * * The illegal market becomes so efficient and rqbust
that every thief sees a pack of cigarettes as ready cash.
Thieves start breaking into stores just to steal cigarettes.
The stores need armed guards at night to prevent break-ins.
Trucks transporting legitimate product do become like Brinks
trucks, with armed guards riding shotgun to prevent hijacking.”
In fact, since the time of Mr. Goldstone's statements,
the situation has become much worse. In the first few months of
2000, at least two Italian revenue agents (Guardia di Finanza)
have been murdered by cigarette smugglers who were caught in the
act of smuggling the cigarettes manufactured by the Defendants.
Throughout Europe, cigarettes and narcotics are routinely
smuggled together, and the incidence of violence associated with
the smuggling of cigarettes is rising rapidly. High—ranking
executives of RJR and PHILIP MORRIS knew or reasonably should
have known.that their tobacco products were being sold to and
through notorious smugglers through dangerous means, and failed

to act with reasonable care to investigate and abate the
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smuggling activities or otherwise act to prevent the damage to
Plaintiffs. ’

37. All the aforesaid activities occurred with both
the knowledge and the direction of persons at both middle
management and high-level management positions within the
Defendant corporations. The vast majority of the cigarettes
that are utilized in this enterprise are shipped from the United
States. The vast majority of the activities of thé RJR
Defendants that are the subject matter of this complaint,
including management decisions, and direction of the enterprise
are conducted by the Defendants in the_Unifed States and, more
particularly, from the Defendants’ offices in the State of New
York. The vast majority of activities of the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS that are the subject matter of this complaint,
including management decisions, and direction of the enterprise
are conducted by the Défendants in.the United States and, more
particularly, from the Defendants’ offices in the State of New
York.

38. The majority of the conduct of the Defendants
which iz material to this case is conducted by the Defendants in
the United States. There is a substantial effect experienced in
the United States and in this district as a result of the

enterprises that are the subject matter of this complaint

because:
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a. This District, and its transportation facilities,
have been used by the Defendénts as a springboard for
transnational smuggling activities, and it was at JFK
International Airport that the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and
another tobacco manufacturer agreed to fix prices on smuggled
cigarettes.

b. The Defendants receive, and have received, the
profits and proceeds of.said enterprises in the United States,
and such funds have been repatriated to this country through
money laundering and other acts of concealment, all of which
threaten the integrity of the United States financial system.

c. The smuggling scheme is used to aid and abet the
conduct of narcotics traffickers in the United States. The U.S.
Treasury Departﬁent has described the Black Market Peso Exchange
as perhaps the most dangerous money laundering scheme ever
encountered, and the proceeds of narcotics transactions on the
streets of this country are laundered through the purchase of
cigarettes, which in turn are smuggled abroad;

d. The United States and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY have
recognized by international conventions that it is in their
mutual interest to bring an end to transnational smuggling
gschemes, and the Defendants’ conduct contravenes the vital

public interest in stemming such illicit conduct.

97




® ®

e. The smuggling scheme is carried out through acts of
wire fraud and mail fraud, and such conduct harms the United
States’ interest in preventing schemes carried out through the
U.S. telecommunications system and postal system.

f. Large volumes of falge documents have been filed
with the United States Customs Service and the Bureéu of
Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms so as to deceive the United States
Customs Servicé and the Bureau ofIAlcohol, Tobacco and Firearms
and allow the smuggling to continue.

g. The smuggling schemes are intertwined with
organized crime in New York City. Some of the largest and most
dangerous cigarette/narcotics smugglers iﬁ the world reside and
conduct business in the Eastern District of New York. The
Defendants have long been on notice that cigarette smuggling
activities are conduéted by organized crime, including
operations in Brooklyn and Queens. In or about 1994, the
National Coalition Against Crime and Tobacco Contraband, which
was funded by various tobacco companies including RJR, retained
Lindgquist Avey Macdonald Baskerville Inc. ("Lindquist") to,
among other things, investigate and analyze cigarette smuggling
in the United States. In its.August 15, 1994, report, Lindquist
observed that "New York investigators also found that the
Russian mob was active in cigarette smuggling in Brooklyn" and

"there are at least four bootleggers. . . serving.
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communities in Brooklyn and Queens." Furthermore, certain
individuals who work and reside in the Eastern District of New
York have established a multi-million dollar industry within the
Eastern Districﬁ of New York for the laundering of the proceeds
of illegal cigarette sales. Millions of dollars worth of real
estate have been purchased within the Eastern District of New
York as a means of laundering money that is the proceeds of
illegal cigarette sales.

h. The existence of smuggling has been utilized as a
public-relations and lobbying tool by which the Defendants have
conspired to prevent the United States and the individual states
of the United States from raising cigarette taxes by threatening
that increased taxes will lead to smuggling aﬁd the related
economic problems that have haunted othér countries for-the last
ten years. The Defendants and other cigarette companies provide
funding for organizations such as the National Coalition Against
Crime and Tobacco Contraband that purports to be a citizens
group aimed at reducing crime by legitimate means when, in fact,
it is nothing more than a public—relations and lobbying front
for the tobacco industry.

i. A large percentage of the banking and financial
records which are relevant to this case are in the possession of

Citibank in New York. The records in question are either stored
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in or accessed through Citibank's processing center in Queens,

New York.

j. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and RJR DEFENDANTS
entered into an understanding, express or tacit, to take actions
to cause the smuggling of contraband cigarettes into THE |
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and obstruct government efforts to address
the problem of smuggling. In pursuance of the agreement, the
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and the RJR DEFENDANTS, acting in
concert with other cigarette companies, funded “front”
organizationg and promoted public-relations and political
initiatives so as to represent to the Plaintiffs and the public
that the cause of the “black market” wasg high taxes, when, in
fact, the conduct of the tobacco companies, including the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS and RJR DEFENDANTS, was a direct cause of the
“hlack market” and the Plaintiffs’ injuries. The joint, false
representations by the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and RJR
DEFENDANTS in the furtherance of the conspiracy concealed their
involvement in smuggling operations and misled the Plaintiffs,
and such conduct constituted, ambng other things, fraud,
negligent misrepresentation, unjust enrichment, public nuisance,
and negligence, thereby causing harm to the Plaintiffs, all as
alleged above. As to all of the predicate acts set forth
herein, they share the same purpose and the same victims, to

wit, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES, including the
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Kingdom of Belgium, Republic of Finland, French Repﬁblic,
Hellenic Republic, Federal Republic of Germany, Italian

Republic, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, Kingdom of the Netherlands,

Portuguese Republic, and Kingdom of Spain.

VI. CONTINUING DAMAGE TO THE PLAINTIFFS AND COMPELLING NEED FOR

INJUNCTIVE AND EQUITABLE RELIEF

39; The Plaintiff, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, exists for
the purpose of promoting the stability and economic welfare of
its MEMBER STATES. As a result of the‘activities of the |
Defendants, large amounts of cigarettes have been amuggled into
THE EURO?EAN COMMUNITY, and the proper duties and taxes have not
been paid on the aforesaid cigarettes. As a result of the
Defendants’ wrongful activities, the Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY, including its MEMBER STATES, have been deprived of
the money and property that they would have obtained from the
lawful importation and sale of cigarettes, and Defendants have
secured vast profits and proceeds from their illegal scheme.
This money and property includes, but is not limited to the
following: (a) Customs duties that are levied exclusively for
the benefit of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. A portion of said
customs duties is retained by the Member States pursuant to the

own resources decisions of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY as ratified by
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all the Member States. (b) Value-added tax levied on cigarettes.
This tax is2 shared between THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its Member
States. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY has the legal authority to-seek
the compensation for loss of the value-added tax on behalf of.
itself and the Member States. The.interésts sought, to wit; the
value-added tax, are germane to THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY'S
purpoge. In addition, the Kingdom of Belgium, Republic of
Finland, French Republic, Hellenic Republic, Federal Republic of
Germany, Italian Republic, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, Kingdom of
the Netherlands, Portuguese Republic, and Kingdom of Spain have
been deprived of the money and property that they would have
obtained from the excise taxes that would have been paid on the
cigaretﬁes in question absent the wrongful activities of the
Defendants and their co-conspirators. Also, the MEMBER STATES
have guffered an injury to business and property in that they
have been reguired to contribute additional funding to THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to make up for shortfalls in THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY’s budget which have occurred as a result of the non-
payment of customs duties and VAT taxes on the smuggled
cigarettes in question. In addition, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY has
suffered additional economic and non-economic injury including
but not limited to the following:

a. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY has been required to expend

substantial funds to fight against cigarette smuggling. Said
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expenditures include the creation and mannihg of a Cigarette
Task Force whose function is to combat the cigarette smuggling
perpetrated by these Defendants and their co-conspirators.
Money is expended by THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY for the purpose of
funding the Task Force, assisting enforcement actions against
cigarette smuggling, conducting meetings intended to qombat
cigarette smuggling, and other functions.

b. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY has a Customs Terriﬁory and
a Customs Border separate and apart from the borders of the
MEMBER STATES. The violation of that Border and that Territory
by smuggling activities violates the legal rights and
responsibilities of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, threatens the
gsafety, security, and well-being of governmental personnel and
property within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, and interferes with and
damages the purpose and the regulatory system and authority of
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.

c. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is charged with a duty to
promote throughout the Communit? a harmonious, balanced, and
sustainable development of economic activities and to protect
and promote the economic well being of its citizens. The
smuggling of cigarettes and associated money laundering disrupt
the legitimate trade and markets within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY,
damage the economic viability of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, and

cause harm to the financial institutions and infrastructure
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within THE EUROPQ COMMUNITY, all of whiCh% EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY is bound to protect; and otherWise cauge severe harm
to THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its citizens as well as the MEMBER
STATES. |

d. The cigarette smuggling, money laundering, and
related criminal activities affront and infringe upon THE.
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY’s duties, responsibilities, and legal
authority, and inhibit the ability of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to
prevent harm to the financial institutions and infrastructure
within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.

e. The cigarette smuggling and related criminal
activity undermine the purpose of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY in that
said activities inhibit the free circulation of goods within THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and otherwise damage the internal market
which THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is bound to protect.

£. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY provides at its expense a
marketplace without internal frontiers which inures to the
benefit of all commercial enterprises which operate within the
borders of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. It_is this marketplace which
makes the sale of products such as cigarettes more expeditious
and profitable. The Defendants, in smuggling cigarettes into
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and moving said products freely within
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY without the payment of duties and taxes,

make illicit use of this marketplace to their economic benefit
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and to the economic detriment of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES. |

g. The cigarette smuggling, money laundering, and
related criminal activities substantially inhibit the capacity
of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to execute its duties to regulate
foreign commerce, regulate customs territories, free trade
zoneg, and customs bonded warehouses, regulate transportation
into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY or within its bordéfs, regulate the
free movement of goods within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, regulate
safety and security at sea, regulate and take action to proteét
against breaches of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY Customs Territory or
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY Customs Border, combat money launderihg;
protect and promote the economic well being of ite citizens, and
to abate harm to itself and the general public of THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY.

40. As a direct and proximate result of the smuggling
activities that are conducted, aided, and encouraged by the
Defendants, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and its MEMBER STATES,
including the Kingdom of Belgium, Repubiic of Finland, French
Republic, Hellenic Republic, Federal Republic of Germany,
Italian Republic, Grand Duchy of Luxembouré, Kingdom of the
Netherlands, Portuguese Republic, and Kingdom df Spain, are
currently losing hundreds of millions of dollars per year. THE

EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES have been deprived of
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money and property in this manner throughout the 1990s and
continuing through the present time. If the smuggling
activities of the Defendants are not stopped, THE EUROCPEAN
COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES will continue to lose money and
property in the future. In addition, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and
the MEMBER STATES have been required to expend large amounts of
money in their efforts to stop smuggling and to recoup funds
that they have lost as a result of the activities of the
Defendants. All of these logsses will continue into the future,
absent judgment in Plaintiffs’ favor and injunctive and
equitable relief, including:

A. “RICO Injunctive and Equitable Relief.” Under 18
U.S.C. § 1964 (a) of the RICO statute, and the inherent powers of
the Court, the United States Disﬁrict Court is empowered to
prevent and restrain violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962 by issuing
appropriate orders, including, but not limited to: ordering any
person to divest himself or herself of any interest, direct or
indirect, in any enterprise; imposing reasonable restrictions on
the future activities or investments of any person, including,
but not limited to, prohibiting any person from engaging in the
game type of endeavor as the enterprise engaged in, the
activitieg of which affect interstate or foreign commerce; or
ordering_dissolution or reorganization of any enterprise, making

due provision for the rights of innocent persons. In addition,
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under 28 U.S.C. § 1651(a), the United States District Courts are
empowered to “isgue all writs necessary or appropriate in aid of
their respective jurisdictions and agreeable to the usages and
principles of law.” Consistent with these powers, the MEMBER
STATES seek an order that: (a) enjoins the Défendants and their
respective agents, servants, officers, direcfors, employees, and
all_persons acting in concert with them from selling cigarettes
to smugglers or to distributors who sell cigarettes to
smugglers; (b) compels each of the Defendants who have been
found to have violated 18 U.S.C. § 1962 to disggorge all proceeds
derived from any such violation and to make restitution to
Plaintiff; {(c¢) enjoins the Defendants and their respectivé
agents,'servants, officers, directors, employees, and all
persons acting in concert with them from selling cigarettes
without proper documentation, shipping records, markings, and
similar indicia of compliance with law that will allow the
proper tracking of the cigarettes so that they cannot be sold
illegally; (d) enjoins the Defendants and.their respective
agents, servants, officers, directors, employees, and all
persons acting in concert with them from selling cigarettes to
any distributor or any other person who cannot fully and
accurately account for where the cigarettes will ultimately be
sold; (e) enjoins the Defendants and their respective agents,

servants, officers, directors, employees, and all persons acting
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in concert with them from engaging in any practices by which
distributors, shippers, or smugglers can pay for the cigarettes
in question into offshore corporationg, offshore bank accounts,
or other locations that limit the ability of'government
officials to.track the sale of cigarettes or the payment for
said cigarettes; (f) orders the Defendants to create and utilize
adequate protocols by which all cigarettes manufactured by the
Defendants and all payments made for said cigaretteé into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY can be adequately tracked and monitored by
. governmental officials of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER
STATES; (g) orders the Defendants to take all reasonable and
necessary steps to stop the smuggling of their products into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY including the addition of any necessary
labeling, tracking devices, or other means that would allow the
Defendants themselves and/or offices of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY
and the MEMBER STATES to track and monitor the movement of
cigarettes into and within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY; (h) orders
the Defendants to disclose all knowledge within their possession
concerning the names, locations, activities, and procedures of
smugglers; (i) orders the Defendahts to.sell and ship cigarettes
in accordance with fhe legitimate demand for the cigarettes
manufactured by the Defendants such that the only quantity of
cigarettes that are sold to any customer are those which can be

demonstrated to be actually consumed or scld legitimately by
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that customer; (j) orders the imposition of a constructive trust
and equitable lien upon Defendants' ill-gotten gains, including
without limitation those profits and proceeds derived from the
smuggling scheme, and compels Defendants to disgorge to
Plaintiffs all ill-gotten gaing derived from the smuggling
scheme; (k) orders divestiture of all interest in the
enterprises involved in the smuggling aétivities; and (1) oxrders
Defendants to adopt, monitor and enforce appropriate compliance
programs to deter and remedy smuggling activities involving
their tobacco products. For purposes of this complaint, all of
the foregoing injunctive and equitable remedies, and those
injunctive and equitable remeaies that may hereafter be sought
by the MEMBER STATES or ordered by the Court with respect to the
MEMBER STATES’ claims under RICO shall be referred to herein as
"RICO Injﬁnctive and Equitable Relief."

B. “Common Law Injunctive and Equitable Relief.”
Under the common law, and the inherent powefs of the Court, the
Court is empowered to prevent and restrain Defendants’ and their
co-congpirators’ smuggling activities, enter prchibitory and
mandatory injunctions, and impose other equitable relief, to
provide full relief to Plaintiffs and prevent the continuing
harm to Plaintiffs’ interests. In addition, the federal courts
are empowered under 28 U.S.C. § 1lé651(a) to “issue all writs

necessary or appropriate in aid of their respective
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jurisdictions and agreeable to the usages and principles of
law.” Consistent with these powers, THE EUROCPEAN COMMUNITY and
the MEMBER STATES seek an order that: (a} enjoins the Defendants
and theilr respective agents, servants, officers, directors,
employees, and all persons acting in concert with them from
selling cigarettes to smugglers or to distributors who sell-
cigarettes to smugglers or otherwise engaging in conduct that
violates any common law, statutory or equitable.standard;

(b) compels each of the Defendants who have been found to have
violated any common law, statutory, or equitable standard to
disgorge all proceeds derived from any such violation and to
make restitution to Plaintiffs; (c) enjoins the Defendants and
their respective agents, servants, officers, directors,
employees, and all persons acting in concert with:them from
selling cigarettes without proper documentation, shipping
records, markings, and similar indicia of compliance with law
that will allow the proper tracking of the cigarettes so that
they cannot be sold illegally; (d) enjdins the Defendants and
their respective agents, servants, éfficers, directors,
employees, and all persons acting in concert with them from
selling cigarettes to any distributor or any other person who
cannot fully and accuratély account for where the cigarettes
will ultimately be sold; (e) enjoins the Defendants and their

respective agents, servants, officers, directors, employees, and
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all persons actirgn concert with them frongaging in any
practices by which distributors, shippers, or smugglers can pay
for the cigarettes in question into offshofé corporations,
offshore bank accounts, or other locations that limit the
ability of govermment officials to track the sale of cigarettes
or the payment for said cigarettes; (f) orders the.Defendants to
create and utilize adequate prétocols by which all cigarettes
manufactured by the Defendants and all payments made for said
cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY can be adequately trécked
and monitored by governmental officials of THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES; (g) orders the Defendants to
take all reasonable and necessary steps to stop the smuggling of
their products into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY including the
addition of any necessary labeling, tracking devices, or Othér
means that would allow the Defendants themselves and/or offices
of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES to track and
monitor the movement of cigarettes into and within THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY; (h) orders the Defendants to disclose all knowledge
within their possession concerning the names, locations,
activities, and procedures of smugglers; (i) orders the
Defendants to sell and ship cigarettes in accordance with the
legitimate demand for the cigarettes manufactured by the
Defendants such that the only quantity of cigarettes that are

sold to any customer are those which can be demonstrated to be
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actually consumed or scld legitimately by that customer; (j)
orders the imposition of a constructive trust and equitable lien
upon Defendants' ill-gotten gains, including without limitation
those profits and proceeds derived from the smuggling scheme,
and compels Defendants to disgorge to Plaintiff all ill-gotten
gaing derived from the smuggling scheme; (k) oxders divestiture
of all interest in the enterprises involved in the smuggling
~activities; (1) orders Defendants to adopt, monitor and enforce
appropriate compliance programs to deter and remedy smuggling
activities involving their tobacco products. For purposes of
this complaint, all of the foregoing injunctive and equitable
remedies, and those injunctive and equitable remedies that may
hereafter be.sought by Plaintiffs or ordered by the Court on
Plaintiffs’ common law claims; shall be referred to herein as

nCommon Law Injunctive and Equitable Relief."

COUNT I
MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS)
(RICO; 18 U.S.C. § 1962(a})
41. ihe MEMBER STATES restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through forty (40) and further allege:
42, The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, along with their

co-conspirators in the smuggling scheme, including associated
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distributors, shippers, currency dealers, smugglers, lobbyists,
and other participants in the scheme identified above, were,
during the relevant times herein, an association-in-fact of
individuals and corporations engaged in, and the activities of
which affected, interstate and foreign commerce and thus
constitutes an “enterprise” within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. §
1961 (4) (the “PM Smuggling Enterprise”}. These persons and
entities were and are.associated in fact for the purpose, among
others, of illegally smuggling contraband cigarettes into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to the economic detriment of Plaintiffs. The
PM Smuggling Enterprise is an ongoing organization whose
constituent elements function as a continuing unit for ;he
common purpose of maximizing the sale of tobacco products
through illegal means and carrying out other elements of the
Defendants' scheme. The PM Smuggling Enterprise has an
agcertainable structure and purpose beyond the scope of the
Defendants' predicate acts and the congpiracy to commit such
actg, and it possesses an infrastructure and chain of command
that is distinct and separate from the corporate structure of
the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS. The PM Smuggling Enterprise has
engaged in, and.its activities have affected, interstate and
foreign commerce. The PM Smuggling Enterprise continues through
the concerted activities of the Defendants to disguise the

nature of the wrongdoing, toc conceal the proceeds thereof, and
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to conceal the Defendants' participation in the enterprise inh
order to avoid and/or minimize their exposure to criminal and
civil penalties and damages. The role of each Defendant in the
Enterprise has been set forth above.

43, In connection with the fraudulent scheme set
forth above, and to further its aims, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS have engaged in numerous acts of “racketeering
activity,” and each Defendant has aided and abetted each other
Defendant in committing those acts of “racketeering activity”
within the meaning of RICO. 18 U.S.C. 1961, et seq. The PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS, as well as their co-conspirators, have.
committed multiple predicate acts of racketeering including, but
not limited to:

a. Wire fraud and mail fraud; {18 U.S.C. 8§ 1341,
1343, 1961 (.1) (B)). The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS deviged a
scheme or artifice to defraud or to obtain money by means of
false pretenses, representations; or promiges, and used the
mails and wires for the purpose of executing the scheme, and
acted with a specific intent to defraud by devising,
participating in, and/or abetting the scheme. The timing of the
wire and mail communications was during the course of the
conspiracy that covered at least 1991 to 2000. There were

hundreds of telephone conversations and faxes on virtually a

daily basis during the course of the conspiracy. These
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telephone conversations furthered the scheme by maintaining an
adequate and consistent supply of cigarettes to fuel the illicit
sales in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and were part of a clandestine
system for the remittance of the proceeds of the scheme to the
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, acting
through their employees, agents} and co-congpirators, made or
caused to be made such telephone calls to further the scheme.
The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS khnew or should have foreseen that
their co-conspirators, in the coﬁrse of carrying out the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS’ directions and orders, would use or cause to
be used the interstate and international wires and mails. The
motive for committing fraud is plain: money not paid to
Plaintiffs meant increased profits and market share for the
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS.

b. Violation of the Travel Act. {18 U.8.C. 8§ 1952,
1961 (1) (B)). Defendants traveled in interstate or foreign
commerce, and used facilities in interstate and foreign
éommerce, including the mail, with intent to distribute the
proceeds of unlawful activity, and promote, manage, establish,
carry on, or facilitate the promotion, management,
establishment, or carrying on of unlawful activity, and
thereafter performed, or attempted to perform unlawful activity.
Defendants knew that the currency provided to them represented

the proceeds of unlawful activity, including trafficking in
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narcotics and controlled substances and that, by accepting such
payments, they aided the efforts of the drug traffickers to
launder their ill-gotten gains. Defendants, and their
representatives and co-conspirators, traveled across national
borders and otherwise used the facilities of foreign commerce in
order to distribute the proceeds of unlawful activity to the
benefit of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS. By this conduct,
Defendants promoted, managed, established, and facilitated such
unlawful activity.

c. Money Laundering. {18 U.S;C. §8 1956 (a} (1),
1961 (1) (B)). The Defendants, knowing that the property involved
in a financial transaction represented the proceeds of some form
of unlawful activity, conducted or attempted to conduct
financial transactions in interstate and foreign commerce
involving the proceeds of specified unlawful activity with
intent to promote the carrying on of specified unlawful
activity; or, knowing that the transaction was designed in whole
or in part to conceal or disguise the nature, the location, the
gource of ownership, or the control of the procéeds of specified
unlawful activity, or, knowing that the transaction was designed
in whqle or in part to avoid a transaction reporting requirement
under state or federal law. Defendants knew that the currency
they received in exchange for the smuggled cigarettes

represented the proceeds of specified unlawful activity,

116




@ @

including but not limited to, wire fraud, mail fraud, and
violations of the Travel Act, and an offense against a foreign
nation‘involving the manufacture, importation, sale or
distribution of a controlled substance. Defendants knowingly
conducted and attempted to conduct such financial transactions
with intent to promote the carrying on of such unlawful
activity. In addition, Defendants knowingly conducted and
attempted to conduct such financial transactions with intent to
conceal or disguise the nature (proceeds of racketeering
activity and smuggling), the location (proceeds generated by “
activity on the “black market”), the sdurce (drug traffickers,
money launderers, smugglers), or the control (PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS) of the proceeds of specified unlawfui.activity.
Finally, Defendants knowingly conducted and attempted to conduct
such financial transactions to avoid.a transaction reporting
requirement under state or federal law; including, but not
limited to, currency and monetary.instrument reports.

d. International Money Laundering. (18 U.S.C. §§
1956 (a) (2), 1961(1)(B)).' Defendants transported, transmitted,
and/or transferred a monetary instrument or funds to a place in
the United States from or throﬁgh a place outside the United
States, with intent to promote the carrying on of specified
unlawful activity, or, knowing that the monetary instrument or

funds involved in the transportation, transmission, or transfer
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represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity and
knowing that such transportétion, transmission, or transfer was
designed in whole or in part to conceal or disguise the nature,
the location, the source, the ownership, or the control of
spedified unlawful activity, or to avoid a transaction reporting
requirement under state or federal law. By such conduct,
Defendants engaged in financial transactions within the meaning
of 18 U.8.C. § 1956(c) (4}. Deféndants knew that the money
orders and funds that were sent from South Amefica and/or Europe
and received in New York and elsewhere in the United States
represented the proceeds of spécified unlawful activity,
including but not limited to, wire fragd, mail fraud, and
violations of the Travel Act, and aﬁ offense against a foreign
nation involving the manufacture, importation, sale or .
distribution of a controlled substance. Defendaﬁts also aided
and abetted violations of 18 U.S5.C. § 1956(a)k1) and §
1956 (a) (2) .

e. Conspiracy to Engage in Money Laundering. (18
U.8.C. 88 1956(h), 1961(1)). Defendants conspired to commit
offenses defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1956 -~ including § 1956 (a) (1)
and 8§ 1956 (a) (2). Defendants, by their words and actions,
agreed to accept currency, monetary instruments, and funds with
the knowledge that the currency, monetary instruments; and funds

. represented the proceeds of specified unlawful activity
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conducted by themselves and their co-conspirators. Defendants
adopted the common purpose of the conspiracy and participated in
its consummation. The goal of the money-laundering conspiracy
wag to deprive Plaintiffs of money and property, while assuring
that the profits derived from smuggling activities were
repatriated to the benefit of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS in a
clandestine manner to avoid detection and prosecution.

£. Money Laundering. (18 U.S.C. § 1957, 1961(1)).
Defendants knowingly engaged or attempted to engage in monetary
transactions in the United States, in criminally derived
property that is of a value greater than.$10,000 and is derived
from specified unlawful activity. 18'ﬁ.S.C. § 1957 (f) (3) and §
1956 (c) (7) (A) . Defendants engaged in monetary transacﬁions,
including deposits, withdrawals, transfers, or exchanges, in or
affecting interstate or foreign commerce, of funds or monetary
instruments by, through, or to a financial institution.
Defendants knew that the monetary transactions received in
exchange for the smuggled cigarettes represented the éroceeds of
specified unlawful activity, including but not limited to, wire
fraud, mail fraud, and violations of the Travel Act, and an
offense against a foreign nation'involving the manufacture,
importation, sale, or distribution of a contreclled substance.

44. The foregoing acts form a “pattern” of

racketeering activity within 18 U.S.C. § 1961(5). The
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Defendants and others with whom they have been associated have
been related in their common objectives of maximizing global
sales of tobacco products and defrauding the Plaintiffs of the
money and property to which the Plaintiffs are lawfully |
entitled. The Defendants’ predicate acts have had the same or
similar purposes, results, participants, victime, and methods of
commigsion, and occurred over at least a ten-year period. The
predicate acts have been consistently repeated and are capable
of further repetition.

45, The Defendants' pattern of racketeering
activities dates from at least January 1, 1985, through the
present and threatens to continue in the future.

46. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS used or invested,
directly or indirectly, racketeering indome, or a part thereof,
or the proceeds of such income, to acquire an interest in,
establish, and operate, the PM Smuggling Enterprise, which is
and was engaged in, or the activities of which affect and have
affected, interstate or foreign commerce, in violation of 18
U.S.C. § 1962(a). The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were principals
in the racketeering scheme. The MEMBER STATES suffered multiple
injuries to their economic interests as a result of this use and
investment of racketeering income.

47. Specifically, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS

received the income and proceeds of a pattern of racketeering
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activity, including an international money-laundering scheme,
acts of wire fraud and mail fraud, and violations of the Travel
Act. Upon their receipt of such ill-gotten gains by wire
transfers from the smugglers and/or their associates, the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS used and invested such income and proceeds, or
a portion thereof, to acquire an interest in, establish and
operate the PM Smuggling Enterprise which was and is engaged in
interstate and foreign commerce. In particular, the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS used the proceeds of the scheﬁe to: (a)
operate the PM Smuggiing Enterprise; (b) replenish the supply of
contraband cigarettes for ultimate sale on the European “black
market;” (¢} acquire, purchase, and subsidize facilities
necessary to the PM Smuggling Enterprise, including
manufacturing, sales, and distribution operations; (d)
compensate employees and agents of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS
engaged in the smuggling activities; (e} pay expenses incurred
in connection with smuggling activities such as telephone bills
incurred in the wire fraud scheme, and travel costs incurred by
such employees; and (f) establish a flourishing “black market”
for the sale of contraband cigarettes. In sum, the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS did not reinvest the proceeds of racketeering
activity in their general business operations, but instead, used

and invested such proceeds to establish the infrastructure of,

acquire an interest in, and operate the PM Smuggling Enterprise,
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and it was this use and inﬁestment that harmed the MEMBER
STATES. The Defendants used and invested the proceeds of
racketeering activity to acquire an interest in, establish, and
operate the PM Smuggling Enterprise, in several ways, including
but not limited to the following:

a. The proceeds from the sale of cigarettes smuggled
into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY finance the sales and marketing
operationg that promote the increase of those sales.in
succeeding years;

b. The proceeds from the sale of cigarettes smuggled
into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY aré utilized to offset the
additional expensesg incurred by the Defendants when they pay for
the additional shipping and handling charges associated with the
clandestine movement of the cigarettes through the circuitous
routesg esgstablished by the Defendénts.
| c. The proceeds from the sale of cigarettes smuggled
into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY are used to offset the extraordinary
financing arrangements that are given to distribﬁtors who sell
into the smuggling pipeline soras to maximize the volume of
cigarettes within the smuggling pipeline.

d. The proceeds from the sale of cigarettes smuggled
into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY are utilized to pay for the

additional costs associated with the repackaging and relabeling
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of cigarettes necessary to allow for thé gmuggling trade to
flourish.

48. The MEMBER STATES were injured in their business
and property by reason of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS’ use and
investment of racketeering incomé to acquire, establish, and
operate the PM Smuggling Enterprise. Absent this use and
investment of racketeering income, contraband sales to the
European “black market” by the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and
their co-conspirators would have been difficult if not
impossible, the infrastructure of the smuggling enterprise could
not have been created or functioned, and the economic injury to
the MEMBER STATES would have been avoided in whole or in part.

49. Ag a direct and proximate result of the
violations set forth aboﬁe, the Plaintiffs, the MEMBER STATES,
have been injured in their business and property as sét forth
more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (39) through forty
(40). The Defendants’ violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (a) caused
these losses. Under the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1964 (c), the
MEMBER STATES are entitled to bring this action and recover
herein treble damages, the cost of bringing the suit, pre-

judgment interest, and reasonable attorneys’ fees.
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'I. . COUNT II "I'

MEMBER STATES

(AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS)

(RICO; 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (b))

50. .The MEMBER STATES.restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through forty-nine (49) and further allege:

51. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS acquired or
maintained, directly or indirectly, through a pattern of
racketeering activity, an interest in and control of the PM
Smuggling Enterprise, which was and is engaged in, or the
activities of which affect and have affected, interstate or
foreign commerce in violation of 18 U.5.C. § 1962(b). The
Plaintiffs, the MEMBER STATES, have been injured by the
Defendants' acquisition and maintenance of an interest in and
control of the enterprise through a pattern of.racketeering
activity.

52. The Defendants, acting through a pattern of
racketeering activity, acquired or maintained, directly or
indirectly, an interest in and control of the PM Smuggling
Enterprise which engagéd in, and the activities of which affect,
interstate and foreign commerce. Specifically, the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS maintained control of the PM Smuggling
Enterprise by means of racketeering activities, including, for

example, (a) interstate and international wire communications in
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violation of 18 U.S.C., Section 1343 (orders were placed
telephonically and the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS had total
control over the enterprise and the distribution of its
product); (b) money laundering in violation of 18 U.S.C.,
Sections 1956 and 1957 (PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS controlled and
concealed the flow of the proceeds of the smuggling - a key aim
of the scheme - through money laundering); (c¢) violations of the
Travel Act. 18 U.S.C.; Section 1952 (cross—border travel and
transactions that facilitated smuggling and other illicit
activities). Through this pattern of racketeering activities,
which algo included transmitting false statements to government
authorities, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were able to acquire
and maintain an interest in and control of the PM Smuggling
Enterprise. This interest.and control furthered, concealed, and
protected the operations of the smuggling enterprise, and
thereby permitted the PM Smuggling Enterprise to flourish
without detection.

53. Ag a direct and proximate result of the
Defendants' acquisition and maintenance of an interést in aﬁd
control of the PM Smuggling Enterprise, the Plaintiffs, the
MEMBER STATES, have been injured in their busiﬁesé and property
as set forth more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (39}
through forty (40). The Defendants' violations of 18 U.S5.C. §

- 1962 (b) caused these losses. Under the provisiong of 18 U.S.C.
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§ 1964 (c), the MEMBER STATES are entitled to bring this action
and recover herein treble damages, the cost of bringing the:

suit, pre-judgment interest, and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

COUﬁT III
MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS)
(RICO; 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c))

54, The MEMBER STATES restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through fifty-three (53) and further allege:

55. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, through the
commission of two or more acts constituting a pattern of
racketeering activity, directly or indirectly, ﬁarticipated in
the operation or management of the PM Smuggling Enterprise, the
activities of which affect intergtate of féreign'commerde.

56. At all relevant times, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS participated in the operation or management of an
“enterprise,” within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961 (4). The
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, acting together and individually,
operated, managed, and exercised control of the PM Smuggl ing
Enterprise by, among other things: (a) establishing a money-
laundering scheme by which the co-conspirators remitted to the
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS the proceeds of the smuggling_scheme;r

(b) compélling the smugglers to sell smuggled cigarettes at a
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price set by the Defendants; (c) requiring the smugglers to keep
detailed records of sales of contraband cigarettes; (d)
instructing the smugglers to distribute pafticular brands of
cigarettes in specified markets; (é) providing informatidn to
the smugglers to allow them to avoid detection and apprehension;
(f) investing and using the proceeds of the smuggling scheme in
the enterprise; (g} creating incentives.for increased sales on
the “black market;” (h) selling and distributing vast guantities
of cigarettes at favorable prices; (i) giving credit terms to
the smugglers that allowed PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS to control
the smuggling scheme; (j) fixiﬂg the price of contraband
cigarettes in concert with another tobacco company; and (k)
cdordinating gmuggling activities in céncert with another
tobacco company. The money-laundering scheme and the
communications of the Defendants concerning the operation of the
PM Smuggling Enterprise were effectuated through the use of
interstate and foreign mails and wires. It was the policy and
practice of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS that if the smugglers
failed to follow the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS' specific orders,
the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS would shut off the supply of
favorably priced cigarettes to the smugglers, and cut off the
lifeblood of the smuggling scheme.

57. EBExecutives of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS

operated or managed the PM Smuggling Enterprise. By means of
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their high-ranking, policy-making positions, as well as their
responsibility for sales of cigarettes into the European “blagk
market,” their leadership at key meetings that.gave birth to the
smuggling scheme, and their roles in directing the operétions of
the enterprise, these executives managed, operated, and exerted -
control over the PM Smuggling Enterprise.

58. As a direct and proximate result of the
violations set forth above, the Plaintiffs, the MEMBER STATES,
have been injured in their business and property as set forth
more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (39) through forty
{40) . The Defendants; violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (c) caused
these losses. Under the provisions of 18 U.8.C. § 1964 (c), the
MEMBER STATES are entitled to bring this action and recover |
herein treble damages, the cost of bringing the suit, pre-

judgment interest, and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

COUNT IV
MEMBER STATES

(AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS)
(RICO; 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d))

59, The MEMBER STATES restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through fifty-eight (58) and further allege:
60. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS entered into an

agreement with each other and with distributors, shippers,
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currency dealers, and smugglers to join in the conspiracy to
violate 18 U.8.C. §§ 1962(a), 1962(b}, and 1962(c). Each
Defendant entered into an agreement to join the conspiracy, and
took acts in the furtherance of the conspiracy and knowingly
participated in the conspiracy. The purpose of the congpiracy
was to smuggle cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to the
economic detriment of Plaintiffs and to the econoﬁic benefit of
the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS. The conspirators carriéd out the
scheme and each conspirator was put on notice of the general
nature of the conspiracy, that the consﬁiracy extended beyond
the individual role of any single member, and that the
conspiratorial venture functioned as a continuing unit for a
common purpose. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS adopted the goal
of furthering and facilitating the criminal endeavor. Their
stake in the smuggling venture was in making profits and
increasing market share which they knew could come only from
their informed and interested cooperation with smugglers, and
their active assistance, stimulation, and instigation of the
smuggling activities.

61. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, together with each.
member of the conspiracy, agreed and conspired to violate: (1)
18 U.S.C. § 1962(a) by using, or causing the use of, income they
derived from the above-described pattern of racketeeriné

activities in the acquisition, establishment, and/or operation
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of the enterprise, the activities of which_affect interstate or
foreign commerce; (2) 18 U.8.C. § 1962 (b) by acquiring or
maintaining, or causing the acquisition or maintenance of,
through a pattern of racketeering activity, an interest or
control in the enterprise, the activities of which affect
interstate or foreign commerce; and, (3) 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c) by
participating, directly and indirectly, in the operation and
management of the affairs of the enterprise through a pattern of
racketeering activity, including an agreement that the
conspirators, or one of them, would commit.or cause the
commission of two or more racketeering acts constituting such a
pattern. |

62. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS participated in and-
cooperated with each other and with their co-cpnspirators in the
aforementioned conspiracy that enabled each cigarette
manufacturer and distributor to enhance its market share,
suppress its éompetition, and promote sale of its products.

63. As a part of their conspiracy, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS retained various lobbyists, funded “research,” and
conducted a joint public-relations campaign so as to misstate
the nature and scope of cigarette smuggling and so as to promote
their own interests.

64. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS actively

participated in the conspiracy to smuggle cigarettes and to
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generate falsge ar!nisleading information ctﬁg:ning smﬁggling
activities.

65. As a result of the conspiracy, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS and their co-conspirators were able to facilitate the
smuggling of large volumes of cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY .

66. The membership of the conspiracy in question
included the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, tobacco disﬁributors, the
shippers, the-smuggiers, currency brokers, and the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS' subsidiary corporations in Switzerland and
elsewhere; who act in concert to produce the cigarettes,
mislabel or fail to properly label the cigarettes, smuggle and
gell the cigarettes, and arrange for payment inra way that is
undetectable by governmental authorities, with said payment
ultimately being returned to the Defendants in the United
States. As co-conspirators, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are
liable for all of the actions committed by all of the co-
conspirators within the conspiracy and are liable for all of the
damages sustained by THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER
STATES that were caused by any members of the conspiracy,
regardless of whether the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were
fhemselves directly involved in a particular aspect of the

enterprise.
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67. As a direct and proximate result of the
violationg set forth above, the Plaintiffs, the MEMBER STATES,
have been injured in their business and property as set forth
more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (39) through forty
(40). The Defendants’ violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d) caused
these losses. Under the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c), the
MEMBER STATES are entitled to bring this action and recover
herein treble damages, the cost of bringing the suit, pre-

judgment interest, and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

COUNT V
MEEBER STATES
, (AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS_ DEFENDANTS)
(RICO; 18 U.S.C. §§ 1964{a), 1964 (c), 28 U.S.C. § 1651 (a))

68. The MEMBER STATES restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through sixty-seven (67) and further allege:

69. The United States Distriét Court is empowered to
prevent and restrain violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962 by issuing
appropriate orders, including, but not limited to: ordering any
person to divest himself or herself of any interest, direct or
indirect, in any.enterprise; imposing reasonable restrictions on
the future activities or investments of any pérson, including,
but not limited to, prohibiting any person from engaging in the

same type of endeavor as the enterprise engaged in, the
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activities of which affect interstate or foreign commerce; or
ordering dissolution or reorganization of any enterprise, making
due provision for the rights of innocent persons. 18 U.S5.C. §
1964 (a) .

70. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS are currently
actively engaged in the activities set forth within this
complaint that promote and support the smuggling of contraband
cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.

71. The Defendants intend to continue said activities
and to interfere with investigations being done by governmental
officials into smuggling activities.

72. The Defendants, by their conduct of selling
cigarettes to smugglers, creating false and misleading
documents, improperly labeling shipments of cigarettes, and
setting forth mechanisms of payment by which smugglers may pay
for the cigarettes without being detected by government
investigations all continue to exacerbate the problem of
cigarette smuggling in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY aﬁd the MEMBER
STATES and to damage the MEMBER STATES.

73. As a result of the Defendants’ conduct in
violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1962(a), 1962 (b), and 1962(c), the
MEMBER STATES have been and continue to be irreparably injured

as is alleged more fully above.
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74. As a result of the nature of the smuggling
activities, it would be functionally impossible for the MEMBER
STATES to put a complete halt to said smuggling activities as
long as the Defendants continue to provide support for the
smugglers. In addition, the MEMBER STATES continue to suffer
injury to business and property to an extraordinary degree.

75. Monéy damages will not providé a full and
complete remedy for Defendants’ unlawful conduct. There is no
adequate remedy at law that will protect the MEMBER STATES in
the future from these smuggling activities if the Defendants do
not cease their involvement in and support of smuggling
activities. Pursuant to 18 U:S.C. §§ 1964(a), 1964(c), as well
as 28 U.sS.C. § 1651(a), MEMBER STATES demand full RICO

Injunctive and Equitable Relief.

COUNT VI
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY AND the MEMBER STATES

(AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS)
(COMMON LAW FRAUD)

76. Plaintiffs restate and reallege paragraphs one
(1) through seventy-five (75) and further allege:
77. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and their co-

conspirators intentionally falsified documents, falsified
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shipping records, and generated false and misleading billing
records concerning the payment for and/or value of smuggled
cigarettes so as to mislead the Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY, and legal authorities in the MEMBER STATES as to the
destination of smuggled cigarettes. The PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS and their co-conspirators made these félse and
material statements and representations and failed to disclose
material information in such documents and records with intent
to defraud the Plaintiffs. The Defendants made these material
misrepresentations and omissions with the knowledge and
intention that the Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES, would reasonably rely on said documents.. The
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS entered into én understanding or
agreement, express or tacit, with their distributors, customers,
agents, consultants, and other co-conspirators, to participate
in a common scheme, plan or design to commit the aforesaid
tortious actsg and thereby smuggle contraband cigarettes into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES. In pursuance of the
agreement, PHILIP MORRIS and its distributors, customers,
agents, consultants, and other co-conspirators acted tortiously
by, among other things, committing the aforesaid acts
consgtituting fraud, thereby Causing harm to Plaintiffs. The
PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, through agreement and joint action

with their co—donspirators, acted tortiously, recklessly,
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unlawfully, and negligently, to the detriment of Plaintiffs. By
means of the aforesaild concerted action, the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS and their co-conspirators are jointly and severally
liable for the torts and other wrongful conduct alleged herein.
Plaintiffs reasonably relied upon the Defendants’
misrepresentations and incurred damage as a result of such
reliance. Specific examples of the process by which these
activities occurred are set forth above.

78. The Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES, reasonably relied upon séid documentsg as part of
their monitoring of the shipment of cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY .

79. Furthermore, the PHILIP MORRI_S DEFENDANTS
knowingly and intentionally generated false, misleading, and
material information, and intentionally concealed other material
information, concerning the nature of smuggling in THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY, the extent of smuggling in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY,
and the causes of smuggling in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY with the
knowledge and intention that the Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES, would reasonably rely upon said
information. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS also executed
agreements with some MEMBER STATES so as to.mislead the

Plaintiffs as to the Defendants' role in the smuggling.

136



80. The Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES, did reasonably rely upon data and information
provided to them by the Defendants and/or their agents in acting
or refraining from acting with respect to smuggling activities.

81. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, in falsifying
documents to expedite the smuggling of cigarettes and in -
providing misleading information, and in concealing material and
true information, concerning the smuggling of cigaretteé, acted
in willful, wanton, gross, and callous disregard for the rights
of the Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES.
The aforesaid actions were knowingly taken for the purpose of
supporting the activities of the Defendants’ co-conspirators and
with thé intent of inéreasing the profits and sales of the
Defendants and harming THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER
STATES.

82. Defendants were duty-bound to disciose the
material information concerning the destination of tobacco
shipments and ﬁheir operations that bhad been concealed. By law,
no person may make false statements to the government. Having
undertaken to make representations to THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and
the MEMBER STATES, Defendants were obligated to provide full,
complete, and truthful information concerning the destination of
tobacco shipments and their operations. Defendants had

superior, if not exclusive, knowledge of such information, and
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it was not réadily available to the Plaintiffs. Defendants
intended and knew, or should have known, that the Plaintiffs
would reasonably rely, act, and refrain from acting, on the
basis of false and/or incomplete information provided to
Plaintiffs by Defendants, and Plaintiffs did so to their
detriment. Under these circumstances, Defendants’ conduct
amounts to fraudulent misrepresentation and fraudulent
concealment, and an effective conversion of Plaintiffs’ money
and property.

83. As a direct and proximate result of the PHILIP
'MORRIS DEFENDANTS' fraudulent conduct and the Plaintiffs’
reliance thereupdn, the Plaintiffs have suffered economic
damages as are set forth more fully above in paragraphs thirty-
nine (39) through forty (40). The Plaintiffs.demand judgment
for damages, both compensatory and punitive, as well as full

Common Law Injunctive and Equitable Relief.

COUNT VII_
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS)
(PUBLIC NUISANCE)
84. Plaintiffs restate and reallege paragraphs one
(1) through eighty-three (83) and further allege:

85, Plaintiffs are government authorities.
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86. Smﬁggling of contraband cigarettes and money
laundering are a violation of law and a public nuisance.

87. The smuggling and money laundering activities in
the United States and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY of the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS: (a) Have substantially and unreasonably
interfered with, offended, injured and ehdangered, and continue
to interfere with, offend, injure and endanger, the public
health, morals, safety, convenienée, and well-being of the
general public and the operation of the market for tobacco
products in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and have interfered with and
endangered the Customs Territory, Customs Border and free market
which THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is bound to protect; (b)

Constitute conduct which is proscribed by applicable laws,
administrative regulations, and directives; (c) Constitute
conduct of a continuing nature and/or ﬁave produced a permanent
or long-lasting effect, and the Defendants know or have reason
to know, that said conduct hag a significant harmful effect upon
the public right.

88. The smuggling activities in the United States and
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have
been, and continue to be, effectuated through widespread
criminal activity, including mail fraud, wire fraud, money

laundering, smuggling, and other illegal acts.
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8¢. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and their co-
conspirators facilitated the smuggling of contraband cigarettes
into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES by meané of a
variety of acts and omissiong conducted in or directed frbm the
United States, including the following: (a) The PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS arranged a process by which cigarettes‘purchased by
smugglers could be paid for by secret payments into Swiss
corporations and/or Swiss bank accounts so as to conceal
revenues derived from smuggling activities. (b) The PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS provided specific marketing information to
smugglers, including which products were in demand and the
volume of cigarettes that Were.needed to meet the specific
demands of the smugglers’ clients. (c¢) The Defendants filed or
caused the filing of false and fraudulent documents which
misstated the value of and the intended destination of
cigarettes that were ultimately smuggled into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY. (d) The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS failed to supervise
the distribution of their tobacco products to assﬁre that such
products were not sold illegally. (e) The PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS failed to act reasonably when they were put on notice
of their involvement with smugglers. (£} The PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS entered into an understanding or agreement, express
or tacit, with their distributors, customers, agents,

consultants, and other co-conspirators, to participate in a
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common gcheme, plan or design to commit the aforesaid tortious
acts and thereby smuggle contr&band cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES. In pﬁrsuance of the agreement,
PHILIP MORRIS and itg distributors, customers, agents,
consultants, and other co-conspirators acted tortiously by,
among other things, committing the aforesaid acts constituting
public nuisance, thereby causing harm to Plaintiffs. The PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS, through joint action with their co-
congpirators, acted tortiously, recklessly, unlawfully, and
negligently, to the detriment of Plaintiffs. By means of the
aforesaid concerted action, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and
thelr co-consgpirators are jointly and severally liable for the
torts and other wrongful conduct alleged herein.

90. Through these and other intentional and
negligent acts and omissions, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have
substantially and unreasonably offended, interfered with, and
caused damage to the public in the exercise of rights common to
all, in a manner such as to (a) offend public morals, (b)
interfere with use by the public of a public place, (¢) endanger
and injure the property, life, health, safety, and comfort of a
cdnsiderable number of persons; (d) injure and interfere with
the market for tobacco products in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY; and
(g) injure the economic well being of the citizens of THE

EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. The acts and omissions of the PHILIP MORRIS
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DEFENDANTS constitute a public nuisance. This public nuisance,
or some part of it, continues unabated to the detriment of
Plaintiffs’ interests and has undermined and éndangered the
Customg Territory, Customs Border, and free market which THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is bound to protect.

91. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS knew, or reasonably
should have known, that their acts and omissions relating to
smuggling of tobacco products created great dangers to the
community, including Plaintiffs’ economic and non-economic
interests. The Defendants directly, or through their co-
conspirators, undermined THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY’S duties and
authority to regulate foreign commerce, regulate customs
territories, free trade zones, and customs bonded warehouses,
reguiate transportation into THE EUROPEAN-COMﬁUNITY or within
its borders, ensure and regulate the free movement of goods
within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, regulate safety and security at
sea, regulate and take action to protect against breaches of THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY Customs Territory or THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY
Custome Border, regulate and assure that foreign goods entering
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY enter THE EUROPEAN COMMUi\TITY with
declared values that are accurate, and regulate and set rules to
combat money laundering, all harms different from those suffered

by members of the general public or the Member States, and all
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wrongs which are the duty and responsibility of THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY to redress.

92. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have acted
maliciously, wantonly, and with a recklessness that bespéaks an
improper motive and vindictiveness, and have engaged in
outrageous and oppressive conduct and with a reckless or wanton
disregard of safety and rights. Their conduct amounts to a
fraud on the public.

93. As_a direct and proximate result of the acts and
omissions of the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, which coﬁstitute a
public nuisance, Plaintiffs have sustained and continue to
sustain injury as set forth more fully above in paragraphs
thirty-nine (39) through forty (40). THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and
the MEMBER STATES each have the right to recover damages as get
forth in paragraphs 39 through 40 in that each has suffered
damages which are unique to it and which are of a kind different
from those suffered by the general public.

94. By reason of the injury to their economic and
non-economic interests due to the public nuisance, as set forth
in the preceding paragraphs to this complaint, the Plaintiffs
are entitled to an award of damages, including actual,
compensatory, and punitive damages! In addition, damages do not
constitute a full and adequate remedy ét law, and for this

reagon, Plaintiffs are entitled to Common Law Injunctive and
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Equitable Relief, including a judgment permanently enjoining
Defendants from the continuation of activities constituting a
public nuisance, and compelling Defendants to take steps to

abate and prevent the smuggling of tobacco products.

COUNT VIII
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and MEMBER STATES

(AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS)
(UNJUST ENRICHMENT)

95. Plaintiffs restate and reallegé paragraphs one
(1) through ninety-four (94) and further allege:

96; The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were unjustly
enriched at Plaintiffs’ expense. The PHILIP MORRiS DEFENDANTS
entered into an understanding or agreement, express or tacit,
with their distributors, cﬁstomers, agents, consultants, and
other co—conspiratofs, to participate in a common scheme, plan
or design to commit the aforesaid tortious acts and thereby
smuggle contraband cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and
the MEMBER STATES. In pursuance of the agreement, PHILIP MORRIS
and its distributors, customers, agents, consultants, and other
co-conspirators acted tortiously by, among other things,
committing the aforesaid acts constituting unjust enrichment,

thereby causing harm to Plaintiffs. The PHILIP MORRIS
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DEFENDANTS, through joint action with their co-conspirators,
acted tortiously, recklessly, unlawfully, and negligeﬁtly, to
the detriment of Plaintiff. By means of the aforesaid concerted
action, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and their co-consgpirators
are jointly and severally liable for the torts and other
wrongful conduct alleged herein. The acts and omissions of
these Defendants and others have placed in the'possession of
these Defendants money under such circumstances that in equity
and good conscience they ought not to retain it. |

97. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY provides at its expense a
marketplace without internal frontiers.which inures to the
benefit of all commercial enterprises which operate within the
borders of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. It is this marketplace which
makes the sale of products such as cigarettes more expeditious
and profitable. Thé Defendants, in smuggling cigarettes into
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and moving said products.freely within
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY without the payment of duties and taxes,
make 1llicit use of this marketplace tp their economic benefit
and to the economic detriment of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were unjustly
enriched through their smuggling Schemé. By reason of their
smuggling scheme, and the illicit avoidance of payment of duties
and taxes, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS were enabled to sell

their product at lower cost, and illegally enhance profits,
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market share; and the value of the internaticnal tobacco
operations.

98. The unjust enrichment of the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS was accomplished at the expense of the Plaintiffs.
By reason of the smuggling scheme, the Plaintiffé were, and
continue to be, deprived of duties and taxes and have suffered
other economic and non-economic injuries, and Defendants reaped
vast profits and proceeds from their illegal scheme.

99. Under these circumstances, the receipt and
retention of the money derived from smuggling operations are
gsuch that, as between the Plaintiffs and Defendants, it is
unjusf for Defendants to retain it.

| 100. Equity and good conscience require the PHILIP
MORRIS DEFENDANTS to pay damages and restitution to Plaintiffs,
disgorge their ill-gotten gains and, to effectuate these
remedies, a constructive trust and equitable lien should be
imposed by this Court upon the proceeds obtained by Defendants
by reason of smuggling activities, which proceeds.are rightly
owned by and belong to Plaintiffs. Plaintiffs are entitled to
damages, including actual, compensatory, and punitive damages,
and their injuries are set forth more fully above in paragraphs
thirty-nine (39) through forty (40). Judgment in Plaintiffs’
favor should include full Common Law Injunctive and Equitable

Relief.
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| COUNT IX
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS)
(NEGLIGENCE)

101. Plaintiffs restate and reallege paragraphs one
(1) through one hundred (100)Iand further allege:

102. Defendants owed, and continue to owe, a duty of
reagonable care to refrain from causing foreseeable loss to the
Plaintiffs. Defendants were and are obligated to avoid
negligently causing harm to Plaintiffs and were and are duty-
bound to:

a. produce, market, and distribute their cigarette
products lawfully and wiﬁh due care;

b. use proper practices and procedures in ﬁhe
hiring, selection, approval, instruction, training, supervision,
and discipline of employees, agents and other personnel engaged
in the production, marketing, and distribution of their
products, some of whom the Defendants knew, or reasonably should
have known, were assisting and otherwise engaged in the
smuggling of cigarettes;

c. design, implement, and utilize effective

monitoring and oversight procedures, including appropriate
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compliance programs, to deter and detect smuggling-related
activities by their employees and agénts;

d. investigate and terminate the smuggling-related
conduct of their employees, agents,‘and buginess associates
particularly inasmuch as their managerial personnel with
decision-making authority were put on reasonable notice of such
illicit conduct;

e, deal with the Plaintiffs,_and their
representatives, in an honest, good-faith, and forthright
manner;

f. terminate sales of their tobacco products to or
through persons or entities known to be engaged, directly or
indirectly, in smuggling; and

g. comply with federal and state statutes and the
standards of care reflected therein.

103. As manufacturers, distributors, ahd dominant
partiéipants in the marketplace, Defendants had, and continue to
have, the authority and ability to act reasonably to prevent the
smuggling of their products for the protection of Plaintiffs.
Reasonable steps could and should have been taken by thé -
Defendants to prevent or reduce the risk of the sale of their
products to persons likely to distribute and sell them on the

European “black market.”
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104. Defendants, as manufacturers, distributors, and
dominant participanfs in the marketplace, have a special ability
and duty to exercise reasonable care to detect and guard against
the risks associated with the distributidn of their products,
for the benefit and protection of those foreseeably and
unreasonably placed at risk of harﬁ from the distribution of
their products, including Plaintiffs.

105. Defendants’ unreasonable acts and omissions
created and enhanced the risk that their products would be
distributed on the European “black market” and injure
Plaintiffs.

106. Defendants' unreasonable acts and omissions
affirmatively and foreseeably obstructed Plaintiffs’ abilities
to collect full.and proper duties and taxes, caused substantial
economic and non-economic damages to the Plaintiffs, and
otherwise obstructed their ability to protect themselves from
harms associated with smuggling. Defendants, acting with and
through their employees, agents, and co—conspirators, breached
their duty of care, as aforesaid, by acts and/or omissionsg that
posed an unreasonable and foreseeable risk of harm to
plaintiffs. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS entered into an
understanding or agreement, express or_tacit, with their
distributors, customers, agents, consultants, and other co-

conspirators, to participate in a common scheme, plan or design
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to commit the aforésaid tortious acts and thereby smuggie
contraband cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. In pursuance
of the agreement, PHILIP MORRIS and its distributors, customers,
agents, consultants, and other co-conspirators acted tortiously
by, among other things, committing thé aforesaid acts
constituting negligence, thereby causing harm to Plaintiffs.
The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS{ through joint action with their
co-conspirators, acted tortiously, recklessly, unlawfully, and
negligently, to the detriment of Plaintiffs. By means of the
aforesaid concerted actibn, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and
their co-conspirators are jointly and severally liable for the
torts and other wrongful conduct alleged herein; Defenaants'
breach proximately caused, and continues to cause, damage to the
economic and non-economic interests of the Plaintiffs.

107. The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS have acted
maliciously, wantonly, and with a reckiessness that bespeaks an
improper motive and vindictiveness, and have engaged in
outrageous and oppressive conduct and with a reckless or wanton
digregard of safety and rights. Their conduct amounts to a
fraud on the public.

108. By reason of the injury to their economic and
non-economic interests due to the negligence of the Defendants,
as set forth more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (39)

through forty (40), Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of
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damages, including actual, compensatory, and punitive damages.
In addition, damages do not constitute a full and adequate
remedy at law, and for this reason, Plaintiffs are entitled to
full common law Injunctive and Equitable Relief, including a
judgment permanently enjoining Defendants from the continuation
of activities constituting negligence, and compelling Defendants
to take steps to abate and prevent the.smuggling of tobacco

products in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES.

COUNT X
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE PHILIP MORRIS" DEFENDANTS)
{(NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION)

109. Plaintiffs restate and reallege paragraphs one
(1) through one hundred eight (108) and further allege:

110. The Defendants owed, énd continue to owe, a duty
of reasonable care to refrain from causing foreseeable loss to
the Plaintiffs. Defendants have assumed the special duty to
speak truthfully to government officials and, particularly due
to their superior knowledge of their own conduct, were bound to
speak with due care. Defendants were and are obligated to avoid
negligently causing foreseeable harm to Plaintiffs, and were and
are duty-bound to exercise reasonable care to: (a) refrain from

negligently misrepresenting -- through documents and other forms
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of communication that the Defendants knew or should have known
would be reasonably relied on by Plaintiffs -- the payment for
and/or value of amuggled cigarettes; the.destination of smuggled
cigarettes; and the nature, extent, and cause of smuggling
within THE EUROPEAN CCMMUNITY; (b) bé truthful in their
representationsg to Plaintiffs and their representatives
concerning smuggling and othef improper activities as aforesaid;
and (¢} avoid misleading Plaintiffs when providing Plaintiffs
with such information as Defeﬁdants possess concerning the
smuggling of Defendants' products into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.

111. Defendants breached their duty té Plaintiffs by
negligently making various material misrepresentations -and/or
failiﬁg to disclose material information to Plaintiffs and their
representatives as aforesaid.

112. The Defendants have acted maliciously, wantonly,
and with a recklessness that bespeaks an improper motive and
vindictiveness and have eﬁgaged in outrageous and oppressive
conduct and with a recklessness or wanton disregard of
Plaintiffs’ interests and rights. Their conduct amounts to a
fraud on the public.

113. Defendants, acﬁing with and through their
employees, agents, and co-conspirators, breached their duty of
care, as aforesaid, by acts‘and/or omissions that posed.an

unreasonable risk of foreseeable harm to Plaintiffs. The PHILIP
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MORRIS DEFENDANTS éntered into an understanding or agreement,
express or tacit, with their distributors, customers, agents,
consultants, and other co-conspirators, to participate in a
common scheme, plan or design to commit the aforesaid tortious
actg and thereby smuggle contraband cigarettes ihto THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES. In pursuance of the agreement,
PHILIP MORRIS and its distributors, customers, agents,
consultants, and other co-conspirators acted tortiously by,
among other things, committing the aforesaild acts constituting
negligent misrepresentation, thereby causing harm to Plaintiffs.
The PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, through joint action with their
co-conspirators, acted tortiously, recklessly, unlawfully, and
negligently, to the detriment of Plaintiffs, -By means of the
aforesaid concerted action, the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS and
their cp—conspirators are jointly and severally liable for the
torts and other wrongful conduct alleged herein.

114. Plainﬁiffs reasonably relied on Defendants’
misrepresentations and, as a result, Defendants' breach
proximately caused, and continues to cause, damage to the
economic and non-economic interests of Pléintiffs.

115. By reason of the injury to their economic and
non-economic interests due to the negligenée, malice, and
recklegsness of the Defendants, as set forth more fully in

paragraphs thirty-nine (39) and forty (40), Plaintiffs are
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entitled to an award of damages, including actual, compensatory,
and punitive damageé. In addition, damages do not constitute a
full and adequate remedy at law, and for this reason, Plaintiffs
are entitled to full Common Law Injunctive and Equitable Relief,
including a judgment permanently enjoining Defendants from the

continuation of activities constituting negligence.

COUNT XI
MEMBER STATES

(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
(RICO; 18 U.S.C. § 1962({a})

116. The MEMBER STATES restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through one hundred fifteen (115) and further allege:

117. At all relevant times, the RJR DEFENDANTS,
together with distributors, shippers, smugglers, currency
brokers, and other persons and entities constituted an
“enterprise” within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961(4), in that
they are associated in fact for the purpose, inter alia, of
wrongfully smuggling contraband cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY to the economic detriment of Plaintiffs (the “RJR
Smuggling Enterprise”). This eﬁterpriSe ig an ongoing
organization whose constituent elements function as a continuing
unit for the common purpose of maximizing the sale of tobacco

products through illegal means and carrying out other elements
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of the Defendants’ scheme. The RJR Smuggling Enterprise has an
ascertainable structure and purpose beyond the scope of the
Defendants’ predicate acts and the conspiracy to commit such
acts. The Enterprise has engaged in and its activities have
affected interstate and foreign commerce. The Enterprise
continues through the concerted activities of the Defendants to
disguise the nature of the wrongdoing, to conceal the proceeds
thereof, and to conceal the Defendants’ participation in the
Enterprise in order to avoid and/or minimize their exposure to
criminal and civil penalties and damages. The role of each
Defendant in the RJR Smuggling Enterprise has been set forth
above. |

118. In ¢onnection with the fraudulent scheme set
forth above, and to further its aims, the RJR DEFENDANTS havé
engaged in numerous acts of “racketeering activity,” and-each
Defendant has aided and abetted each other Defendant in
committing those acts of “racketeering activity” within the
meaning of RICO. 18 U.S.C. §§ 1961, et seq. The RJR DEFENDANTS
have committed multiple predicate acts of racketeering
including, but not limited to:

a. Wire fraud and mail fraud. (18 U.S.C. §§ 1341,
1343, 1961(1) (B)). The RJR DEFENDANTS devised a scheme or
artifice to defraud or to obtain money by means of false

pretenses, representatibns, or promises, and used the mails and
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wires for the purpése of executing the scheme, and acted with a
specific intent to defraud by devising, participating in, and/or
abetting the scheme. The timing of the wire and mail
communications was during the course of the conspiracy that
covered at least 1991 to 1999. There were hundreds of.telephone
conversations and faxes on virtually a daily basis during the
course of the conspiracy. These telephone conversations
furthered the scheme by maintaining an adequate and consistent
supply of.cigarettes to fuel the illicit sales in THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and were part of a clandestine system for the
remittance of the proceeds of the scheme to the RJR DEFENDANTS.
The RJR DEFENDANTS, acting through their employees, agents, and
co-conspirators, made or caused to be made such telephone calls
to further the sCheme.. The RJR DEFENDANTS knew or should have
foreseen that their co-conspirators, in the course of carrying
ocut the RJR DEFENDANTS' directions and orders, would use or
cauge to be used the interstate and internaticnal wires and
mails. The motive for committing fraud is plain: money not paid
to Plaintiffs meant increased profits and market share for.the
RJR DEFENDANTS.

b. Violation of the Travel Act. (18 U.S.C. §§ 1952,
1961(1) (B)). Defendants traveled in interstate or foreign
commerce, and used facilities in interstate and foreign

commerce, including the mail, with intent to distribute the
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proceeds of unlawfﬁl activity, and promote, manage, establish,
carry on, or facilitate the promotion, management,
establishment, or carrying on of unlawful activity, and
thereafter performed or attempted to perform unlawful activity.
Defendants knew that the currenéy provided.to them represented
the proceeds of unlawful activity, including trafficking in
narcotics and controlled substances and that, by accepting such
payments, aided the efforts of the drug traffickers to launder
their ill-gotten gains. Defendants and their representatives
and co-conspirators traveled across_national borders and
otherwice used the facilities of foreign commerce in order to
distribute the proceeds of unlawful activity to the benefit of
the RJR DEFENDANTS. By this conduct, Defendants promoted,
managed, established, and facilitated suchrunléwful activity.

c. Money Laundering. (18 U.S.C. §§ 1956(a)1l),
1961(1) (B)). The Defendants, knowing that the property involved
in a financial transaction represented the proceeds of some form
of unlawful activity, conducted or attempted to conduct
financial transactions in interstate and foreign commerce
involving the proceeds of specified unlawful activity with
intent to promote the carrying on of specified unléwful
activity; or, knowing that the transaction was designed in whole
or in part to conceal or disguise the nature, the location, the

source of ownership, or the control of the proceeds of specified
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unlawful activity, or, knowing that the transaction was designed
in whole or in part to avoid a transaction reporting requirement
under state or federal law. Defendants knew that the currency
that they received in exchange for the smugéled cigarettes
represented the proceeds of specified unlawful activity,
including but not limited to, wire fraud, mail fraud, and
viclations of the Travel Act, and an offense against a fofeign
nation involving the manufacture, importation, gale, or
distribution of a controlled substance. Defendants knowingly
conducted and attempted to conduct such financial transactions
with intent to promote the carrying on of such unlawful
activity. 1In addition, Defen&ants knowingly conducted and
aftempted to conduct such financial transactions with intent to
conceal or disguise the nature (proceeds of racketeering
activity and smuggling), the location (proceeds generated by
activity on the “black market”), the source (drug traffickers,
money launderers, smugglers), or the control (RJR DEFENDANTS) of
the proceeds of specified unlawful activity. Finally, Defendants
knowingly conducted and attempted to conduct such financial
transactions to avoid a tranéaction reportiné requirement under
state or federal law, including, but not limited to, currency
and monetary instrument reports.

d. International Money Laundering. (18 U.S.C. §8

1956 (a) (2), 1961(1) (B)). Defendants transported, transmitted,
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and/or transferred a monetary instrument or funds to a place in
the United States from or through a place outgide the United
States, with intent to promote the carrying on of specified
unlawful activity, or, knowing that the monetary instrument or
funds involved in thé transportation, transmission, or transfer
represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity and
knowing that such transportation, transmission, or transfer was
designed in whole or in part to conceal or disguise the nature,
the location, the source, the ownership, or the control of
specified unlawful activity, or to avoid a transaction reporting
requirement under state or federal law. By such conduct,
Defendants engaged in financial transactions within the meaning
of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(c) (4). Defendants knew that the money
ordersg and_funds that were sent from South America, the
Caribbean, and Europe to the Unitengtaﬁes represented the
proceeds of gpecified unlawful activity, including but not
limited to, wire fraud, maill fraud, and violations of the Travel
Act, and an offense against a foreign nation involwving the
manufacture, importation, sale or distribution of a controlled
gsubstance. Defendants also aided and abetted violations of 18
U.S.C. § 1956(a) (1) and § 1956(a) (2).

e. Conspiracy to Engage in Money Laundering. 18

U.S.C. 88 1856(h), 1961(1)). Defendants conspired to commit

offenses defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1956 - including §.1956(a)(1)
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and § 1956(a) {(2). Defendants, by their words and actions,
agreed to accept currency,.monetary instruments, and funds with
the knowledge that the currency, monetary instruments, and funds
repregented the proceeds of specified unlawful activity
conducted by themselveg and their co-conspirators. Defendants
adopted the common purpose of the conspiracy and participated in
its consummation. The goal of the money-laundering conspiracy
was to deprive Plaintiffs of money and property, while.assuring
that the profits derived from smuggling activities were
repatriated to the benefit of the RJR DEFENDANTS in a
clandestine manner to avoid detection and prosecution.

f. Money Laundering (18 ﬁ.S.C. §8§ 1957, 1961(1)).
Defendante knowingly engaged or attempted to engage in monetary
transactions in the United States, in criminally derived
property that is of a value greater than $10,000 and is derived
from specified unlawful activity. 18 U.S.C. § 1957(f) (3) and.§
1956 (c) (7) (A) . Defendants engaged in monetary transéctions,
including deposits, withdrawals, transfers, or_exchanges, in or
affecting interstate or foreigﬁ commerce, of funds or monetary
instruments by, through, or to a financial institution.
Defendants knew that the monetary transactions received in
exchange for the smuggled cigarettes represented the proceeds of
specified unlawful activity, including but not limited to, wire

fraud, mail fraud, and violations of the Travel Act, and an

160



® @

offense against a foreign nation involving the manufacture,
importation, sale, or distribution of a controlled substance.

119. The acts form a “pattern” of récketeering
activity within 18 U.S.C. § 1961(5). The Defendants and others
with whom they have been associated have been related in their
common objectives of maximizing global sales of tobacco products
and defrauding the Plaintiffs of the income to which the
Plaintiffs are lawfully entitled. The Defendants’ predicate
acts have had the same or similar purposes, results,
participants, victims, and methods of commisgion, and occurred
over at least a ten-year period. The predicate acts have been
consistently repeated and are capable of further répetition.

120. The Defendants’ pattern of racketeering
activities dates from at least January.l, 1985, through the
present and threatens to continue in the future.:

121. The RJR DEFENDANTS used or invested, directly or
indirectly, racketeering income, or a part thereof, or the
proceeds of such income, to acquire an interest in, establish,
and operate, the RJR Smuggling Enterprise, which is and was
engaged in, or the activities of which affect and have affected,
interstate or foreign commerce, in viclation of 18 U.S.C. §

1962 (a). The RJR DEFENDANTS were principals in the racketeering

gscheme. The MEMBER STATES suffered.multiple-injuries to their
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economic interests as a result of this use and investment of
racketeering income.

122. Specifically, the RJR DEFENDANTS received the
income and proceeds of a pattern of racketeering activity in
which they participated as principals, including an
international money-laundering scheme, acts of wire fraud and
mail fraud, and violations of the Travel Act. Upon their
receipt of such ill-gotten gains by wire trangfers from the
smugglers and/or their associates, the RJR DEFENDANTS used and
invested such income and proceeds, or a portion thereof, to
acquire an interest in, establish, and operate the RJR Smuggling
Enterprise which was and is engaged in interstate and foreign
commerce. In particular, the RJR DEFENDANTS used the proceeds
of the scheme to (a) operate the RJR Smuggling Enterprise; (b)
replenish the supply of contraband cigérettes for ultimate sale
on the European “black market;” (c¢) acquire, purchase, and
subsidize facilities necessary to the RJR Smuggling Enterprise,
including manufacturing, éales, and distribution operations; (d}
compensate empldyees and agents of the RJR DEFENDANTS engaged in
the smuggling activities; (e) pay expenses incurred in
connection with smuggling activities sﬁch as telephone bills
incurred in the wire fraud scheme and travel costs incurred by
such employees; and (f) establish a flourishing “black market”

for the sale of contraband cigarettes. In sum, the RJR
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DEFENDANTS did not reinvest the proceeds of racketeering
activity in their general business operations, but instead used
and invested such proceeds to establish the infrastructure of,
acquire an interest in, and operate the RJR Smuggling
Enterprise, and it was this use and investment that harmed the
MEMBER STATES. The use and investment of the pfoceeds of
racketeering activity occurred in several ways, including but
not limited to the following: | |

a. The proceeds from the sale of cigarettes smuggled
into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY finance the sales and marketing
operations that promote the increase of those sales in
succeeding years.

b. The.proceeds from the sale of cigarettes smuggled
into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITX are utilized to offset the
additional expenses incurred by.the Defendants when they.pay for
the additional shipping and handling charges associated with the
clandestine movement of the cigarettes through the circuitous
routes esgtablished by the Defendants.

c¢.”  The proceeds from the sale of'cigarettes smuggled
into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY are utilized to pay for the
additional costs associated with the repackaging and re-labeling
of cigarettes neceésary to allow for the Smuggling trade to

flourish.
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123. The MEMBER STATES were injured in their business
and property by reason of the RJR DEFENDANTS' use and investment
of racketeering income to acquire, establish, and operate the
RJR Smuggling Enterprise. Absent this use and investment of
racketeering income, contraband sales to the European “black
market” by the RJR DEFENDANTS and their co-congpiratorsg would
have been difficult if not impossible, the infrastructure of the
smuggling enterprise could nbt have been created or functioned,.
and the economic¢ injury to the MEMBER STATES would have been
avoided in whole or in part.

124. As a direct and.proximate regsult of the
violations set forth above, the Plaintiffs, the MEMBER STATES,
have been injured in their business énd property as set forth
more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (392) through forty
(40} . The Defendants’ violations of 18 U.S8.C. § 1962 (a) caused
these losses. Under the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c), the
MEMBER STATES are entitled to bring this action and recover

herein treble damages, the cost of bringing the suit, pre-

judgment interest, and reascnable attorneys'.fees.
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COUNT XII
MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
(RICO; 18 U.S.C. § 1962(b))

125. The MEMBER STATES restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through one hundred twenty-four (124) and further
allege:

126. The RJR DEFENDANTS acquired or maintained,
directly or indirectly, through a pattern of racketeering
activity, an interest in and cOntroljof the RIR Smuggling
Enterprise, which was and is engaged in, or the activities of
which affect and have affected, interstate or foreign commerce
in violation of 18 U.S8.C. § 1962(b). The Plaintiffs, the MEMBER
STATES, have been injured by the Defendants' acquisition and
maintenance of an interest in and control bf the enterprise
through a pattern of racketeering activity.

127. The Defendants, acting through a pattern of
racketeering activity, acquired or maintained, directly oxr
indirectly, an interest in and control of the RJR Smuggling
Enterprigse which it engaged in and the activities of which
affect interstate and foreign commerce. Specifically, the RJR
DEFENDANTS maintained control of the RJR Smuggling Enterprise by
means of racketeering activities, including, for example, (a)

interstate and international wire communications in violation of
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18 U.8.C., Sectioﬁ.i343 (orders were placed telephonically and
RJR had total contrpl over the enterprise and the distribution
of its product); (b) money laundering in viclation of 18 U.S.C.,
Sections 1956 and 1957 (RJR controlled and concealed the flow of
the proceeds of the smuggling - a kgy.aim of the scheme -
through money laundering); and (c) violations of the Travel Act,
18 U.S.C., Section 1952 (cross-border travel and transactions to
facilitate smuggling.and other illiciﬁ activities). Through
this pattern of racketeering activities, which also-included
transmitting false statements to governmént authorities, the RJR
DEFENDANTS were able to acquire and maintain an interest in and
control of the RIJR Smuggling Enterprise. This interest and
control furthered, concealed, and protected the operations of
the smuggling enterprise,.and thereby permitted the RJR
Smuggling Enterprise to flourish without detection.

128. As a direct and proximate result of the
Defendants’ acquigition and maintenance of an interest in and
control of the RJR Smuggling Enterprise, the Plaintiffs, the
MEMBER STATES, have suffered the loss of money and property as
set forth more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (39)
through forty (40). The Defendants’ violations of 18 U.S.C. §
1962 (b) caused these losses. Under the provisions of 18 U.S.C.

§ 1964 (c), the MEMBER STATES are entitled to bring this action
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and recover herein treble damages, the cost of bringing the

guit, pre-judgment interest, and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

COUNT XIII
MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
(RICO; 18 U.S5.C. § 1962{c}))

129. The MEMBER STATES restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through one hundred twenty-eight (128) and fufther
allege.

130. The RJR DEFENDANTS through the commission of two
or more acts constituting a pattern of racketeering activity,
directly or indirectly, participated in the operation or
management of the RJR Smuggling Enterprise, the activities of
which affect interstate or foreign commerce.

131. At all relevant times, the RJR DEFENDANTS
participated in the operation'or management of an “enterprise,”
within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961(4). The RJR DEFENDANTS,
operating together and individually, directed and controlled the
RJR Smuggling Enterprise. The RJR DEFENDANTS operated, managed,
and exercised control of the smuggling enterprise by, among
other things: (a)} establishing a money-laundering scheme by
which the co-conspirators facilitated the smuggling scheme and

concealed and remitted to the RJR DEFENDANTS the proceeds of the

167



-~

smuggling scheme; (b) compelling the smugglers to sell smuggled
cigarettes at a price set by the Defendants; (c) requiring the
smugglers to keep detailed records of sales of contraband
cigarettes; (d) instructing the smugglers to distribute
particular brands of cigarettes in specified markets; (e)
providing information to the smugglers to allow them to avoid
detection and apprehension; (£) investing and using the proceeds
of the smuggling scheme in the enterprise; (g) creating
incentives for increased sales on thé “black market;” (h)
selling and distributing vast quantities of cigarettes at
favorable prices; and (i) giviﬁg credit.terms to the smugglers

that allowed the RJR DEFENDANTS to control the smuggling scheme.

It waé the policy and practice of RJIR that if the smugglers
failed to follow the RJR DEFENDANTS’ gpecific orders, the RJIR
DEFENDANTS would have shut off the supply of favorably priced
cigarettes to the smugglers, and cut.off the lifeblood of the
smuggling scheme.

132. As a direct and proximate resulﬁ of the
violationg set forth above, the Plaintiffs, the MEMBER STATES,
have been injured in their business and property as set forth
more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (39) through forty
(40). The Defendants’ violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (c¢c) caused
these losses. Under the ?rovisions of 18 U.5.C. § 1964(0); the

MEMBER STATES are entitled to bring this action and recover
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herein treble damageg, the cost of bringing the guit, pre-

judgment interest, and reagonable attorneys’ fees.

'COUNT XIV
MEMBER STATES

(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
(RICO; 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d))

133. The MEMBER STATES restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through one hundred thirty-two (132) and further allege:

134. The RJR DEFENDANTS entered into an agreement with
each other and with distributors, shippers, currency dealers,
and smugglers to join in the conspiracy to violate 18 U.S.C. §§
1962 (a), 1962(b), and 1962(c). Each Defendént entered into an
agreement to join the conspiracy, and took acﬁs_in the
furtherance of the conspiracy and knowingly participatéd in the
conspiracy. The purpose of the conspiracy was to smuggle
cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY to the economic detriment
of Plaintiffs and to the economic benefit of the RJR DEFENDANTS.
The congpirators carried out the scheme and each conspirator was
put on notice of the general nature of the conspiracy, that the
conspiracy extended beyond the individual role of any single
member, and that the conspiratorial venture functioned as a
continuing unit for a common purpcse. The RJR DEFENDANTS

adopted the goal of furthering and facilitating the criminal
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endeavor. Their stake in the smuggling venture was in making
profits and increasing market share which they knew could come
only from their informed and interested cooperatioﬁ with
smugglers, and their active éssistance, stimulatién, and
instigation of the smuggling activities.

135. The RJR DEFENDANTS, together with each member of
the consgpiracy, agreed and conspired to violate: (1) 18 U.S8.C. §
1962 (a) by using, or causing the use of, income they derived
from the above-described pattern of racketeering activities in
the acquisition, establishment, and/or operation of the
enterprige, the activities of which affect interstate or foreign
commerce; {(2) 18 U.S.C. § 1962(b) by acgquiring or maintaining,
or causing the acguisition or maintenance of, through a pattern
of racketeering activity, an interest or control in the
enterprise, the activities of which affect interstate or foreign
commerce; and, 18 U.S.C. § 196?(0) by participating, directly
and indirectly, in the conduct of the affairs of the enterprise
through a pattern of racketeering activity, including an
agreement that the conspirators, or one of them, would commit or
cause the commigsion of two or more racketeering acts
constituting such a pattern.

136. The RJR DEFENDANTS participated in and cooperated
with each other and with their co-conspirators in the

aforementioned conspiracy that enabled each cigarette
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manufacturer and distributor to enhance its market share,
- suppress its competition, and promote sale of its products.

137. As a part of their conspiracy, the RJR DEFENDANTS
retained various lobbyists, funded “research,” and conducted a
joint publiC*relations campalgn so as to misstate the nature and
gscope of cilgarette smuggling and so as to promote their own
interests.

138. The RJR DEFENDANTS actively participated in the
conspiracy to smuggle cigarettes and to generate false and
misleading information concerning smuggling activities.

139. As a result of the conspiracy, the RJR DEFENDANTS
and their co-conspirators were able to facilitaﬁe the smuggling
of large volumes of cigarettes into THE.EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.

.140. The membership of the conspiracy in gquestion
included the RJR DEFENDANTS and tobacco distributors, the
shippers, the smugglers, currency brokers, and the RJR
DEFENDANTS' subsidiary corporations; who act in concert to
produce the cigarettes, mislabel or fail to properly label the
clgarettes, smuggle and sell the cigarettesgs, and arrange for
payment in a way that is undetectable by governmental
authorities, with said payment ultimately being returned to the
Defendants in the United States. As co-conspirators, the RJR
DEFENDANTS are liable for all of the actions committed by all of

‘the co-consgpirators within the conspiracy and are liable for all
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of the damages sustained by THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES that were caused by any membe;s of the conspiracy,
regardless of whether the RJR DEFENDANTS were themselves
directly involved in a particular aspect of the enterprise.
141. As a direct and proximate result of the
violations set forth above, the Plaintiffs, the MEMBER STATES,
have been injured in their business and propefty as set forth
more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (39) through forty
(40). The Defendants’ violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (d) céused
these losses. Under the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c), the
MEMBER STATES are entitled to bring this action and recover
herein treble damages, the cost of bringing the suit, pre-

judgment interest, and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

COUNT XV
MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
(RICO; 18 U.S.C. §§ 1964 (a), 1964 (c), 28 U.S.C. § 1651(a))

142, The MEMBER STATES restate and reallege paragraphs
one (1) through one hundred forty-one (141) and further allege:

143. The United States District Court is empowered to
prevent and restrain violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962 by issuing
appropriate orders, including, but not limited to: ordering any

person to divest himself or herself of any interest, direct or
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indirect, in any enterprise; imposing reasonable restrictions on
the future activities or investments of any person, inclﬁding,
but not limited to, prohibiting any person from engaging in the
same type of endeavor in which the enterprise engaged, the
activities of which affect interstate or foreign commerce; oY
ordering dissolution or reorganization.of any enterprise, making
due provision for the rights of innocent persons. 18 U.S.C. §
1964 (a) .

| 144 . The RJR DEFENDANTS are currently actively engaged
in the activities set forth within this complaint that promote
and support the smuggling of cohtraband cigarettes into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.

145. The Defendants intend to cpntinue gaid activities
and to interfere with investigations being done by governmental
officials into smuggling activities. |

146, The Defendants, by their conduct of selling
cigarettes to smugglers, creating false and misleading
documents, improperly 1abe1iﬁg shipments of cigarettes, and
setting forth mechanisms of payment by which smugglers may pay
for the cigarettes without being detected by government
investigations all continue to exacerbate the problem of
cigarette smuggling in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER

STATES and to damage the MEMBER STATES.
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147. A! .résult of the Defendants.c_:onduct in
violation of 18 U.S.C. §§8 1962(a), 1962(b), and 1962{(c), the
MEMBER STATES have been and continue to be irreparably injured
ag is alleged more fully above.

148. As a result of the nature of the smuggling
activities, it would be functionally imposgsible for the MEMBER
STATES to put a complete halt to said smuggling activities as
long as the Defendants continue to provide support for the
smugglers. In addition, the MEMBER STATES continue to suffer
injury to buginess and property to an extraordinary degree.

149. Money damages will not provide a full and
complete remedy for Defendants’ unlawful conduct. There is no
adequate remedy at law that will protect the MEMBER STATES in
the future from these smuggling activities if the Defendants do
not ceasé their involvement in and supporf of smuggling
activities. Purguant to 18 U.S.C. §§ 1964{a), 1964 (c), as well
as 28 U.S.C. § 1651(a), the MEMBER STATES demand full RICO

Injunctive and Equitable Relief.
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- COUNT XvI
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and MEMEER STATES
(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
(COMMON LAW FRAUD)

150. Plaintiffs restate and reallege paragraphs one
(1) through one hundred forty-nine (149) and further allege:

151. The RJR DEFENDANTS and their co-conspirators
intentionally falsified documents, falsified shipping records,
and generated falge and misleading billing records concerning
the payment for smuggled cigarettes so as to mislead the
Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, and legal authorities in the
MEMBER STATES as to the destination of smuggled cigarettes. The
RJR DEFENDANTS and their co-conspirators made these false and
material stateﬁents and represgentations and failed to disclose
material information in such documents and records with intent
to defraud the Plaintiffs. The Defendants made these material
misrepresentations and omissions with the knowledge and
intention that the Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES, would reasonably rely on said documents. The RJR
DEFENDANTS entered into an understanding or agreemént, express
or tacit, with their distributbrs, customers, agents,
consultants, and other co-conspirators, to participate in a
common gcheme, plan or design to commit the aforésaid tortious

acts and thereby smuggle contraband cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN
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COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES. In pursuance of the agreement,
RJR and its distributors, customers, agents, consultants, and
other co-conspirators acted tortiously by, among other things,
committing the aforesaid acts constituting fraud, thereby
causing harm to Plaintiffs. The RJR DEFENDANTS, through
agreement and joint action with their co-conspirators, acted
tortiously, recklessly, unlawfully, and negligently, to the
detriment of Plaintiffs. By means of the aforesaid concerted
action, the RJR DEFENDANTS and their co-conspirators are jointly
and severally liable for the torts and other wrongful conduct
alleged herein.

152. Plaintiffs reasonably relied upon the Defendants’
migrepresentations, and incurred damage as a result of such
reliance. Specific examples of the process by which these
activities occurred are set forth above. |

153. The Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES, reasonably relied upon said documents.as part of
their monitoring of the shipment of cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY.

154, Furthermore, the RJR DEFENDANTS knowingly and
intentionally generated false, misleading and material
information, and intentionally concealed other material
information, concerning the nature of smuggling in THE EURCPEAN

COMMUNITY, the extent of smuggling in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY,
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and the causes of smuggling in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY with the
knowledge and intention that the Plaintiffsg, THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES, would reasonably rely upon.said
information. |

155. The Plaintiffs, THE EURQPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES, did reasonably rely upon data and information
provided to them by the Defendaﬁts.and/or their co~c§nspirators
and agents in acting or refrainiﬁg from acting with respect to
smuggling activities.

156. The RJR DEFENDANTS, in falsifying documents to
expedite the smuggling of cigarettes; providing misleading
information concerning the smuggling of cigarettes, and
concealing material and true information, acted in willful,
wanton, gross, and callous disregard for the rights of the
Plaintiffs, THE EUROPEAN CCOMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES. The
aforesaid actions were knowingly taken for the purpose of
gupporting the activities of the Defendants’ co-conspirators and
with the intent of increasing the profite and sales of the
Defendants and harming THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER
STATES.

157. Defendants were duty-bound to disclose the
material information concerning the destination of tobacco
shipments and their operations that had been concealed. By law,

no person may make false statements to the government. Having
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undertaken to make representations to THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and
the MEMBER STATES, Defendants were obligated to provide full,
complete, énd truthful information concerning the destination of
tobacco shipments and their operations{ Defendants had
superior, if not exclusive, knowledge of such information, and
it was not readily available to the Plaintiffs. Defendants
intended and knew, or should have known, that Plaintiffs would
reasonably rely, act, and refrain from acting, on the basis of
false and/or incomplete information provided to Plaintiffs by
Defendants, and Plaintiffs did so to their detriment. Under
these circumstances, DefendantS’ conduct aﬁounts to fraudulent
misrepresentation.and fraudulent concealment, and an effective
conversion of Plaintiffs’ money and property.

158. As a direct and proximate result of the RJR
DEFENDANTS'’ fraud and the Plaintiffs’ reliance upon said fraud,
the Plaintiffs have suffered economic damages as are set forth
more fully above in paragraphs thirty-nine (39) through forty
(40). The Plaintiffs demand judament for damages, both
compensatory and punitive, as well as full Common Law Injunctive

and Equitable Relief.
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- COUNT XVII
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
(PUBLIC NUISANCE)

159, Plaintiffs restate and reallege paragraphs one
(1) through one hundred fifty-eight (158) and further allege:

160. Plaintiffs are governmental authorities.

161. Smuggling of contraband cigarettes and money
laundering are a violation of law and a public nuisance.

162. The smuggling and money laundering activities in
the United States and THE EURO?EAN COMMUNITY of the RJR
DEFENDANTS: (a) Have substantially and unreasonabiy interfered
with, offended, injured and endangered, and continue to
interfere with, coffend, injure and endanger, the public health,
morals, safety, convenience, and well-being of the general
public and the operation of the market for tobacco products in
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and have interfered with and endangered
the Customs Territory, Customs Border and free market which THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is bound to protect; (b) Constitute conduct
which is proscribed by applicable laws, administrative
regulations, and directivés;_(c) Constitute conduct of a
continuing nature and/or have produced a permanent or long-

lasting effect, and the Defendants know or have reason to know,
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that said conductiias a significant harmful effect upon the
public right.

163. The smuggling activities in the United States
and THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY of the RJR.DEFENDANTS have been, and
continue to be, éfféctuated thfough widesﬁread criminal
activity, including mail fraud, wire fraud, money laundering,
smuggling, and other illegal acts.

164. The RJR DEFENDANTS facilitated the smuggling of
contraband cigarettes into THE EURCPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER
STATES by meang of a variety of acts and omigsgionsg conducted in
or directed from the United States,  including the fqllowing: (a)
The RJR DEFENDANTS arranged a process bf which cigarettes
purchased by smugglers-could be paid for by secret paymenﬁs into
Swiss corporations and/or Swiss bank accounts-So as to conceal
revenues derived from smuggling activities. (b) The RJR
DEFENDANTS provided specific marketing informatioﬁ to smugglers,
including which products were in demand and the volume of
cigarettes that was needed to meet the specific demands of the
smugglers’ clients. (c) The Defendants filed or caused the
filing of falée and fraudulent documents with THE EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY and/or the MEMBER STATES which misstated the value of
and the intended destination of cigarettes that were placed
within customs bonded warehouses and/or free trade zones within

THE EURCPEAN COMMUNITY. (d) The RJR DEFENDANTS required the
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smugglers to keepmlogs of their loads, to keep‘track of where
the loads were delivered, and the price for which the cigarettes
were gold. This allowed the RJR DEFENDANTS to maintain direct,
hands-on control of the entire smuggling process. The RJR
DEFENDANTS threatened smugglers that if they did not keep proper
records of their smuggling activities, the RJR DEFENDANTS would
cut off their supply and deal witﬁ other smuggling customers.
(e} The RJR DEFENDANTS failed to supervise the distribution of
their tobacco products to assure that such products were not
sold illegally. (£f) The RJR DEFENDANTS failed to act reasonably
when they were put on notice of their inveolvement with
smugglers. {(g) The RJR DEFENDANTS entered into an understanding
or agreement, express or tacit, with their distributors,
customers, agents, consultants, and other co-conspirators, to
participate in a common scheme, plan of design to commit the
aforesaid tortious acts and thefeby smuggle contraband
cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES.
In pursuance of the agreement, RJR and its distributors,
customers, agents, consultants, and other co-congpirators acted
tortiously by, among other things, committing the aforesaid acts
constituting public nuisance, thereby causing harm to
Plaintiffs. The RJR DEFENDANTS, through joint action with their
co-conspirators, acted tortiously, recklessly, unlawfully, and

negligently, to the detriment of Plaintiffs. By means of the

181



¢ e

aforesaid concerted‘éction, the RJR DEFENDANTS and their co-
conspirators are jointly and severally liable for the torts and
other wrongful conduct alleged herein.

165. Through these and other intentional and negligent
acts and omissions, the RJR DEFENDANTS have substantially and
unreasonably offended, interfered with, and caused damage to the
public in the exercise of rights common to all, in a manner such
as to (a) offend public morals,‘(b) interfere with use by the
public of a public place, (¢) endanger and injure the property.
1ife, health, safety, and comfort of a considerable number of
persons; and (d) injure and interfere with the market for
tobacco products in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY; and (e) injure the
economic well being of the citizens of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.
The acte and omissions of the RJR DEFENDANTS constitute a public
nuisance. This public nuisance, or some part of it, continues
unabated to the detriment_of pPlaintiffs’ interests and has
undermined and endangered the Customs Territory, Customs Border
and free market which THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY is bound to
protect.

166. The RJR DEFENDANTS knew, Or reasonably should
have known, that their acts and omissions relating to smuggling
of tobacco products created great dangers to the community,
including Plaintiffs’ economic and non-economic interests. The

Defendants directly, or through their co-consgpirators,
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undermined THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY’S duties and authority to
regulate foreign commerce, regulate customs territories, free
trade zones, and customs ponded warehouses, regulate
transportation into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNIT? or within its
borders, ensure and regulate the free movement of goods within
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY, regulate gsafety and gecurity at sea,
regulate and take action to protect against preaches of THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY Customs Territory OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY
Ccustoms Border, regulate and assure that foreign goods.entering
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY enter THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY with
declared values that are accurate, and regulate and set rules to
combat money laundering, all harms different from those suffered
by members of thé general public oOr the.Member states, and all
wrongs which are the duty and responsibility of THE.EUROPEAN
COMMUNITY to redress.

167. The RJIR DEFENDANTS have acted maliciously,
wantonly, and with a recklegsness that bespeaks an improper
motive and vindictiveness, and have engaged in outrageous and
oppressive conduct and with a reckless O wanton disregard of
gafety and rights. Their conduct amounts to a fraud on the
public.

168. As a direct and proximate resulﬁ of the acts
and/or omigsions of the RJR DEFENDANTS, which constitute &

public nulisance, plaintiffs have austained and continue to
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sustain injury as.éet forth more fully in paragraphs thirty-nine
(39) and forty (40). THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER
STATES each have the right to recover damages as set forth in
paragraphs 39 through 40 in that each has suffered damages which
are unique to it and which are of a kind different from those
suffered by the general public.

169. By reason of the injury to ﬁheir economic and
non-economic interests due to the public nuisance, as set forth
in the precediﬁg paragraphs to this complaint, Plaintiffs are
entitled td an award of damages, including actual, compensatory,
and punitive damages. In addition, damages do not constitute a
full and adequate remedy at law, and for this reason, Plaintiffs
are entitled to full Common Law Injunctive and Equitablé Relief,
including a judgment.perménently enjoining Defendants from the
continuation of activities constituting a public nuisance, and
compelling Defendants to take steps to abate and prevent the

smuggling of tobacco products.

COUNT XVIII
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and MEMBER STATES
(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
(UNJUST ENRICHMENT)
170. Plaintiffs restate and reallege paragraphs one

(1) through one hundred gixty-nine (169) and further allege:
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171. The RJR DEFENDANTS were unjustl& énriched at
Plaintiffs’ expense. The acts and omissions of these Defendants
and others have placed in the possession of these Defendants
money under such circumstances that in equity and good
conscience they ought not to retain it.

172. The RJR DEFENDANTS were unjustly enriched through
their smuggling scheme. The RJR DEFENDANTS entered into an
understanding or agreement, express or tacit, with their
distributors, customers, agents, consultants, and other co-
conspirators, to participate in a common scheme, plan or design
to commit the aforesaid tortious acts and thereby smuggle
contraband cigarettes into THE EURCPEAN COMMUNiTY and the MEMBER
STATES. ' In.pursuance of the agreement, RJR and its |
digtributors, customers, agents, consultants, and other cé-
conspirators acted tortiously by, among other things, committing
the aforesaid acts constituting unjust enrichment, thereby
causing harm to Plaintiffs. The RJR DEFENDANTS, through joint
action with their co-conspirators, acted tortiousiy, recklesegly,
unlawfully, and negligently, to the detriment of Plaintiffs. By
means of the aforesaid concerted action, the RJR DEFENDANTS and
their co-conspirators are jointly and severally liable for the
torts and other wrongful conduct alleged herein.

173. THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY provides at its expense a

marketplace without internal frontiers which inures to the
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benefit of ail commercial enterprises which operate within the
borders of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. It is this marketplace which
makes the sale of products such as cigarettes more expeditious
and profitable. The Defendants, in smuggling cigarettes into
THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and moving said products freely within
THE EUROPEAN.COMMUNITY without the payment of duties and taxes,
make illicit use of this marketplace to their economic benefit
and to the economic detriment of THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the
MEMBER STATES. The RJR DEFENDANTS were unjustly enriched
through their smuggling scheme. By reason of their smuggling
gcheme, and the illicit avoidance of payment of duties and
taxes, the RJR DEFENDANTS were enabled to sell their product at
lower cost, and illegally enhance profits, market share, and the
gales price of thelr international tobacco operations.

174. The unjust enrichment of thé RJR DEFENDANTS was
accomplished at the expense of Plaintiffs. By reason of the
smuggling scheme, Plaintiffs were, and continue to be, deprived
of duties and taxes, and have suffered other economic and non-
economic injﬁries, and Defendants reaped vast profits and
proceeds from their illegal scheme.

175. Under these circumstances, the receipt and
retention of the money derived from smﬁggling operationg are
guch that, as between Plaintiffs and Defendants, it is unjust

for Defendants to retain it.
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176. Equity and good conscience require the RJR
DEFENDANTS to pay damages and restitution to Plaintiffs,
disgorge their ill-gotten gains and, to effectuate these
remedies, a constructive trust and equitable lien should be
imposed by this Court upon'the proceeds obtained by Defendants
by reason of smuggling activities, which proceeds are rightly
.owned by and belong to Plaintiffs. Plaintiffs have suffered
damages as set forth more fully in paragraphs thirty-nine (39)
and forty (40), énd are entitled to recover actual,
compensatory, and punitive damages. Judgment in Plaintiffs’
favor should include full Common Law Injunctive and Equitable

Relief.

COUNT XIX
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and MEMBER STATES

(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
{(NEGLIGENCE)

177. Plaintiffs restate and reallege paragraphs one
(1) through one hundred seventy-six (176) and further allege:

178. Defendants owed, and continue to owe, a duty of
reagonable care to refrain from causing foreseeable loss to the

Plaintiffs. Defendants were and are obligated to avoid
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negligently causiﬁg harm to Plaintiffs and were and are duty-
bound to: |

a. produce, market, and distribute their cigarette
products lawfully and with due care;

b. use proper practices and procedures in the
hiring, selection, approval, instruction, training, éupervision,
and discipline of employees and agents engaged in the
production, marketing, and distribution of their products, some
of whom the Defendants knew, or reasonably should have known,
were assisting and otherwise engaged in the smuggling of
cligarettes;

c. design, implement, and utilize effective
monitoring and oversight procedures, including appropriate
compliance programs, to deter and detect. smuggling-related
activities by their employees and agents;

d. investigate and terminate the smuggling-related
gonduct of their employees and agents, particularly inasmuch as
their managerial personnel with decision-making authority were
put on reasonable notice of such illicit conduct;

e. deal with the Plaintiffs, and their
representatives, in an honest, good féith, and forthright

manner;
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£. terminate sales of their tobacco products to or
through persons or entities known to be engaged, directly or
indirectly, in smuggling; and

g. comply with federal and state statutes and the
standards of care reflected therein.

179. As manufacturers, distributors, and dominant
participants in the marketplace, Defendants had, and continue to
have, the authority and ability to act reasonably to prevent the
gmuggling of their products for the protéction of Plaintiffs.
Reasonable steps could and should have been taken by the
Defendants to prevent oxr reducé the rigk of their products being
sold to persons likely to distribute and sell them on the
European “black market.”

180. Defendants, as manufacturers, distributors, and
dominant participants in the marketplace, have a special ability
and duty to exercise reagonable care to detect and guard against
the rigks associated with the distribution of their products,
for the benefit and protedtion of those foreseeably and
unreascnably placed at risk of harm from the distribution of
their products, including Plaintiffs,

181. Defendants’ unreasonable acts and omissions
created and enhanced the risk.that their products would be
distributed on the European “black market” and injure

Plaintiffs.
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182. Deféndants' unreagonable acts and omissions
affirmatively and foreseeabiy obstructed Plaintiffs’ abilities
tb collect full and proper duties and taxes, caused substantial
economic and non-economic damages to the Plaintiffs, and
otherwige obstructed their ability to protect themselves from
harms associated with smuggling. Defendants, acting with and
through their employees, agents, and co-conspirators, breached
their duty of care, as aforesaid, by acts and/or omissions that
posed an unreasonable and foreseeable risk of.harm to
Plaintiffs. The RJR DEFENDANTS entered into an understanding or
agreement, express or tacit, with their distributors, customers,
agents, consultants, and other co—conspiratofs, to participate
in a common scheme, plan‘or design to commit the aforesaid
tortious acts and thefeby smuggle contraband cigarettes into THE
EUROPEAN COMMUNITY. In pursuance of the agreement, RJR and its
distributors, customers, agents, consultants, and other co-
conspirators.acted tortiously by, among other things, committing
the aforesaid acts constituting negligence, thereby causing harm
to Plaintiff. The RJR DEFENDANTS, thiough joint action with
their co-conspirators, acted tortiously, recklessly, unlawfully,
and negligently, to the detriment of Plaintiffs. By means of
the aforesaid concerted action, the RJIJR DEFENDANTS and their co-
conspirators are jointly and severally liable for the torts and

other wrongful conduct alleged herein.
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183. Defendants' breach proximately caused, and
continues to cause, damage to the economic and non-economic
interest of the Plaintiffs, as set forth more fully in
paragraphs thirty-nine (39) and forty (40).

184. The RJR DEFENDANTS have acted maliciously,
wantonly, and with a recklessness that béspeaks an lmproper
motive and vindictiveness, and have engaged in'outrageous and
oppressive conduct and with a reckless or wanton disregard of
gafety and rights. Their conduct amounts to a fraud on the
public.

185. By reason of the injury to their economic and
non-economic interests due to the negligence of_the_Defendants,
as aforesaid, Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of damages,
including actual, compensatory, and punitive damages. In
addition, damages do not constitute a full and adequate remedy
at law, and for this reason, Plaintiffs are entitled to full
Common Law Injunctive and Equitable Relief, including a judgment
permanently enjoining Defendants from the continuation of
activities constituting negligence, and compelling Defendants to
take steps to abate and prevent the smuggling of tobacco

products in THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER STATES.
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COUNT XX
EUROPEAN COMN.I'U'NiTY and MEMBER STATES

(AS TO THE RJR DEFENDANTS)
(NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION)

186. Plaintiffs restate and reallege paragraphs one
(1) through one hundred eighty-five (185) and further allege:

187. The Defendants dwed, and éontinue to owe, a duty
of reasonable care to refrain from causing foreseeable loss to
Plaintiffs. Defendants have assﬁmed the special duty to speak
truthfully to government officials, and particularly due to
their superior knowledge of their own conduct, were bound to
speak with due.care. Defendants were and are obligated to avoid
negligently causing foreseeable harm to Plaintiffs, and were and
are duty-bound to exercise reasonable care to: (a) refrain from
negligently misrepresenting -- through documents.and other forms
of communication that the Defendanﬁs knew br should have known
would be reasonably relied on by Plaintiffs -- the payment for
and/or value of smuggled cigarettes; the destination of smuggled
cigarettes; and the nature, extent, and cause of smuggling
within THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY; (b) be truthful in their
representations to Plaintiffs and their represehtatives
concerning smuggling and other improper activities as aforesaid;

and (¢) avoid misleading Plaintiffs when providing Plaintiffs
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with such information as Defendants possess concerning the
smuggling of Defendants' products into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY.

188. Defendants breached their duty to Plaintiffs by
negligently making various material misrepresentations and/or
failing to disclose material information to Plaintiffs and their
representatives as aforesaid.

189. The Defendants have acted maliciously, wantonly,
and with a recklessness that bespéaks an improper motive and
vindictiveness and.have engaged in outrageous énd oppressive
conduct and with a recklessness or wanton disregard of the
Plaintiffs’ interests and rights. Their conduct amounts to a
fraud on the public.

190. Defendants, acting with and through. their
employees, agents; and co-conspirators, breached their duty of
care, as aforesaid, by acts and/or omissions that posed an
unreasonable risk of foreseeable harm to Plaintiffs.

191. Plaintiffs reasonably relied on Defendants’
misrepresentations and, as a result, Defendants' breach
proximately caused, and continues to cause, damage to the
economic interest of Plaintiffs. The RJR DEFENDANTS entered into
an understanding or agreement, express or tacit, with their
distributors, customersg, agents, consultants, and other co-
conspirators, to participate in a common scheme, plan or design

to commit the aforesaid tortious acts and thereby smuggle
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contraband cigarettes into THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITY and the MEMBER
STATES. In.pursuance of the agreement, RJR and its
distributors, customers, agents, consultants, and other co-
conspirators acted tortiously by, among other things, committing
the aforesaid acts constituting negligent misrepresentation,
thereby causing harm to Plaintiffs. The RJR DEFENDANTS, through
joint action with their co-conspirators, acted tortiously,
recklessly, unlawfully, and negligently, to the detriment of
Plaintiffs. By means of the aforesaid concerted action, the RJR
DEFENDANTS and their co-conspirators are jointly and severally
liable for the torts and other wrongful conduct alleged herein.
192. By reason of the injury to its economic
interests due to the negligence, malice and recklessness of the
Defendants, as set forth more fully in paragraphs thirty-nine
(39) and forty (40), and Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of
damages, including actual, compensatory, and punitive damages.
In addition, damages do not constitute a full and adequate
remedy at law, and for this reason, Plaintiffs are eﬁtitled to
full Common Law Injunctive and Equitable Relief, including a
judgment permanently enjoining Defendants from the continuation

of activities constituting negligence.
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DEMAND FOR JUDGMENT

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs demand judgment in
their favor and against Defendants as follows:

a. Pursuant to COUNT I, damages, inéluding interest,
againgt the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, the
precise amount to be supplied to. the Court upon a trial on the
merits; treble the actual damages pursuant. to 18 U.S.C. §

1964 (c¢), along with an award of the costs of the sﬁit and a
reasonable attorney’s fee. | |

b. Pursuant to COUNT II, damages, including
interest, against the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, jointly and
severally, the precise amount to be supplied to the Court upon a
trial of the merits; treble the actual damages pursuant to 18
U.S.C. §8 1964(c), along with an award of the costs of the suit
and a reasonable attorney’s fee.

c. Purguant to COUNT III, damages, including
interest, againgt the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, jointly and
severally, the precise amount to be supplied to the Court upon a
trial of the merits;.treble the actual damages pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 1964 (c), along with an award of the costs of the suit
aﬁd a reascnable attorney‘’s fee.

d. Pursuant to COUNT IV, damages, including

interest, against the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, jointly and
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severally, the pfébise amount to be supplied to the Court upon a
trial of the merits; treble the actual damages pursuant to 18
U.8.C. § 1964 (c), along with an award of the costs of the suit
and a reasonable attorney’s fee.

e. Pursuant to COUNT V, RICO Injunctive and

Equitable Relief against the PHILIP MORRIS DEFENDANTS, jointly
and severally, along with an award of the costs of the suit and
a reasonable attorney’s fee.

£. Pursuant to COUNT VI, against the PHILIP MCRRIS
DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and
punitive damages, with interest, the precise amount to be
supplied to the Court upon a trial of the merits; Common Law
Injunctive and Equitable Relief; and the costs of the suit and a
reasonable attorney’'s fee.

g. Pursuant to COUNT VII, against the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and
punitive damages, with interest, the precise amount to be
supplied to the Court upon a trial of the merits; Common Law
Injunctive and Equitable Relief; and the costs of the suit and a
reasonable attorney’s fee. |

h. Pursuant to COUNT VIII, against the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and
punitive damages, with interest, the precise amount to be

supplied to the Court upon a trial of the merits; Common Law
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Injunctive and Eqﬁitable Relief; ahd the costs of the suit and a
reasonable attorney’s fee.

i. Pursuant to COUNT IX, against the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and
punitive damages, with interest, the precise amount to be
supplied to the Court upon a txrial of the merits; Common Law
Injunctive and Equitable Relief; and the costs of the suit and a
reaéonable attorney’é fee.

3. Pursuant to COUNT X, against the PHILIP MORRIS
DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and
punitive damages, with interest, the precise amount to be
supplied to the Court upon a trial of the merits; Common Law
Injunctive and Equitéble Relief; and the costs of the suit and a
reasonable attorney's fee.

k. Pursuant to COUNT XI, damages, including
interest, against the RJR DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, the
precise amount to be supplied to the Court upon a trial on the
merits; treble the actual damages pursuant to 18-U.S;C. §

1964 (¢), along with an award of the costs of the suit and a
reasonable attorney’s fee.

1. Pursuant to COUNT XII, damages, including
interest, against the RJR DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, the
precise amount to be supplied to the Court upon a trial on the

merits; treble the actual damages pursuant to 18 U.S5.C. §
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1964 {c), along wiﬁh an award of the costs of the suit and a
reasonable attorney’s fee. )

m. Pursuant to COUNT XIII, damages, including
interest, against the RJR DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, the
precise amount to be supplied to the Court upon a trial on the
merits; treble the actual damages pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §

1964 (¢), along with an award of the costs of the suit and a
reasonable éttorney’s fee.

n. Pursuant to COUNT XIV, damages, including
interest, against the RJR DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, the
precise amount to be supplied to the Court upon a trial on the
merits; treble the actual damages pursuant to 13 U.s.C. 8§
1964(;), along with an award of the costs of the suit and a
reasonable attorney’s fee.

o. Pursuant to COUNT XV, RICO Injunctive and
Equitable Relief against the RJR DEFENDANTS, jointly and
severally, along with an award of the costs of the suit and a
reasbnable att§rney’s fee.

P. Pursuant to COUNT XVI, against the RJR
DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and
punitive damages, with interest, the precige amount to be
supplied to the Court ﬁpon a trial of the merits; Common Law

Injunctive and Equitable Relief; and the costs of the suit and a

reasonable attorney’s fee.
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g. Pu}suant to COUNT XVII, against the RJR
DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and
punitive damages, with interest, the precise amount to be
supplied to the Court upon a trial of the merits; Common Law
Injunctive and Equitable Relief; and the costs of the suit and a
reagonable attorney’s fee.

r. Pursuant to COUNT.XVIII, against the RJR
DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and
punitive damages, with interest, the precise amount to be
supplied to the Court upon a trial of the merits; Common Law
Injunctive and Equitable Relief} and the costs of the suit and a
reasonable attorney’s fee.

s. pursuant to COUNT XIX, against the RJR
DEFENDANTS, jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and
punitive damages, with interest, the precise amount to be
supplied to the Court upon a trial of the merits; Common Law
Injunctive and Equitable Relief; and the costs of the suit and a
reagonable attorney’'s fee.

t. Pursuant to COUNT XX, against the RJR DEFENDANTS,
jointly and severally, an award of compensatory and punitive
damages, with interest, the precise amount to be supplied to the
Court upon a trial of the merits; Common Law.Injunctive and
Equitable Relief; and the costs of the guit and a reasonable

attorney's fee.
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u. Such other and similar relief as the Court deems
just, proper, and equitable; and trial_by.jury as to all issues

triable as of right by jury.

Dated: Fort Lauderdale, Florida
August 3, 2001

KRUPNICK, CAMPBELL, MALONE,
- ROSELLI, BUSER, SLAMA, HANCOCK,
McNELIS, LIBERMAN & McKEE, P.A.

N

Carlos A. Acevedo (CA-6427)
Kevin A. Malone, Esquire
- 100 Courthouse Law Plaza
700 Southeast Third Avenue
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316
954-763-8181 telephone
954-763-8292 facsimile

By:

and

SPEISER, KRAUSE, NOLAN & GRANITO
John J. Halloran, Jr. (JH-2515)
Frank H. Granito, III (FG-9760)
Frank H. Granito, Jr. (FG-1969)
Kenneth P. Nolan (KN-3388)

Two Grand Central Tower

140 East 45 Street, 34" Floor
New York, New York 10017
212-661-0011 telephone
212-953-6483 facsimile

and
Edward F. Farrell, Esquire'

Principe de Vergara 17, Piso 8
28001 Madrid, Spain
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011-3491-575-0370 telephone
011-3491-431-1153 facsimile

and

SACKS & SMITH, L.L.C.

Andrew B. Sacks, Esquire
Stuart H. Smith, Esquire
John K. Weston, Esquire

510 Walnut Street, Suite 400
philadelphia, PA 19106
800-578-5300 telephone
215-925-8200 telephone
215-925-0508 facsimile

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS
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